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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Report”) contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws. All statements
contained in this  Annual Report,  other  than statements  of historical  fact,  including statements  regarding our or  our management  team’s expectations,  hopes,  beliefs,
intentions, strategies, future operating results and financial position, potential growth or growth prospects, are forward-looking statements. Words such as “believes,”
“may,” “will,” “estimates,” “potential,” “continues,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “expects,” “could,” “would,” “projects,” “plans,” “targets,” and variations of such words
and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements in this Annual Report may include, for example, statements
about:

• our anticipated growth, including our ability to scale new neighbor growth, our ability to grow engagement by our existing neighbor base and our ability to
increase monetization of our platform;

• our ability to scale our business and monetization efforts;

• our ability to expand our business operations abroad by opening new and expanding within existing neighborhoods outside of the United States;

• our ability to respond to general economic conditions;

• our ability to manage growth effectively;

• our ability to achieve and maintain profitability in the future;

• our ability to access sources of capital to finance operations and growth;

• the success of strategic relationships with third parties;

• our ability to maintain the listing of our Class A common stock on the NYSE;

• changes in applicable laws or regulations, both within and outside of the United States;

• the impact of the regulatory environment and complexities with compliance related to such environment;

• the inability to develop and maintain effective internal controls;

• the impact on our business as a result of interruptions, delays, or failures resulting from earthquakes, fires, floods, adverse weather conditions, other natural
disasters, power loss, terrorism, pandemics, geopolitical conflict (including the current conflict in Ukraine), other physical security threats, cyber-attacks, or
other catastrophic events;

• our ability to raise financing in the future;

• our success in retaining or recruiting, or changes required in, our officers, key employees or directors;

• our financial performance;

• the effect of COVID-19 on the foregoing; and

• other factors detailed in Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report.

We have based these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections as of the date of this filing about future events and trends that
we believe may affect our financial condition, results of
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operations,  business  strategy,  short-term  and  long-term  business  operations  and  objectives,  and  financial  needs.  These  forward-looking  statements  are  subject  to  a
number  of  risks,  uncertainties  and  assumptions,  including  those  described  in  Part  I,  Item 1A,  “Risk  Factors”  in  this  Annual  Report.  Readers  are  urged  to  carefully
review  and  consider  the  various  disclosures  made  in  this  Annual  Report  and  in  other  documents  we  file  from  time  to  time  with  the  Securities  and  Exchange
Commission, which we refer to as the SEC, that disclose risks and uncertainties that may affect our business. Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly
changing environment. New risks emerge from time to time. It is not possible for us to predict all risks, nor can we assess the impact of all factors on our business or
the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements we may
make. In light of these risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, the future events and circumstances discussed in this Annual Report may not occur and actual results could
differ materially and adversely from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements.

You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events.  The events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements
may not be achieved or occur. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results,
performance, or achievements. In addition, the forward-looking statements in this Annual Report are made as of the date of this filing, and we do not undertake, and
expressly  disclaim  any  duty,  to  update  such  statements  for  any  reason  after  the  date  of  this  Annual  Report  or  to  conform  statements  to  actual  results  or  revised
expectations, except as required by law.

You  should  read  this  Annual  Report  and  the  documents  that  we  reference  herein  and  have  filed  with  the  SEC  as  exhibits  to  this  Annual  Report  with  the
understanding that our actual future results, performance, and events and circumstances may be materially different from what we expect.

As  used  in  this  Annual  Report,  the  terms  “Nextdoor,”  “we,”  “us,”  and  “our”  mean  Nextdoor  Holdings,  Inc.  and  its  subsidiaries  unless  the  context  indicates
otherwise.
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RISK FACTOR SUMMARY

Our  business  is  subject  to  numerous  risks  and  uncertainties,  including  those  described  in  Part  I,  Item  1A,  “Risk  Factors”  in  this  Annual  Report.  You  should
carefully consider these risks and uncertainties when investing in our Class A common stock. Some of the principal risks and uncertainties include the following:

• We have a limited operating history at the current scale of our business and are still scaling up our monetization efforts, which makes it difficult to evaluate
our current business and future prospects, and there is no assurance we will be able to scale our business for future growth.

• We  currently  generate  substantially  all  of  our  revenue  from  advertising.  If  advertisers  reduce  or  eliminate  their  spending  with  us,  our  business,  operating
results, and financial condition would be adversely impacted.

• Our business is highly competitive. Competition presents an ongoing threat to the success of our business.

• Our  business  is  dependent  on  our  ability  to  maintain  and  scale  our  product  offerings  and  technical  infrastructure,  and  any  significant  disruption  in  the
availability of our platform could damage our reputation, result in a potential loss of neighbors and engagement, and adversely affect our business, operating
results, and financial condition.

• We have experienced rapid growth and expect to invest in our growth for the foreseeable future. If we fail to manage our growth effectively,  our business,
operating results, and financial condition would be adversely affected. We also may not be able to sustain our growth in the future.

• If our efforts to build strong brand identity and reputation are not successful, we may not be able to attract or retain neighbors, and our business, operating
results, and financial condition will be adversely affected.

• Health epidemics, including the COVID-19 pandemic have had or could have an adverse impact on our business, operations, and the markets and communities
in  which  we,  our  partners  and  our  customers  operate.  In  addition,  during  the  COVD-19  pandemic,  we  experienced  an  increase  in  neighbor  growth  and
engagement and there is no guarantee that we will be able to maintain our neighbor growth and engagement as the COVID-19 pandemic subsides.

• We plan to continue expanding our international operations where we have limited operating experience and may be subject to increased business, regulatory,
and economic risks that could seriously harm our business, operating results, and financial condition.

• If we need additional capital in the future, it may not be available on favorable terms, if at all.

• Our business depends largely on our ability to attract and retain talented employees, including senior management. If we lose the services of Sarah Friar, our
Chief Executive Officer and President, or other members of our senior management team, we may not be able to execute on our business strategy.

• We  are  dependent  on  third-party  software  and  service  providers,  including  the  Google  Ad  Manager  (“GAM”)  platform,  for  management  and  delivery  of
advertisements  on  the  Nextdoor  platform.  Any  failure  or  interruption  experienced  by  such  third-parties,  including  as  a  result  of  the  COVID-19  pandemic,
could result in the inability of certain businesses to advertise on our platform, and adversely impact our business, operating results, and financial condition.

• We rely on third-party software and service providers, including Amazon Web Services (“AWS”), to provide systems, storage and services for our platform.
Any failure or interruption experienced by such third parties, including as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, could result in the inability of neighbors and
advertisers to access or utilize our platform, and adversely impact our business, operating results, and financial condition.

• Technologies  have  been  developed  that  can  block  the  display  of  advertisements  on  the  Nextdoor  platform,  which  could  adversely  impact  our  business,
operating results, and financial condition.
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• Security  breaches,  including  improper  access  to  or  disclosure  of  our  data  or  our  neighbors’  data,  or  other  hacking  and  phishing  attacks  on  our  third-party
system, could harm our reputation and adversely affect our business.

• Distribution and marketing of, and access to, our platform depends, in significant part, on a variety of third-party publishers and platforms (including mobile
app stores, third-party payment providers, computer systems, and other communication systems and service providers). If these third parties limit, prohibit or
otherwise interfere with or change the terms of the distribution, use or marketing of our platform in any material way, it could materially adversely affect our
business, operating results, and financial condition.

• Certain of our market opportunities and key metric estimates could prove to be inaccurate, and any real or perceived inaccuracies may harm our reputation and
negatively affect our business.

• We have a history of net losses and may experience net losses in the future and we cannot assure you that we will achieve or sustain profitability. If we cannot
achieve or sustain profitability, our business, financial condition and operating results will be adversely affected.

• We may have greater than anticipated tax liabilities, which could harm our business, revenue and financial results.

• We may be liable as a result of content or information that is published or made available on our platform.

• Our business is subject to complex and evolving U.S. and foreign laws, regulations, and industry standards, many of which are subject to change and uncertain
interpretations, which uncertainty could harm our business, operating results, and financial conditions.

• We may  be  involved  in  legal  disputes  that  are  expensive  and  time  consuming,  and,  if  resolved  adversely,  could  harm our  business,  operating  results,  and
financial condition.

• Failure to maintain effective systems of internal controls and disclosure controls could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, and
financial conditions.

• If we are unable to protect our intellectual property, the value of our brands and other intangible assets may be diminished, and our business, operating results,
and financial condition may be adversely affected.

• Third  parties  may  claim  that  our  platform  infringes  their  intellectual  property  rights  and  this  may  create  liability  for  us  or  otherwise  adversely  affect  our
business, operating results, and financial condition.

• Our  use  of  “open  source”  software  could  subject  us  to  possible  litigation  or  could  prevent  us  from offering  products  that  include  open  source  software  or
require us to obtain licenses on unfavorable terms.

• We license technology from third parties, and our inability to maintain those licenses could harm our business.

• The price of our Class A common stock has been, and may continue to be, volatile.

• The dual class structure of our common stock may adversely affect the trading market for our Class A common stock.

• The dual class structure of our common stock has the effect of concentrating voting power with our management and other existing stockholders, which will
limit your ability to influence the outcome of important transactions, including a change in control.

• We do not intend to pay cash dividends for the foreseeable future.
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PART I

Item 1. Business

Overview

At Nextdoor, our purpose is to cultivate a kinder world where everyone has a neighborhood they can rely on. Nextdoor is the neighborhood network that connects
neighborhood stakeholders, including neighbors, businesses, and public services, online and in real life to build stronger, more vibrant, and resilient neighborhoods. As
of December 31, 2021, Nextdoor was in more than 285,000 neighborhoods around the world and in nearly 1 in 3 households in the United States, and during the fourth
quarter of 2021, we reached 69 million global Verified Neighbors . Neighbors and organizations, which include small and mid-sized businesses, large brands, public
agencies,  and  nonprofits,  around the  world  turn  to  Nextdoor  to  receive  trusted  information,  give  and  get  help,  and  build  real-world  connections  with  neighborhood
stakeholders.

Nextdoor  began  in  the  United  States,  and  as  of  December  31,  2021,  our  platform was  available  in  11  countries.  Beyond  the  United  States,  Nextdoor  supports
neighborhoods in the United Kingdom, Canada, Australia, Netherlands, France, Spain, Italy, Germany, Sweden, and Denmark. In the United Kingdom, as of December
31, 2021, Nextdoor was in 1 in 5 households,  and 1 in 4 households in London. We intend to expand our neighbor footprint  globally and to increasingly become a
weekly use case for neighbors.

Value for Neighbors and Organizations

Value for Neighbors

Neighbors  come to Nextdoor to connect  to  the neighborhoods that  matter  to  them so they can belong.  We leverage technology to enable  online and real-world
connections between neighbors and organizations — both of which are a valuable part of the neighborhood ecosystem. Nextdoor ensures neighbors are connected to
real people by requiring neighbors to use their real name, which fosters a trusted environment so they can meet and learn more about those nearby. Further, since the
experience is based on geographical location, Nextdoor uniquely provides a way to bring online connections into the real world.

Value for Organizations

Nextdoor  connects  neighbors  with  each  other  and  everything  nearby,  including  organizations.  Organizations  are  essential  for  building  strong,  vibrant
neighborhoods and are a trusted and core member of the community. Businesses of all sizes and types come to Nextdoor to reach their customers in meaningful ways
and to encourage action through hyperlocal targeting and personalization of advertising at scale.  Public agencies come to Nextdoor to deliver critical  information to
neighbors with hyperlocal distribution. Public agencies also leverage Nextdoor to find out what is important to their constituents and communicate with them directly.
This includes keeping neighbors apprised about everything from local events such as webinars and street fairs, to timely safety updates and urgent alerts and tips to stay
safe and protected during times of crisis such as power outages, storms, or wildfires.

Our Platform

Nextdoor’s product strategy fulfills our purpose by enabling neighbors and organizations to build an “Active Valued Community” — an engaged community of
neighbors,  businesses,  and  public  services  that  you  can  trust  and  depend  on  to  exchange  valuable  information,  goods,  and  services.  The  Nextdoor  platform  offers
distinct functionalities and experiences for neighbors and organizations alike.

How neighbors discover what's happening nearby

• Newsfeed: The Newsfeed is where neighbors find constantly updated posts, discussions, photos, and links from other neighbors and organizations. Neighbors
can respond by commenting or adding a reaction (e.g., like, thank, and wow), and can set their feed preferences (e.g., rank by top posts, recent activity, recent
posts, or popular everywhere).

 Verified Neighbors are individuals who have joined Nextdoor and have had their address confirmed by us.

1

1
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• Notifications: In-app and Email Notifications inform neighbors about news, items, and activities they are interested in. Notifications include everything from
trending posts to direct messages about items for sale to alerts by local public agencies. Notifications keep neighbors updated and drive increased engagement
on Nextdoor.

• Search: Search  gives  neighbors  the  ability  to  find  specific  content  and  organizations  (including  large  brands,  small  businesses,  public  agencies,  and
nonprofits) related to their neighborhood. Nextdoor’s search combines an understanding of search terms with filtering capabilities to get neighbors the results
they are looking for.

How neighbors connect with organizations and find local resources

• Businesses: Neighbors use Nextdoor to discover spots most-loved by locals, leave recommendations, find exclusive deals and promotions, and interact with
businesses. As of December 31, 2021, neighbors had left more than 55 million business recommendations on Nextdoor.

• For Sale & Free: For Sale & Free is our truly local marketplace where neighbors buy, sell, or give away items, and even offer services such as babysitting and
dog walking.

• Public Services: On Nextdoor, neighbors can receive critical, real time information from trusted officials. Public agencies, including government entities and
service providers, turn to Nextdoor directly, quickly, and easily reach neighbors in their community with hyperlocal information and alerts.

How neighbors connect with other neighbors

• Posts, Comments, and Reactions: Through posts, comments, and reactions neighbors can reach out to the neighborhood to get and give information that is
locally relevant, trusted, and in real time. Whether it is for a local plumber or a family friendly pizza place, neighbors know best.

• Connections: Connections are a new way to find and keep up with the neighbors you know and care about. When neighbors connect with each other, they will
see each other’s posts, comments, and reactions highlighted in their feeds and have the ability to @mention them in posts and comments. The Neighbors You
May Know feature recommends neighbors to connect with based on proximity, Connections in common, on-platform interactions, and personal contacts.

• Groups: Neighbors create Groups to connect with those nearby with a common interest. We see an incremental lift in engagement after a neighbor engages
with a Group.

• Messaging: Neighbors can contact other neighbors and organizations through direct messaging (e.g., neighbors messaging businesses, coordinating a time to
pick up a desk, to borrow a printer, or get more information about a tutor).

Our Advertising Solutions

Advertisers  of  all  sizes  come  to  Nextdoor  to  reach  their  customers  in  meaningful  ways,  including  through  our  proprietary  self-serve  Neighborhood  Ad Center
(“NAC”), which we continued to deploy in 2021 and will expand during 2022. Large brands use our platform to reach, engage, and convert neighbors by delivering
hyperlocal and personalized advertising at scale. Small businesses rely on Nextdoor to reach customers with information that encourages local action. From building
awareness to driving sales, we offer advertisers of all sizes distinct and differentiated products in a unique local context that allow them to reach the right neighbor, at
the right time, with the right message. The value of Nextdoor’s audience to advertisers is driven by providing:

• A  high  utility  platform: Neighbors  come  to  Nextdoor  for  a  real-time  solution  nearby  and  to  get  things  done.  From  finding  an  emergency  plumber,  to
checking which Internet service provider works best locally, to finding the best spot for dinner. This creates a highly performant environment for advertisers
who come to Nextdoor to create meaningful connections with a uniquely engaged local audience.
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• Access to untapped audiences: According to fourth quarter 2021 data from GWI, 76% of neighbors who visit Nextdoor at least once a month do not visit
Snap, 57% do not visit Pinterest, and 17% do not visit Facebook.

• Contextual relevance: Nextdoor content is highly relevant based on neighbors’ local boundaries, which provides a unique environment for brands to show up
surrounded by relevant and welcome content.

• Neighborhood  level  data  provides  actionable  insights: We  have  a  unique  ability  to  understand  consumer  behavior  and  trends  from  a  national  to  a
neighborhood level. Our data can provide valuable insights to advertisers to help them better serve their customers.

• Hyperlocal personalization at scale: Advertisers reach neighbors both locally and with local customization at scale. We are able to dynamically update ad
creatives  to  run  nationally  with  local  specifics,  such  as  neighborhood  names,  store  locations  or  business  representative  information,  to  create  meaningful
connections between our customers and neighbors.

Ad Placements

Advertisers can engage with their customers in multiple surfaces on our platform, including:

• Newsfeed: Advertisers can run ads in the Newsfeed to build awareness,  to become part  of the consideration set for a consumer’s purchase, and to create a
direct response to an explicit call to action (e.g., visit our newly opened store). Ads are featured prominently where neighbors first look for what is happening
on Nextdoor. Ads can also be customized (e.g., with neighborhood name and store location) to make them even more relevant.

• In-App Digest and Email Digest: Advertisers can also use ads in the In-App Digest and Email Digest to create awareness among neighbors who turn to their
summary of top posts. Ads are highly visible, and neighborhood names and store locations can be customized by neighborhood.

• For Sale & Free: Advertisers can leverage ads in For Sale & Free to drive action such as shop now. Our local marketplace is where neighbors with high intent
to buy will go. Ads are given a top spot in this contextually relevant space with the opportunity to customize by neighborhood.

• Search: Advertisers  can  bid  on  relevant  categories  that  are  aligned  with  their  products  and  services.  Neighbors  use  Nextdoor  search  to  discover  local
businesses and get trusted recommendations from their neighbors. Offering solutions to our neighbors in this high intent experience gives advertisers a very
efficient lower-funnel strategy to drive conversion.

Ad Formats

Our ad formats include, but are not limited to:

• Sponsored Posts: An advertisement that features some combination of text (static or dynamic), images (including static, animated, or video), audio, and URL
links to a website where a customer can learn more about or buy goods or services.

• Paid Search Listings: Advertisers can leverage paid search listings available in Nextdoor’s search ad marketplace to reach their desired audience with high-
intent in a contextually relevant environment.

• Neighborhood Sponsorships: Advertisers leverage Neighborhood Sponsorships to drive awareness, build a positive reputation, and keep their business top of
mind. With these sponsorships they create and distribute automated ad placements that regularly post to the Newsfeed in targeted ZIP codes.

• Local Deals: Advertisers offering goods and services use Local Deals to target specific neighborhoods and drive sales. Designing specific timely discounts
and promotions for specific neighborhoods engages and motivates their best customers, those nearby.
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Ad Auction

Ads on the Nextdoor platform compete via an auction-based system. Our ad auction allows us to serve ads to neighbors when and where it matters most, while
optimizing  business  outcomes  for  advertisers.  Our  auction  system  selects  the  best  ad  for  each  available  ad  impression,  based  on  the  likelihood  of  a  desired  action
occurring and how much that action is worth to advertisers. The likelihood of the action occurring depends on a variety of factors, such as ad relevance and creative
quality.

Measurement

Delivering and demonstrating value for our advertisers is a key objective for Nextdoor. We offer a variety of measurement solutions that are mapped to advertisers’
goals and objectives, and validate Nextdoor’s performance.

A Kind Platform

Nextdoor is a leading innovator in creating a kind platform that facilitates healthy neighborhood connections and conversations. We set clear guidelines and use a
combination of people and technology to encourage the behaviors that support our purpose of cultivating a kinder world where everyone has a neighborhood they can
rely on.

From day one, we’ve ensured that Nextdoor neighborhoods are made up of real people, nearby. We require all new neighbors to accept our Neighbor Pledge upon
joining, in order to introduce our community guidelines and provide personal accountability for interactions on the platform. If these guidelines are violated, neighbors
are able to report the inappropriate behavior or the person engaging in the said behavior.

We rely on a combination of technology and human review to effectively moderate the platform. We’ve always believed it’s important to incorporate local context
into  moderation  decisions,  which  is  why  we’ve  built  our  community  volunteer  programs  to  empower  thoughtful  neighborhood  moderation.  Review  of  potentially
harmful content (e.g., misinformation, discrimination) and inappropriate neighbor behavior is always handled by Nextdoor staff to ensure consistency.

Volunteers on our Neighborhood Teams help make Nextdoor a welcoming platform for all neighbors. Volunteer moderators are active neighbors who have access
to specialized tools,  resources and training — including an online course designed to help recognize and address bias in online discourse — that they can utilize to
promote compliance with our community guidelines. Additionally, our Welcome Team volunteers are alerted when a new neighbor joins, so they can reach out with a
message of connection and belonging to establish rapport. Building community is at the core of Nextdoor.

Technology

Our investments in technology are focused on the following areas: Core Product Development, Business Solutions, and Cloud Infrastructure.

• Core product development. Our product organization focuses on creating and improving products for all our neighbors in the countries in which we operate
around the world. Our platform powers hundreds of thousands of neighborhood networks and all the entities that form these neighborhoods across neighbors,
businesses, and public agencies. Using machine-learning and proprietary technology, we enable locally relevant conversations, keeping neighbors informed
and connected while nurturing civil and kind discussions with solutions like the Good Neighbor Pledge and the Kindness Reminder.

• Business solutions. Our proprietary Nextdoor Ad Manager (“NAM”) continues to be an area of expansion and powers a number of our advertising solutions.
NAM is designed to be the heart of our ad tech stack, and to meet and exceed the demands of all of our customers, ranging from large brands to small business
owners. Built with flexibility and modularity at its core, NAM consists of shared targeting, auctioning, machine learning, and delivery engines. NAM uses
first-party data captured from the billions of daily actions on Nextdoor and combines it with proprietary neighborhood mapping data from our platform to
create differentiated and hyperlocal audience targeting solutions. NAM also underpins NAC, which enables
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advertisers to quickly create ads, reach their most valuable audiences and optimize their campaigns in real time. Expansion of advertiser adoption of NAC will
continue in 2022.

• Cloud infrastructure. We continually invest in the underlying technology platform that powers all of our products and services. From its inception, our
infrastructure was built to be cloud-native, applying well-tested design patterns with distributed systems that are linearly scalable and highly flexible. We
partner with Amazon Web Services (“AWS”) as our preferred cloud services provider to support our growing platform needs. We enable our engineering
resources to focus on improving the products for our neighbors on Nextdoor.

• Development principles. Execution velocity and autonomy are critical pillars of our engineering culture. We employ agile development processes and
techniques combined with continuous integration (“CI”) and continuous deployment (“CD”) to empower our teams to rapidly improve our products and the
platforms that power them.

Leveraging data generated by usage of our products is a first principle in how we develop, test, and iterate to continually improve the user experience and inform
our future product roadmap.

In addition, we build our products to be global-ready and mobile first, with the majority of our neighbors using our iOS and Android mobile apps to interact with
our products.

Intellectual property

Our intellectual property and core technological innovations are integral components of our business. To establish and protect our intellectual property, proprietary
rights  and  brand,  we  rely  on  a  combination  of  federal,  state,  and  common-law rights  in  the  United  States  and  the  rights  under  the  laws  of  other  countries,  patents,
trademarks, copyrights, domain name, trade secrets, including know-how, license agreements, confidentiality procedures, non-disclosure agreements with third parties,
employee disclosure, and invention assignment agreements, and other contractual rights.

We own a trademark portfolio, including registered trademarks and applications in the United States and other countries, for the marks NEXTDOOR, , and .
We  have  registered  domain  names  that  we  use  in  or  relate  to  our  business,  such  as  the  <nextdoor.com>  domain  name  and  country  code  top  level  domain  name
equivalents.  As  of  December  31,  2021,  we  had  eight  issued  patents  and  three  filed  patent  applications  in  the  United  States  and  certain  other  foreign  countries.  We
cannot assure you that any of our patent applications will result in the issuance of a patent or whether the examination process will require us to narrow our claims.
Additionally,  our  current  and  future  patents,  trademarks,  and  other  intellectual  property  or  other  proprietary  rights  may  be  contested,  circumvented  or  found
unenforceable  or  invalid.  We  may  not  be  able  to  obtain  or  maintain  sufficient  protection  for  or  successfully  enforce  our  intellectual  property.  We  license  content,
technology, and other intellectual property from our partners, and rely on our license agreements with those partners to use the intellectual property. Third parties may
assert claims related to intellectual property rights against our partners or us.

For additional information, please see the section entitled “Risk Factors — Risks Related to Intellectual Property.”

Human Capital

Our Culture and Core Values

Community  is  at  the  heart  of  Nextdoor  and  our  growing  community  of  employees  is  our  lifeblood.  Our  employees  have  a  wide  range  of  experiences  and
perspectives, which fuel our purpose to cultivate a kinder world where everyone has a neighborhood they can rely on.

Our company core values are:

• Earn trust everyday;
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• Invest in community;

• Customer obsessed;

• Think big;

• Experiment and learn quickly; and

• Act like an owner.

We live these core values through our approach to our people practices, summarized below.

Employees

As of December 31, 2021, we had 602 full-time employees in the United States and in our international locations in Canada, the United Kingdom, the Netherlands,
Ireland, France and Australia.

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Belonging

The principles of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Belonging (“DEIB”) are woven into the very fabric of our organization and guide how we recruit, retain, and
develop our talent.

Our commitment to DEIB begins at the top and is underscored by the importance of making diverse perspectives a business imperative. This is reflected in the
racially  diverse  and  gendered-balanced  leaders  that  make  up  our  Board  of  Directors,  management  team,  and  employees,  and  who  all  share  in  our  passion  for
contributing to and effecting change in communities globally.

We thrive on creating a dynamic, inclusive environment that aims to support and appreciate our employees as well as contribute to our award-winning company
culture. We have ten active and engaged Employee Resource Groups that are aligned around dimensions of diversity, such as gender, ethnicity, sexual orientation or
other shared attributes, which we believe help foster a sense of community, and a diverse and inclusive workplace.

We also offer training sessions to our employees to emphasize awareness in self, bias and privilege, and inclusion. Further, we focus our global recruitment efforts
on ensuring that teams and hiring managers have the opportunity to consider qualified people from historically excluded groups for open roles. Moreover, we distribute
a bi-annual employment engagement survey to measure our employees’ satisfaction at Nextdoor, including employees’ perspective on our current state of workplace
inclusivity.

Learning, Development, and Engagement

We  have  a  dedicated  Talent  Management  and  Development  team  that  develops  and  delivers  company-wide  people  programs  and  learning  and  development
experiences to help our employees grow in their  careers.  The programs include performance feedback and promotion cycles and recognition through our “Nextdoor
Values  Awards”.  Our  learning  and  development  experiences  focus  on  onboarding  new  hires  as  well  as  offering  workshops  focused  on  skills  development  and
compliance training. Additionally,  we offer employees a development stipend that they can use towards their professional development (e.g.,  career coaches, books,
classes, conferences, tuition, etc.).

We are committed to making Nextdoor the best place to work by engaging with, and listening to, our community of employees. We maintain ongoing connection
with our team members through weekly all hands meetings, our speaker series, and bi-annual engagement surveys.

Compensation, Benefits and Perks

We provide employees with competitive compensation packages that include base salaries, sales commissions for certain employees, and equity awards. Additional
benefits programs (which vary by country and region) include a 401(k) Plan with a company match, healthcare, vision, and dental insurance benefits, health savings and
flexible spending accounts, flexible paid time off, parental leave, and other benefits tailored to the specific needs of our
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employees such as family forming, caregiving and mental health resources. We also support and encourage our employees to give back to our communities by giving
each employee “Volunteer Time Off” to dedicate to the causes that matter most to them.

Competition

We compete in almost every aspect of our business with companies that provide a variety of internet products, services, content, and online advertising, including
Meta (including Facebook and Instagram), Alphabet (including Google), Pinterest, Snap, and Twitter. In addition, aspects of our platform compete with other products
and services, including home services, classifieds, real estate, recommendations and search engines. We compete with these companies to attract,  engage, and retain
users and to attract and retain advertisers. As we introduce new products, as our platform evolves, or as other companies introduce new products and services, we may
become subject to additional competition in other countries.

While our industry is evolving rapidly and is becoming increasingly competitive, we believe that we compete effectively due to our singular focus on creating and
strengthening our neighborhood networks, the size and engagement of our user base, our ability to provide neighbors with trusted information from a uniquely local
perspective, our value proposition to advertisers including businesses and public agencies, and our powerful network effects.

Our strengths are real people, hyperlocal proximity, trusted information, local perspective and instant distribution, each of which reinforce each other to create a
strong competitive moat.

For additional information, see the section entitled “Risk Factors — Our business is highly competitive. Competition presents an ongoing threat to the success of
our business.”

Government regulation

We are subject to many U.S. federal and state and foreign laws, regulations and industry standards that involve matters central to our business, including laws and
regulations that involve data privacy and data protection, intellectual property (including copyright and patent laws), content regulation, rights of publicity, advertising,
marketing,  health  and  safety,  competition,  protection  of  minors,  consumer  protection,  taxation,  anti-bribery,  anti-money  laundering  and  corruption,
telecommunications, and securities. Our business may also be affected by the adoption of any new or existing laws or regulations or changes in laws or regulations that
adversely affect the growth, popularity or use of the internet, or that significantly restrict or impose conditions on our ability to collect, store, augment, analyze, use and
share  data  or  increase  consumer  notice  or  consent  requirements  before  a  company can utilize  cookies  or  other  tracking technologies  or  that  increase  the  liability  of
content platforms like us. These laws and regulations are constantly evolving and may be interpreted, applied, created, or amended, in a manner that could harm our
business.

We rely on a variety of  statutory and common-law frameworks and defenses relevant  to the content  available  on our service,  including the Digital  Millennium
Copyright Act (the “DMCA”), the Communications Decency Act (“CDA”) and the fair-use doctrine in the United States, and the Electronic Commerce Directive in the
European  Union.  However,  each  of  these  statutes  is  subject  to  uncertain  or  evolving  judicial  interpretation  and  regulatory  and  legislative  amendments.  In  addition,
various countries around the world have adopted and pending legislation, including the forthcoming Digital Services Act (the “DSA”) in the European Union, that may
impose additional obligations or liability on us associated with content uploaded by users to our platform. For example, in the United States, laws such as the CDA,
which  have  previously  been  interpreted  to  provide  substantial  protection  to  interactive  computer  service  providers,  may  change  and  become  less  predictable  or
unfavorable by legislative action or juridical interpretation. There have been various federal and state legislative efforts to restrict the scope of the protections available
to online platforms under the CDA, in particular with regards to Section 230 of the CDA, and current protections from liability for third-party content in the United
States could decrease or change. We could incur significant costs investigating and defending such claims and, if we are found liable, significant damages.

We receive, process, store, use, and share data, some of which contains personal information. We are therefore subject to U.S. federal, state, local, and foreign laws
and regulations regarding data privacy and the collection,
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storage, sharing, use, processing, disclosure and protection of personal information and other data from users, employees or business partners, including the General
Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”) and the California Consumer Privacy Act (“CCPA”). Additionally, California recently enacted a new privacy law, the California
Privacy  Rights  Act  (“CPRA”),  Virginia  enacted  the  Virginia  Consumer  Data  Protection  Act  (“VCDPA”),  and  Colorado  enacted  the  Colorado  Data  Privacy  Act
(“CDPA”), which have similar requirements and obligations to the CCPA. There are also a number of legislative proposals recently enacted or pending before the U.S.
Congress,  various  state  legislatures  and  foreign  governments  concerning  content  regulation  and  data  protection  that  could  affect  us,  These  and  other  laws  and
regulations that may be enacted, or new interpretation of existing laws and regulations, may require us to modify our data processing practices and policies and to incur
substantial costs in order to comply.

The costs of complying with these laws and regulations, which in some cases can be enforced by private parties in addition to government entities, are high and
likely to increase in the future, particularly as the degree of regulation increases, our business grows and our geographic scope expands. Further, the impact of these
laws and regulations may disproportionately affect our business in comparison to our peers in the technology sector that have greater resources. Any failure on our part
to  comply  with  these  laws  and  regulations  may  subject  us  to  significant  liabilities  or  penalties,  or  otherwise  adversely  affect  our  business,  financial  condition  or
operating results.  Further,  it  is  possible  that  certain  governments  may seek to  block or  limit  our  products  or  otherwise  impose other  restrictions  that  may affect  the
accessibility or usability of any or all our products for an extended period of time or indefinitely.

We communicate with lawmakers and regulators in the countries and regions in which we do business. We have a dedicated policy team that monitors legal and
regulatory developments and works with policymakers and regulators around the world to help ensure that our perspective is heard in matters of importance to us.

For additional information, see the section entitled “Risk Factors — Risks Related to Legal and Regulatory Matters.”

Corporate Information

We were initially a blank check or special purpose acquisition company called KVSB, incorporated in Delaware on January 29, 2021, formed for the purpose of
effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses or entities. On
November 5, 2021 (the “Closing Date”), KVSB consummated the transactions contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated July 6, 2021, as amended on
September  30,  2021  (the  “Merger Agreement”),  by  and  among  KVSB,  Lorelei  Merger  Sub  Inc.,  a  direct  wholly  owned  subsidiary  of  KVSB  (“Merger Sub”) and
Nextdoor, Inc. (“Legacy Nextdoor”), with Legacy Nextdoor surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of KVSB (the “Merger” and the transactions contemplated thereby,
the “Business Combination”). Legacy Nextdoor was incorporated in Delaware on December 4, 2007. Following the consummation of the Business Combination on the
Closing Date, KVSB changed its name from Khosla Ventures Acquisition Co. II to Nextdoor Holdings, Inc.

Our principal executive offices are located at 420 Taylor Street, San Francisco, California 94012 and our telephone number is (415) 344-0333. Our website address
is https://www.nextdoor.com. The information contained on, or that can be accessed through, our website is not incorporated by reference into, and is not a part of, this
Annual Report. Investors should not rely on any such information in deciding whether to purchase our Class A common stock.

Nextdoor, the Nextdoor logo, and other registered or common law trade names, trademarks, or service marks of Nextdoor appearing in this Annual Report are the
property of Nextdoor. This Annual Report contains additional trade names, trademarks, and service marks of other companies that are the property of their respective
owners. We do not intend our use or display of other companies’ trade names, trademarks, or service marks to imply a relationship with, or endorsement or sponsorship
of us by, these other companies. Solely for convenience, our trademarks and tradenames referred to in this Annual Report appear without the ® and ™ symbols, but
those references are not intended to indicate,  in any way, that  we will  not assert,  to the fullest  extent  under applicable law, our rights,  or  the right  of the applicable
licensor, to these trademarks and tradenames.
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Available Information

Our reports filed with or furnished to the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), are
available, free of charge, on our Investor Relations website at https://investors.nextdoor.com/ as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material
with, or furnish it to, the SEC. The SEC maintains a website at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, and other information regarding us and other companies that
file materials with the SEC electronically. Copies of our reports on Form 10-K, Forms 10-Q, and Forms 8-K, and amendments to those reports may also be obtained,
free of charge, electronically through our Investor Relations website located at the web address appearing above as soon as reasonably practicable after we file such
material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. We use our Investor Relations website as a means of disclosing material  information and for complying with our disclosure
obligations under Regulation FD. Accordingly, investors should monitor our Investor Relations website, in addition to following our press releases, SEC filings, and
public conference calls and webcasts.

The content of our websites and information that we may post on or provide to online and social media channels and information that can be accessed through our
websites or these online and social media channels are not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report or in any other report or document we file with the SEC,
and any references to our websites or these online and social media channels are intended to be inactive textual references only.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our Class A common stock involves risks.  You should carefully  consider the risks and uncertainties  described below, together with all  of  the other
information in this Annual Report,  including the section titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of  Financial  Condition and Results of  Operations” and our
consolidated financial statements and related notes, before deciding whether to purchase shares of our Class A common stock. You should also carefully consider the
following  risk  factors  in  addition  to  the  other  information  included  in  this  Annual  Report,  including  matters  addressed  in  the  above  section  entitled  “Special  Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.” Our business, operating results, financial condition, and prospects could also be harmed by risks and uncertainties that are
not presently known to us or that we currently believe are not material. If any of these risks actually occur, our business, operating results, financial condition, and
prospects could be materially and adversely affected. Unless otherwise indicated, references in these risk factors to our business being harmed will include harm to our
business, reputation, brand, financial condition, operating results, and prospects. In such event, the market price of our securities could decline, and you could lose all
or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We have a limited operating history at the current scale of our business and are still scaling up our monetization efforts, which makes it difficult to evaluate our
current business and future prospects, and there is no assurance we will be able to scale our business for future growth.

We commenced operating the Nextdoor platform in 2011 and began supporting the platform with advertising in 2016. Our limited operating history at the current
scale  of  our  business  may  make  it  difficult  to  evaluate  our  current  business  and  future  prospects.  We  have  encountered,  and  will  continue  to  encounter,  risks  and
difficulties frequently experienced by growing companies in rapidly evolving industries, including challenges in accurate financial planning and forecasting, increasing
competition and expenses as we continue to grow our business, and our ability to achieve market acceptance of our platform and attract, engage and retain users, who
we call “neighbors” (which includes individuals) and organizations (which includes businesses and public agencies, including paying customers such as advertisers).
You should consider our business and prospects in light of the risks and difficulties that we may encounter as a business with a limited operating history. We cannot
ensure that we will be successful in addressing these and other challenges we may face in the future, and our business, operating results, and financial condition may be
adversely affected if we do not manage these risks successfully. We may not be able to maintain our current rate of growth, which is a risk characteristic often shared
by companies with limited operating histories participating in rapidly evolving industries.

Additionally, we are still in the early stages of monetizing our platform. Our growth strategy depends on, among other things, increasing neighbors on the network,
increasing engagement,  developing new and improving existing products for neighbors and organizations, attracting more advertisers (including expanding our sales
efforts  to  reach  advertisers  in  additional  international  markets),  scaling  our  business  with  existing  advertisers,  and  delivering  targeted  advertisements  based  on
neighbors’ personal taste and interests. There can be no assurance that we will successfully increase monetization on our platform or that we will sustain or increase the
current growth rate of our revenue.

We currently generate substantially all of our revenue from advertising. If advertisers reduce or eliminate their spending with us, our business, operating results,
and financial condition would be adversely impacted.

Substantially all of our revenue is currently generated from the sales of advertising on our platform in the form of online display advertisements, which include
sponsored posts,  local  deals,  and neighborhood sponsorships.  Our advertisers  typically do not have long-term advertising spend commitments  with us.  Many of our
advertisers spend only a relatively small portion of their overall advertising budget with us. In addition, advertisers may view some of the features on our platform as
experimental and unproven. Advertisers will not continue to do business with us, or they will reduce the prices they are willing to pay to advertise with us, if we do not
deliver advertisements in an effective manner, or if advertisers do not believe that their investment in advertising with us will generate a
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competitive  return  relative  to  alternatives.  Our  ability  to  attract  and  retain  advertisers,  and  ultimately  generate  revenue,  may  be  adversely  affected  by  a  number  of
factors, including but not limited to:

• decreases in neighbor and advertiser engagement on the platform;

• slower than anticipated growth in, or lack of growth or decreases in, the number of neighbors on the platform;

• platform changes (such as the migration to our proprietary ad server) or inventory management decisions that change the size, format, frequency, or relative
prominence of advertisements displayed on the platform;

• competitors offering more attractive pricing for advertisements that we are unable or unwilling to match;

• a decrease in the quantity or quality of advertisements shown to neighbors;

• changes to laws, third-party policies or applications that limit our ability to deliver, target, or measure the effectiveness of advertising, including changes by
mobile operating system and browser providers such as Apple and Google;

• changes to demographics of our neighbors that make us less attractive to advertisers;

• an increase in neighbors who exercise opt-out rights under privacy laws to restrict the advertisements they receive;

• neighbors that upload content or take other actions that are deemed to be hostile, inappropriate, illicit, objectionable, illegal, or otherwise not consistent with
the brand of our advertisers;

• adverse government actions or legislative, regulatory, or other legal developments;

• neighbor behavior or changes to the platform that may affect, among other things, the safety and security of other neighbors or the cultivation of a positive and
inclusive online community;

• adverse media reports or other negative publicity involving us;

• implementing or enforcing policies, such as advertising policies, community guidelines, and other terms or service that are perceived negatively by
advertisers;

• our ability to develop and improve our products for advertisers;

• limitations in, or reductions to, the availability, accuracy, utility, and security of analytics and measurement solutions offered by us or third parties that are
intended to demonstrate the value of our advertisements to advertisers;

• changes to our data privacy practices that affect the type or manner of advertising that we are able to provide, including as a result of changes to laws,
regulations or regulatory actions, such as the GDPR, European Directive 2002/58/EC (the “ePrivacy Directive”), UK General Data Protection Regulation
(“UK GDPR”), UK Data Protection Act 2018, the CCPA, Nevada’s Online Privacy Law (“Nevada Privacy Law”), the CDPA, the VCPDA, the CPRA, and
other newly enacted U.S. state privacy laws, or changes to third-party policies; and

• the impact of macroeconomic conditions, whether in the advertising industry in general, among specific types of advertisers or within particular geographies.

From time to time, certain of these factors have adversely affected our revenue to varying degrees.  For example,  during the second quarter of 2020, advertisers
reduced their advertising spend with us as a result of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on global macroeconomic conditions and on the advertising industry in
general.  The occurrence of any of these or other factors in the future could result in a reduction in demand for our advertisements,  which may reduce the prices we
receive for our advertisements, or cause advertisers to stop or reduce their spend
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with us,  either  of  which would negatively affect  our business,  operating results,  and financial  condition.  Similar  occurrences in the future may impair  our ability  to
maintain or increase the quantity or quality of advertisements shown to neighbors and adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Our ability to attract and retain advertisers depends on our ability to collect and use data and develop products to enable us to effectively deliver and accurately
measure advertisements on the Nextdoor platform.

Most advertisers rely on tools that measure the effectiveness of their advertising campaigns in order to allocate their advertising spend among various formats and
platforms. If we are unable to accurately measure the effectiveness of advertising on our platform, if at all, or if we are unable to convince advertisers that our platform
should be part of a larger advertising budget, our ability to increase the demand and pricing of our advertising tools and maintain or scale our revenue may be limited or
decline.  Our  ability  to  develop  and  offer  products  that  accurately  measure  the  effectiveness  of  a  campaign  on  our  platform  is  critical  to  our  ability  to  attract  new
advertisers and retain, and increase spend from, our existing advertisers.

We are continually developing and improving our products for advertisers and such efforts have and are likely to continue to require significant time and resources
and additional investment, and in some cases, we have relied on, and may in the future rely on, third parties to provide data and technology needed to provide certain
measurement data to our advertisers. If we cannot continue to develop and improve our products for advertisers in a timely fashion, those products are not reliable, or
the measurement results are inconsistent with advertiser’s expectations or goals, our revenue could be adversely affected.

In  addition,  web  and  mobile  browser  developers,  such  as  Apple,  Microsoft  or  Google,  have  implemented  and  may  continue  to  implement  changes,  including
requiring additional user permissions, in their browser or device operating system that impair our ability to measure and improve the effectiveness of advertising on our
platform. Such changes include limiting the use of first-party and third-party cookies and related tracking technologies, such as mobile advertising identifiers, and other
changes that limit our ability to collect information that allows us to attribute neighbors’ actions on advertisers’ websites to the effectiveness of advertising campaigns
run on our platform. For example, Apple launched its Intelligent Tracking Prevention (“ITP”) feature in its Safari browser. ITP blocks some or all third-party cookies
by default on mobile and desktop and ITP has become increasingly restrictive over time. Apple’s related Privacy-Preserving Ad Click attribution, intended to preserve
some of the functionality lost with ITP, would limit cross-site and cross-device attribution, prevent measurement outside a narrowly-defined attribution window, and
prevent advertisement re-targeting and optimization. Further, Apple introduced an App Tracking Transparency framework that limits the ability of mobile applications
to request  an  iOS device’s  advertising  identifier  and may also affect  our  ability  to  track  neighbors’  actions  off  our  platform and connect  their  interactions  with  on-
platform advertising.  Similarly,  Google  has  announced that  it  plans  to  stop supporting third-party  cookies  in  its  Google  Chrome browser  and,  more  recently,  that  it
intends to limit access by mobile applications to advertising identifiers on its Android devices. These web and mobile browser developers have also implemented and
may continue  to  implement  changes  and  restrictions  in  browser  or  device  functionality  that  limit  our  ability  to  communicate  with  or  understand  the  identity  of  our
neighbors.

These restrictions and changes make it more difficult for us to provide the most relevant advertisements to our neighbors, as well as decrease our ability to measure
the effectiveness of, re-target or optimize advertising on our platform. Developers may release additional technology that further inhibits our ability to collect data that
allows us to measure the effectiveness of advertising on our platform. Any other restriction, whether by law, regulation, policy (including third-party policies), user opt-
outs or otherwise, on our ability to collect and share data which our advertisers find useful or that further reduce our ability to measure the effectiveness of advertising
on our platform, would impede our ability to attract, grow and retain advertisers. Advertisers and other third parties who provide data that helps us deliver personalized,
relevant advertising may restrict or stop sharing this data and it therefore may not be possible for us to collect this data within the platform or from another source.

We  rely  heavily  on  our  ability  to  collect  and  share  data  and  metrics  for  our  advertisers  to  help  new  and  existing  advertisers  understand  the  performance  of
advertising campaigns. If advertisers do not perceive our metrics to be accurate representations of our neighbors and neighbor engagement, or there are inaccuracies in
our metrics,
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advertisers  may  decrease  or  eliminate  allocations  of  their  budgets  or  resources  to  our  platform,  which  could  harm  our  business,  operating  results,  and  financial
condition.

If we fail to add new neighbors or retain current neighbors, or if current neighbors engage less with the Nextdoor platform, our business, operating results, and
financial condition would be adversely impacted.

The number of neighbors that use the Nextdoor platform and their level of engagement on the platform are critical to our success. We must continue to engage and
retain existing neighbors on our platform as well as attract, engage and retain new neighbors. The number of neighbors on the Nextdoor platform may not continue to
grow at the current growth rate, if at all, and it may even decline. In order to attract new neighbors, we must engage with neighbors in existing neighborhoods on our
platform  and  add  new neighborhoods  to  the  Nextdoor  platform,  both  domestically  and  internationally.  If  our  neighbor  growth  rate  slows  or  reverses,  our  financial
performance will be adversely impacted unless we can increase our engagement with our existing neighbors and our monetization efforts to offset any such reduction or
decrease in neighborhood growth rate. Moreover, we are unable to predict the continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on neighbor growth and engagement with
any certainty, and we expect these trends to continue to be subject to volatility.

If current and potential neighbors do not perceive their experience with the Nextdoor platform to be useful, the content generated on the platform to be valuable or
relevant  or  the  social  connections  with  fellow  neighbors  to  be  worthwhile,  we  may  not  be  able  to  attract  new  neighbors,  retain  existing  neighbors  or  maintain  or
increase the frequency and duration of their engagement on our platform. In addition, if our existing neighbors decrease the frequency or duration of their engagement
or the growth rate of our neighbor base slows or reverses, we may be required to incur significantly higher marketing expenses than we currently anticipate in order to
acquire new neighbors or retain current neighbors.

There are many factors that could negatively impact our ability to grow, retain and engage current and prospective neighbors, including but not limited to:

• neighbors increasing their engagement with competitor’s platforms, products or services instead of, or more frequently than, our platform;

• changes in the amount of time neighbors spend across all applications and platforms, including our platform;

• failing to introduce platform enhancements that neighbors find engaging or if we introduce new features, terms, policies or procedures, or make changes to our
platform, that are not favorably received by current or prospective neighbors;

• technical or other problems frustrating the neighbor experience, such as problems that prevent us from delivering our service in a fast and reliable manner;

• neighbors having difficulty installing, updating or otherwise accessing the Nextdoor platform on mobile devices through the app or web browsers;

• neighbor behavior on the Nextdoor platform changing, including a decrease in the quality and frequency of content shares on the platform;

• decreases in neighbor or advertiser sentiment due to questions about the quality or usefulness of our platform, concerns about the nature of content made
available on the platform, concerns related to privacy, safety, security, well-being or other factors;

• changes mandated by legislation, government and regulatory authorities, or litigation that adversely impact our platform or neighbors;

• third parties preventing their content from being displayed on the Nextdoor platform;

• changes we may make to how we promote different features on our platform;
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• initiatives designed to attract and retain neighbors and engagement are unsuccessful or discontinued, whether as a result of actions by us, third parties, or
otherwise;

• we, or other partners and companies in the industry are the subject of adverse media reports or other negative publicity;

• we are unable to combat spam, harassment, cyberbullying or other hostile, inappropriate, abusive or offensive content or usage on our platform; or

• we cannot preserve and enhance our brand and reputation as a trusted neighborhood networking community.

Any  decrease  in  neighbor  growth,  retention  or  engagement  could  render  our  service  less  attractive  to  neighbors  or  advertisers,  and  could  harm  our  business,
operating results, and financial condition. In addition, neighbor verification is a critical feature of our platform because it demonstrates that neighbors are real people
and businesses in the neighborhood they desire to join. If we were to change our verification methods, that may adversely impact our ability to add new neighbors or
retain existing neighbors.

Our business is highly competitive. Competition presents an ongoing threat to the success of our business.

We compete in almost every aspect of our business with companies that provide a variety of internet products, services, content, and online advertising, including
from Meta (including Facebook and Instagram),  Alphabet  (including Google),  Pinterest,  Snap,  and Twitter.  In  addition,  aspects  of  our  platform compete  with other
products and services, including home services, classifieds, real estate, recommendations and search engines. We compete with these companies to attract, engage, and
retain users and to attract and retain advertisers.  If  we introduce or acquire new products and services or evolve our platform in a way that subjects us to additional
competition  or  as  existing  competitors  introduce  new  products  and  services  or  evolve  their  platforms,  we  may  fail  to  engage  or  retain  neighbors  or  attract  new
neighbors, which could harm our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Some of our current and potential competitors have substantially broader product or service offerings and leverage their relationships based on other products or
services to gain additional share of advertising spend. They have large distributed sales forces and an increasing amount of control over mobile distribution channels.
Many of  these  competitors’  economies  of  scale  allow them to  have  access  to  larger  volumes of  data  and platforms that  are  used on a  more  frequent  basis  than the
Nextdoor platform, which may enable them to better understand their member base and develop and deliver more targeted advertising. Such competitors may not need
to rely on third-party data, including data provided by advertisers, to effectively target the campaigns of advertisers, which could make their advertising products more
attractive to advertisers than our platform if such third-party data ceases to be available to us, whether because of regulatory changes, privacy or cybersecurity concerns
or other reasons. If our advertisers do not believe that our value proposition is as compelling as those of our competitors, we may not be able to attract new advertisers
or retain existing ones, and our business, operating results, and financial condition could be adversely impacted.

Our competitors may develop products, features, or services that are similar to our platform or that achieve greater acceptance, may undertake more far-reaching
and  successful  product  development  efforts  or  marketing  campaigns,  or  may  adopt  more  aggressive  pricing  policies.  Some  competitors  may  gain  a  competitive
advantage relative to us in areas where we operate, including by more effectively responding to changes to third-party products and policies or by integrating competing
platforms,  applications,  or  features  into  products  they  control  such  as  mobile  device  operating  systems,  search  engines,  browsers,  or  e-commerce  platforms.  For
example,  Apple  introduced  changes  starting  with  iOS  14.5  that  limit  our  ability,  and  the  ability  of  others  in  the  digital  advertising  industry,  to  target  and  measure
advertisements effectively. Similarly, Google recently announced that it intends to limit access by mobile applications to advertising identifiers on its Android devices.
As a result, our competitors may, and in some cases will, acquire and engage neighbors or generate advertising or other revenue at the expense of our efforts, which
would negatively affect our business, operating results, and financial condition. In addition, from time to time, we may take actions in response to competitive threats,
but we cannot assure you that these actions will be successful or that they will not negatively affect our business, operating results, and financial condition.
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We believe that our ability to compete depends upon many factors both within and beyond our control, including:

• the popularity, usefulness, ease of use, performance, and reliability of our platform compared to our competitors’ products;

• the size and composition of our neighbor base;

• the engagement of neighbors with our platform and competing products;

• first- and third-party data available to us relative to our competitors;

• our ability to attract and retain advertisers who use our free or paid advertisements services;

• the timing and market acceptance of developments and enhancements to our platform or our competitors’ products;

• our safety and security efforts and our ability to protect neighbor data and to provide neighbors with control over their data;

• our ability to distribute our platform to new and existing neighbors;

• our ability to effectively monetize our platform;

• the successful implementation of platform changes, such as the migration to our proprietary ad server;

• the frequency, size, format, quality, and relative prominence of the advertisements displayed by us or our competitors;

• customer service and support efforts;

• marketing and selling efforts, including our ability to measure the effectiveness of our advertisements and to provide advertisers with a compelling return on
their investments;

• our ability to establish and maintain publisher interest in integrating their content with our platform;

• changes mandated by legislation, regulatory authorities, or litigation, some of which may have a disproportionate effect on us;

• acquisitions or consolidation within our industry, which may result in more formidable competitors;

• our ability to attract, retain, and motivate talented employees, particularly software engineers, designers, and managers;

• our ability to cost-effectively manage and grow our operations; and

• our reputation and brand strength relative to those of our competitors.

If we are not able to compete effectively, our neighbor base and level of neighbor engagement may decrease, we may become less attractive to advertisers and our
business, operating results, and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Our business is dependent on our ability to maintain and scale our product offerings and technical infrastructure, and any significant disruption in the availability
of our platform could damage our reputation, result in a potential loss of neighbors and engagement, and adversely affect our business, operating results, and
financial condition.

Our reputation and ability to attract, retain, and serve our neighbors and to scale our product offerings is dependent upon the reliable performance of our platform
and our underlying technical infrastructure. We have in the
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past  experienced,  and  may  in  the  future  experience,  interruptions  in  the  availability  or  performance  of  our  platform  from  time  to  time.  Our  systems  may  not  be
adequately designed or may not operate with the reliability and redundancy necessary to avoid performance delays or outages that could be harmful to our business. If
our platform is unavailable when neighbors attempt to access it, or if it does not load as quickly as expected, neighbors may not use our platform as often in the future,
or at all, and our ability to serve advertisements may be disrupted, any of which could adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition. As the
amount and types of information shared on our platform continues to grow and evolve, as the usage patterns of our communities continues to evolve, and as our internal
operational demands continue to grow, we will need an increasing amount of technical infrastructure, including network capacity and computing power, to continue to
satisfy our needs. If we fail to continue to effectively scale and grow our technical infrastructure to accommodate these increased demands, neighbor engagement and
revenue growth may be adversely impacted.  Moreover,  as we scale our platform and product  offerings,  including video and other  platform features,  that  may place
strain  on our  technical  infrastructure,  and we may also  be unsuccessful  in  scaling our  technical  infrastructure  to  accommodate  new product  offerings  and increased
platform usage cost-effectively. In addition, our business may be subject to interruptions, delays, or failures resulting from earthquakes, fires, floods, adverse weather
conditions,  other  natural  disasters,  power loss,  terrorism,  pandemics,  geopolitical  conflict  (including the current  conflict  in  Ukraine),  other  physical  security  threats,
cyber-attacks, or other catastrophic events. If such an event were to occur, neighbors may be subject to service disruptions or outages and we may not be able to recover
our technical infrastructure and neighbor data in a timely manner to restart or provide our services, which may adversely affect our financial results. In addition, the
substantial  majority  of  our  employees  are  based  in  our  headquarters  located  in  San Francisco,  California.  If  there  is  a  catastrophic  failure  involving  our  systems or
major disruptive event affecting our headquarters or the San Francisco area in general, we may be unable to operate our platform.

A substantial portion of our network infrastructure is provided by third parties,  including AWS. Any disruption or failure in the services we receive from these
providers  could  impact  the  availability  of  our  platform  and  could  adversely  impact  our  business,  operating  results  and  financial  condition.  Any  financial  or  other
difficulties these providers face may adversely affect our business, and we exercise little control over these providers, which increases our reliance on and vulnerability
to problems with the services they provide.

Any of these developments may result in interruptions in the availability or performance of our platform, result in neighbors ceasing to use our platform, require
unfavorable changes to our platform, delay the introduction of future products, or otherwise adversely affect our reputation, business, operating results, and financial
condition.

We have experienced rapid growth and expect to invest in our growth for the foreseeable future. If we fail to manage our growth effectively, our business, operating
results, and financial condition would be adversely affected. We also may not be able to sustain our growth in the future.

We have experienced rapid growth in recent periods and expect to continue to invest broadly across our organization to support our growth. Our revenue has grown
from $123.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $192.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. Weekly Active Users on our platform have grown
from 27.1 million for the three months ended December 31, 2020 to 35.9 million for the three months ended December 31, 2021. Moreover, the number of our full-time
employees has grown from 481 as of December 31, 2020 to 602 as of December 31, 2021. Although we have experienced rapid growth historically, we may not sustain
our current growth rates, nor can we assure you that our investments to support our growth will be successful. The growth and expansion of our business will require us
to invest significant financial and operational resources and the continuous dedication of our management team.

We plan to continue to expand our international operations into more countries in the future, which will place additional demands on our resources and operations.
The  growth  and  expansion  of  our  business  has  placed,  and  continues  to  place,  a  significant  strain  on  our  management,  operations,  and  financial  and  technical
infrastructure.  In  the  event  of  further  growth  of  our  business  or  in  the  number  of  our  third-party  relationships,  our  information  technology  systems  or  our  internal
controls and procedures may not be adequate to support our operations.

Further,  as  we  continue  to  grow,  our  business  becomes  increasingly  complex  and  requires  more  resources.  To  manage  any  future  growth  effectively,  we  must
continue to improve and expand our information technology and
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financial  infrastructure,  our  operating  and  administrative  systems  and  controls,  and  our  ability  to  manage  headcount,  capital,  and  processes  in  an  efficient  manner.
Failure  to  manage  growth  effectively  could  result  in  increases  in  costs,  difficulties  in  introducing  new  products  and  services  or  enhancing  the  platform,  loss  of
neighbors and advertisers, or other operational difficulties, any of which could adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition. For example, as
we  expand  our  product  offerings,  including  video,  we  may  not  be  able  to  do  so  cost-effectively.  Effectively  managing  our  growth  may  also  be  more  difficult  to
accomplish the longer that our employees, our advertisers, neighbors and the overall economy is impacted due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

We  may  not  be  able  to  successfully  implement  or  scale  improvements  to  our  systems,  processes,  and  controls  in  an  efficient  or  timely  manner.  Our  controls,
policies and procedures, including with respect to accounting, risk management, data privacy, cybersecurity, client on-boarding, transaction monitoring, and reliance on
manual controls, among other compliance matters, remain under development and may not be consistently applied or fully effective to identify, monitor and manage all
risks of our business as we continue to scale rapidly. In addition, our existing systems, processes, and controls may not prevent or detect all errors, omissions, or fraud.
We may also experience difficulties in managing improvements to our systems, processes, and controls or in connection with third-party software licensed to help us
with such improvements. Any future growth will continue to add complexity to our organization and require effective coordination throughout our organization. Failure
to manage any future growth effectively could result in increased costs, cause difficulty or delays in attracting new neighbors or retaining or increasing the engagement
of existing neighbors, cause difficulties in introducing new features, impact our ability to attract and retain talent or cause other operational difficulties, and any of these
difficulties would adversely impact our business, operating results, and financial condition.

If we or our industry generally are unable to provide a high-quality and secure customer experience in the various locales in which we operate, our brand could
suffer reputational damage and our business results could be harmed.

Our business is largely driven by and reliant on customer trust. The reliability of our service, the security of personally identifiable and other sensitive information
of our customers, and a responsive and effective customer support function are each critical  elements for the maintenance of this trust.  For example, any significant
interruption in either our internal or our partners’ systems could reduce customer confidence in our services. In addition, any breach, or reported breach, of our systems,
our information security policies, or legal requirements that results in a compromise of customer data or causes customers to believe their data has been compromised
could have a significant  negative effect  on our business.  Legal claims and regulatory enforcement actions could also arise in response to these events,  which would
further exacerbate erosion of customer trust and potentially result in operating losses and liabilities.

If we do not successfully anticipate market needs and develop products and services and platform enhancements that meet those needs, or if those products,
services, and platform enhancements do not gain market acceptance, our business, operating results, and financial condition will be adversely impacted.

We may not be able to anticipate future market needs or be able to improve our platform or to develop new products and services or platform enhancements to
meet such needs on a timely basis, if at all. In addition, our inability to diversify beyond our current offerings could adversely affect our business. Any new products or
services or platform enhancements that we introduce, including by way of acquisitions, may not achieve any significant degree of market acceptance from current or
potential neighbors, which would adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition. In addition, the introduction of new products or services or
platform enhancements may decrease neighbor engagement with our platform, thereby offsetting the benefit of even a successful product or service introduction, any of
which could adversely impact our business, operating results, and financial condition.

If our efforts to build strong brand identity and reputation are not successful, we may not be able to attract or retain neighbors, and our business, operating results,
and financial condition will be adversely affected.

We believe that maintaining and enhancing the “Nextdoor” brand and reputation is critical to retaining and growing neighbors and advertisers on our platform. We
anticipate that maintaining and enhancing our brand and reputation will depend largely on our continued ability to provide high-quality, relevant, reliable, trustworthy
and
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innovative  features  on  our  platform,  which  may  require  substantial  investment  and  may  not  be  successful.  We  may  need  to  introduce  new  products,  services  and
features or updates to our platform and features that require neighbors to agree to new terms of service that our neighbors do not like, which may negatively affect our
brand and reputation.

Additionally, advertisements or actions of our advertisers may affect our brand and reputation if neighbors do not think the advertisements help them accomplish
their objectives, view the advertisements as intrusive or misleading or have poor experiences with our advertisers.

Our brand and reputation may also be negatively affected by the content or actions of neighbors that are deemed to be hostile or inappropriate to other neighbors,
by the actions of neighbors acting under false or inauthentic identities, by the use of our platform to disseminate misleading or false information, the use of our platform
for fraudulent  schemes and scams,  or  by the use of  our  service  for  illicit,  illegal  or  objectionable  ends.  We also may fail  to  respond expeditiously  to the sharing of
illegal,  illicit  or  objectionable  content  on  our  service  or  objectionable  practices  by  advertisers,  or  to  otherwise  address  our  neighbors’  concerns,  which  could  erode
confidence in our brand and damage our reputation. We expect that our ability to identify and respond to this content in a timely manner may decrease as the number of
neighbors  grows,  as  the  amount  of  content  on  the  platform  increases  or  as  we  expand  our  product  and  service  offerings  on  our  platform.  Any  governmental  or
regulatory inquiry, investigation or action, including based on the appearance of illegal, illicit or objectionable content on our platform or the failure to comply with
laws and regulations, could damage our brand and reputation, regardless of the outcome.

We have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, media, legislative, governmental and regulatory scrutiny of our decisions. Any scrutiny regarding us,
including regarding our data privacy, content moderation or other practices, platform changes, platform quality, litigation or regulatory action, or regarding the actions
of our employees, neighbors, or advertisers or other issues, may harm our brand and reputation. In addition, scrutiny of other companies in our industry, including such
companies’  data  privacy,  content  moderation  or  other  practices,  could  also  have  a  negative  impact  on  our  brand  and  reputation.  These  concerns,  whether  actual  or
unfounded,  may also  deter  neighbors  or  advertisers  from using our  platform.  In  addition,  we may fail  to  adequately  address  the  needs  of  neighbors  and advertisers
which could erode confidence in our brand and damage our reputation. If we fail to promote and maintain the “Nextdoor” brand or preserve our reputation, or if we
incur excessive expenses in this effort, our business, operating results, and financial condition could be adversely impacted.

Unfavorable media coverage negatively affects our business from time to time.

Unfavorable publicity regarding us, for example regarding our privacy or cybersecurity practices, terms of service, advertising policies, platform changes, platform
quality,  litigation  or  regulatory  activity,  the  actions  of  our  advertisers,  the  use  of  our  platform for  illicit  or  objectionable  ends,  the  substance  or  enforcement  of  our
community standards, the actions of our neighbors, the quality and integrity of content shared on our platform, or the actions of other companies that provide similar
services  to  us,  has  in  the  past,  and  could  in  the  future,  adversely  affect  our  reputation.  For  example,  we  have  been,  and  may  in  the  future  be,  subject  to  negative
publicity in connection with our handling of misinformation and other illicit or objectionable uses of our platform. Any such negative publicity could have an adverse
effect on the size, engagement, and loyalty of our neighbor base and advertiser demand for advertising on our platform, which could result in decreased revenue and
adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition, and we have experienced such adverse effects to varying degrees from time to time.

Health epidemics, including the COVID-19 pandemic have had or could have an adverse impact on our business, operations, and the markets and communities in
which we, our partners and our customers operate. In addition, during the COVD-19 pandemic, we experienced an increase in neighbor growth and engagement
and there is no guarantee that we will be able to maintain our neighbor growth and engagement as the COVID-19 pandemic subsides.

The global  COVID-19 pandemic  outbreak and the various  attempts  to  contain  it  have created significant  volatility,  uncertainty  and economic disruption.  It  has
adversely affected the broader economies, financial markets, and overall demand for advertising.
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As  a  result  of  the  COVID-19  pandemic,  we  temporarily  closed  all  our  offices  (including  our  corporate  headquarters)  globally  and  implemented  certain  travel
restrictions, both of which temporarily disrupted how we operate our business, including limiting certain of our sales and marketing plans and requiring us to manage a
significant majority of our workforce remotely. Although we had begun the process of reopening certain of our offices in a phased manner, the continuing uncertainty
around  COVID-19  and  its  variants  is  causing  us  to  re-examine  and  adjust  our  approach  to  office  reopening.  Our  efforts  to  reopen  our  offices  safely  may  not  be
successful, could expose our employees to health risks, and us to associated liability, and could involve additional financial burdens.

Moreover, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the ability and willingness of advertisers to spend on the Nextdoor platform has fluctuated. For example, during
the  second  quarter  of  2020,  advertisers  reduced  their  advertising  spend  with  us  as  a  result  of  the  impact  of  the  COVID-19  pandemic  on  global  macroeconomic
conditions and on the advertising industry in general. Certain advertisers have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and have experienced supply chain issues,
rising commodity prices and inventory and labor shortages. This affects the ability and willingness of such impacted advertisers to spend on our platform. We cannot
predict how evolving events related to the COVID-19 pandemic will continue to affect neighbor and advertiser behavior in the future. The pandemic has, and could in
the future, adversely affect our business, revenue growth rate, financial performance and stock price.

Further, initially during the COVID-19 pandemic and the related shelter-in-place order, we saw an increase in neighbor growth and engagement on our platform.
As the COVID-19 pandemic evolves, that may present challenges such as neighbor growth and engagement declining or neighbor behavior changing unexpectedly and
in ways that are difficult for us to anticipate or measure, resulting in a decrease in engagement with or reduced or different usage of our platform. Our neighbor and
revenue growth rates may continue to be volatile as theCOVID-19 pandemic evolves, although we are unable to predict the duration or degree of such volatility with
any certainty. Further, given the uncertainties relating to the COVID-19 pandemic and its new variants, we may not be able to accurately measure and forecast our key
metrics, including WAUs. As a result, our engagement metrics, as well as financial and operating measures may not be indicative of results for future periods,

We are currently unable to accurately predict the full impact that the COVID-19 pandemic will have on our business, operating results, and financial condition due
to  numerous  uncertainties,  including  variants  of  the  COVID-19  virus,  any  resurgences,  the  extent  and  effectiveness  of  containment  actions  and  other  public  health
measures, the distribution and public acceptance of vaccines and treatments, and the impact of these and other factors on our employees, neighbors, advertisers. The
COVID-19 pandemic,  as  well  as  any subsequent  recovery  period,  may also  have  the  effect  of  heightening  many of  the  other  risks  described  in  this  “Risk Factors”
section.

We plan to continue expanding our international operations where we have limited operating experience and may be subject to increased business, regulatory, and
economic risks that could seriously harm our business, operating results, and financial condition.

We plan to continue expanding our business operations abroad by opening new and expanding within existing neighborhoods outside of the United States. As of
December 31, 2021, the Nextdoor platform was accessible in 11 countries (including the United States) and had over 285,000 neighborhoods. We plan to enter new
international markets where we have limited or no experience in marketing, selling, advertising and deploying our platform and related advertising. Any of our limited
experience and infrastructure in such markets, individuals’ lack of familiarity with us or our platform, the existence of alternative platforms in such jurisdictions that
offer similar products and services or the lack of a critical mass of potential neighbors in such markets may make it more difficult for us to effectively monetize any
increase  in  neighbors  in  those  markets,  and  may increase  our  costs  without  a  corresponding  increase  in  revenues.  If  we fail  to  deploy  or  manage  our  operations  in
international markets successfully, comply with international regulations or effectively monetize our platform in international markets to the same degree as we are able
to monetize our efforts within the United States, our business, operating results and financial conditions will be adversely affected. In the future, if our international
operations  increase,  or  more  of  our  expenses  are  denominated  in  currencies  other  than  the  U.S.  dollar,  our  operating  results  may  be  more  greatly  affected  by
fluctuations in the exchange rates of the currencies in which we do business. In addition, as our international
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operations and sales to advertisers continue to grow, we will be subject to a variety of risks inherent in doing business internationally, including:

• political, social and economic instability, including as a result of acts of war or terrorism;

• risks related to the legal and regulatory environment in foreign jurisdictions, including with respect to privacy and data protection, and unexpected changes in
laws, regulatory requirements, and enforcement;

• potential damage to our brand and reputation due to compliance with local laws, including potential censorship and requirements to provide neighbor
information to local authorities;

• enhanced difficulty in reviewing content on the Nextdoor platform and enforcing community standards across different languages and countries;

• fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

• foreign exchange controls and tax and other regulations and orders that might prevent us from repatriating cash earned in countries outside the United States or
otherwise limit our ability to move cash freely, and impede our ability to invest such cash efficiently;

• compliance with multiple U.S. and international tax jurisdictions and management of tax impact of global operations;

• potentially higher levels of credit risk and payment fraud;

• difficulties integrating any foreign acquisitions;

• burdens of complying with a variety of foreign laws, including laws related to taxation, content removal, data localization, data transfer, consents, payments,
and regulatory oversight;

• reduced protection for intellectual property rights in some countries;

• different regulations and practices with respect to employee/employer relationships, existence of workers’ councils and labor unions, increase in labor costs
due to high wage inflation in certain international jurisdictions, and other challenges caused by distance, language and cultural differences, making it harder to
do business in certain international jurisdictions; and

• difficulties in staffing and managing global operations and the increased travel, infrastructure, and legal compliance costs associated with multiple
international locations.

In addition, we must manage the potential conflicts between locally accepted business practices in any given jurisdiction and our obligations to comply with laws
and regulations,  including anti-money laundering laws,  anti-corruption laws or regulations  applicable  to us,  such as the U.S.  Foreign Corrupt  Practices  Act,  and the
U.K. Bribery Act 2010 (“Bribery Act”). We also must manage our obligations to comply with laws and regulations related to export controls, sanctions, and embargoes,
including regulations established by the U.S. Office of Foreign Assets Control. Government agencies and authorities have a broad range of civil and criminal penalties
they  may  seek  to  impose  against  companies  for  violations  of  anti-corruption  laws  or  regulations,  export  controls,  and  other  laws,  rules,  sanctions,  embargoes,  and
regulations. Any failure by us to comply with local business practices or the laws and regulations applicable to us in the markets in which we operate may adversely
affect  our  business,  operating  results,  and  financial  condition.  Additionally,  if  we  are  unable  to  expand  internationally  and  manage  the  complexity  of  our  global
operations successfully, our business, operating results, and financial condition could be adversely affected.

If we need additional capital in the future, it may not be available on favorable terms, if at all.

We have historically relied on outside financing to fund our operations, capital expenditures and expansion. We may require additional capital from equity or debt
financing in the future to support our growth, fund our operations or to respond to competitive pressures or strategic opportunities. We may not be able to secure timely
additional
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financing on favorable terms, if at all.  If we raise additional funds through further issuances of equity, convertible debt securities or other securities convertible into
equity, our existing stockholders, could suffer significant dilution in their percentage ownership, and any new securities that we issue could have rights, preferences and
privileges senior to those of holders of our Class A common stock. Any debt financing that we secure in the future could involve restrictive covenants relating to our
capital raising activities and other financial and operational matters, including the ability to pay dividends. This may make it more difficult for us to obtain additional
capital and to pursue business opportunities, including potential acquisitions. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing or financing on terms that are satisfactory to
us, if and when we require financing, our ability to grow or support our business and to respond to business challenges that we may face could be significantly limited.

We plan to continue to make acquisitions, which could harm our financial condition or results of operations and may adversely affect the price of our Class A
common stock.

As  part  of  our  business  strategy,  we  have  made,  and  intend  to  make  acquisitions  to  add  specialized  employees  and  complementary  companies,  products  or
technologies,  data,  and  enter  new  geographic  regions.  Our  previous  and  future  acquisitions  may  not  achieve  our  goals,  and  we  may  not  realize  benefits  from
acquisitions we make in the future. If we fail to successfully integrate acquisitions, or the personnel or technologies associated with those acquisitions, our business,
operating results, and financial condition could be harmed. Any integration process will require significant time and resources, and we may not be able to manage the
process successfully.  Our acquisition strategy may change over time and any future acquisitions we complete could be viewed negatively by neighbors,  advertisers,
investors or other parties with whom we do business. We may not successfully evaluate or utilize the acquired technology and accurately forecast the financial impact
of an acquisition, including accounting charges. We may also incur unanticipated liabilities that we assume as a result of acquiring companies. We may have to pay
cash, incur debt or issue equity securities to pay for any such acquisition, each of which could affect our financial condition or the value of our securities. In the future,
we may not be able to find other suitable acquisition candidates, and we may not be able to complete acquisitions on favorable terms, if at all. Our acquisition strategy
could require significant management attention, disrupt our business and harm our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Our business depends largely on our ability to attract and retain talented employees, including senior management. If we lose the services of Sarah Friar, our Chief
Executive Officer and President, or other members of our senior management team, we may not be able to execute on our business strategy.

Our  future  success  depends  on  our  continuing  ability  to  attract,  train,  assimilate,  and  retain  highly  skilled  personnel,  including  software  engineers  and  sales
personnel.  We  face  intense  competition  for  qualified  individuals  from  numerous  software  and  other  technology  companies.  In  addition,  competition  for  qualified
personnel, particularly software engineers, is particularly intense in the San Francisco Bay Area, where our headquarters are located. We may not be able to retain our
current key employees or attract, train, assimilate, or retain other highly skilled personnel in the future. We have incurred, and may continue to incur significant costs to
attract  and retain  highly  skilled  personnel,  and we may lose  new employees  to  our  competitors  or  other  technology companies  before  we realize  the  benefit  of  our
investment in recruiting and training them. As we move into new geographies, we will need to attract and recruit skilled personnel in those areas. If we are unable to
attract and retain suitably qualified individuals who are capable of meeting our growing technical, operational, and managerial requirements, on a timely basis or at all,
our business, operating results, and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Our  future  success  also  depends  in  large  part  on  the  continued  services  of  senior  management  and other  key personnel.  In  particular,  we are  dependent  on the
services of Sarah Friar, our Chief Executive Officer and President, who is critical to the future vision and strategic direction of our business. We rely on our leadership
team and key employees in the areas of engineering, sales and product development, design, marketing, operations, strategy, security, and general and administrative
functions. Our senior management and other key personnel are all employed on an at-will basis, which means that they could terminate their employment with us at any
time, for any reason, and without notice. We do not currently maintain key-person life insurance policies on any of our officers or employees. If we lose the services of
senior management or other key personnel, or if we are unable to attract, train, assimilate, and retain the highly skilled personnel that we need, our business, operating
results, and financial condition could be adversely affected.
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Volatility or lack of appreciation in our stock price may also affect our ability to attract and retain our key employees. Our employees may be more likely to leave
if the shares they own or the shares underlying their vested options have significantly appreciated in value relative to the original purchase price of the shares or the
exercise price of the options, or conversely, if the exercise price of the options that they hold are significantly above the market price of our Class A common stock. If
we are  unable  to  retain  our  employees,  or  if  we need to  increase  our  compensation  expenses  to  retain  our  employees,  our  business,  operating  results,  and financial
condition could be adversely affected.

Our core values may conflict with the short-term interests of our business.

We  consider  our  core  values  as  a  guide  to  the  decisions  we  make,  which  we  believe  is  essential  to  our  success  in  increasing  our  neighbor  growth  rate  and
engagement and in serving the best, long-term interests of Nextdoor and our stockholders. In the past, we have forgone, and may in the future forgo, certain expansion
or revenue opportunities that we do not believe are aligned with our core values, even if our decision may negatively impact our operating results in the short term. Our
decisions may not result in the long-term benefits that we expect, in which case our neighbor engagement, business, operating results, and financial condition could be
harmed.

Risks Related to Security and Technology

We are dependent on third-party software and service providers, including the Google Ad Manager (“GAM”) platform, for management and delivery of
advertisements on the Nextdoor platform. Any failure or interruption experienced by such third-parties, including as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, could
result in the inability of certain businesses to advertise on our platform, and adversely impact our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Currently, we are dependent on third-party software and service providers, including the GAM platform, for management and delivery of advertisements on the
Nextdoor  platform.  As  such,  the  continued  use  of  third-party  software  and  service  providers,  including  GAM,  is  critical  to  our  continued  success  and  any  service
disruptions,  adverse  changes to the terms of  use,  pricing or  related terms and conditions for  such third-party  providers’  products,  or  difficulties  with such products,
including our data usage, meeting our requirements or standards could result in the inability of certain businesses to advertise on our platform, and adversely impact our
business, operating results, and financial condition.

We rely on third-party software and service providers, including AWS, to provide systems, storage and services for our platform. Any failure or interruption
experienced by such third parties, including as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, could result in the inability of neighbors and advertisers to access or utilize our
platform, and adversely impact our business, operating results, and financial condition.

We rely on third-party software and service providers, including AWS, to provide systems, storage and services, including neighbor login authentication, for our
website. Any technical problem with, cyber-attack on or loss of access to such third parties’ systems, servers, or technologies could result in the inability of neighbors
to access the Nextdoor platform or result in the theft of neighbors’ personal information.

Because we rely on third-party technology providers in our business, we rely on the cybersecurity practices and policies adopted by these third parties. Our ability
to monitor our third-party technology providers’ cybersecurity practices is limited.

Any  significant  disruption,  limitation  or  loss  of  our  access  to  or  other  interference  with  our  use  of  AWS,  including  as  a  result  of  termination  by  AWS  of  its
agreement with us, would negatively impact our business, operating results, and financial condition. In addition, any transition of the cloud services currently provided
by AWS to another cloud services provider would be difficult to implement and would cause us to incur significant time and expense and could disrupt or degrade our
ability to deliver our products and services. The level of service provided by AWS could affect the availability or speed of our services. If neighbors or advertisers are
not able to access our platform or encounter difficulties in doing so, we may lose neighbors or advertisers, which could harm our reputation, business, operating results,
and financial condition.
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We utilize data center hosting facilities operated by AWS, located in various facilities. We are unable to serve network traffic from back-up data center services.
An unexpected disruption of services provided by these data centers could hamper our ability to handle existing or increased traffic, result in the loss of data or cause
our platform to become unavailable, which may harm our reputation, business, operating results, and financial condition.

We rely on third parties, including email providers, mobile data networks, geolocation providers, and the United States Postal Service (“USPS”) to verify our
neighbors’ addresses. Any failure or interruption experienced by such third parties, including the USPS, could result in the inability of neighbors to join our
platform, resulting in harm to our reputation and an adverse impact to our business, operating results, and financial condition.

We rely on third parties to verify our neighbors’ addresses through several methods, including but not limited to email, SMS text message, phone calls, geolocation
and mailed invitations.  For example,  we utilize email  providers,  mobile data networks,  geolocation providers and the USPS to verify neighbors’ addresses.  Address
verification is a critical feature of our platform because it demonstrates that neighbors actually live in the neighborhood they desire to join. Any failure, interruption, or
loss of access to such third parties or their software or the USPS could result in the inability of neighbors to join our platform. Our reliance on third parties makes us
vulnerable  to  any  service  interruptions,  whether  as  a  result  of  a  cyber-attack,  security  breach,  weather  or  other  events,  or  delays  in  their  operations.  Additionally,
alternative email providers, mobile data networks, geolocation providers or postal providers may be more costly to use than our current providers, including the USPS.
Any disruption in the third parties, including the USPS, could harm our neighbor growth, which in turn could make us a less attractive advertising platform and harm
our reputation, and could harm our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Technologies have been developed that can block the display of advertisements on the Nextdoor platform, which could adversely impact our business, operating
results, and financial condition.

Technologies have been developed, and will likely continue to be developed, that can block the display of advertisements on the Nextdoor platform. We generate
substantially  all  of  our revenue from advertising,  and ad-blocking technologies  may prevent  the display of certain  advertisements  appearing on our platform,  which
could  harm  our  business,  operating  results,  and  financial  condition.  Existing  ad-blocking  technologies  that  have  not  been  effective  on  our  platform  may  become
effective as we make certain platform changes, and new ad-blocking technologies may be developed in the future. More neighbors may choose to use such ad-blocking
products  to  block  or  obscure  the  display  of  advertisements  on  our  platform  if  we  are  unable  to  successfully  balance  the  amount  of  our  organic  content  and  paid
advertisements,  or  if  neighbors’ attitudes toward advertisements  become more negative.  Further,  regardless of their  effectiveness,  ad-blockers may generate concern
regarding  the  health  of  the  digital  advertising  industry,  which  could  reduce  the  value  of  digital  advertising  and  harm  our  business,  operating  results,  and  financial
condition.

Security breaches, including improper access to or disclosure of our data or our neighbors’ data, or other hacking and phishing attacks on our or third-party
systems, could harm our reputation and adversely affect our business.

We collect, store and otherwise process personal data relating to a number of individuals such as our neighbors, employees and partners, including, but not limited
to,  neighbor  contact  details,  network  details,  and  location  data.  The  evolution  of  technology  systems  introduces  unknown  and  complex  security  risks  that  can  be
unpredictable and difficult to defend against. Cyber-attacks continue to evolve in sophistication and volume, and inherently may be difficult to detect for long periods
of time. In particular, social media companies, like us, are prone to cyber-attacks by third parties seeking unauthorized access to company or user data or to disrupt their
ability to provide access to their products and services.

The trend towards working from home and using private residential networks to access the Internet, which has arisen in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and
other global economic and labor market conditions, may further exacerbate risks associated with cyberattacks and data security breaches, because we cannot guarantee
these private work environments and electronic connections to our work environment have the same robust security measures deployed in our physical offices.
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We take a variety of technical and organizational security measures and other measures to protect our data. Although we have implemented systems and processes
that are designed to protect our data and our neighbors’ data, prevent data loss, disable undesirable accounts and activities on our platform and prevent or detect security
breaches, and maintain an information security policy, such measures cannot provide absolute security, and despite measures that we have or will in the future put in
place, we may be unable to anticipate or prevent unauthorized access to such data. For example, computer malware, viruses, social engineering (predominantly spear
phishing attacks), and general hacking have become more prevalent in the industry, have occurred on our systems in the past, and are likely to occur on our systems in
the future. In addition, we regularly encounter attempts to create false or undesirable accounts or take other actions on our platform for purposes such as spamming,
spreading misinformation,  or  other  objectionable  ends.  Our efforts  to  protect  our  company data  or  the information that  we receive  may also be unsuccessful  due to
software bugs or other technical malfunctions; employee, contractor, or vendor error or malfeasance; government surveillance; or other threats that evolve.

Some third parties,  including advertisers and vendors,  may store information that we share with them on their  networks. If  these third parties fail  to implement
adequate data-security practices or fail to comply with their contractual obligations and/or, where applicable, our terms and policies, neighbor data may be improperly
accessed, used or disclosed. Even if these third parties take all the necessary precautions and comply with their applicable obligations, their networks may still suffer a
breach, which could compromise neighbor data.

Security  breaches  may cause  interruptions  to  our  platform,  degrade  the  neighbor  experience,  cause  neighbors  or  advertisers  to  lose  confidence  and  trust  in  our
platform, impair our internal systems, or result in financial harm to our company.

In addition, affected neighbors, government authorities or other third parties could initiate legal or regulatory actions against us in connection with any actual or
perceived security breaches or improper disclosure of data, which could cause us to incur significant expense and liability that may not be fully covered by insurance, if
at all, or result in orders or consent decrees forcing us to modify our business practices. Such incidents or our efforts to remediate such incidents may also result in a
decline in our active neighbor base or engagement levels and trust. In addition, such incidents could also result in the loss or misuse of such data, which could harm our
business  and reputation and diminish  our  competitive  position.  In  addition,  any of  these events  could have a  material  and adverse  effect  on our  business,  operating
results, financial condition, market acceptance of our products or revenues and may also divert development resources and increase service and support costs.

While we maintain insurance policies, our coverage may be insufficient to compensate us for all losses caused by security breaches, and any such security breaches
may result in increased costs for such insurance. We also cannot ensure that our existing cybersecurity insurance coverage will continue to be available on acceptable
terms or that the insurer will not deny coverage as to any future claim. The successful assertion of one or more large claims against us that exceed available insurance
coverage, or the occurrence of changes in our insurance policies, including premium increases or the imposition of large deductible or co-insurance requirements, could
adversely affect our reputation and our business, financial condition, and operating results.

A security breach of our system could trigger a breach of our agreements with partners that we rely on to deliver our services and expose us to significant loss.

Our  agreements  with  third  parties,  including  without  limitation  significant  agreements  with  payment  processors,  credit  card  and  debit  card  issuers  and  bank
partners, contain contractual commitments we are required to adhere to related to information security and data privacy compliance. If we experience an incident that
triggers a breach of such contractual commitments, we could be exposed to significant liability or cancellation of service under these agreements. The damages payable
to the counterparty as well as the impact to our service could be substantial and create substantial costs and loss of business.

Distribution and marketing of, and access to, our platform depends, in significant part, on a variety of third-party publishers and platforms (including mobile app
stores, third-party payment providers, computer systems, and other communication systems and service providers). If these third parties limit, prohibit or otherwise
interfere
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with or change the terms of the distribution, use or marketing of our platform in any material way, it could materially adversely affect our business, operating
results, and financial condition.

We  market  and  distribute  our  platform  (including  related  mobile  applications)  through  a  variety  of  third-party  publishers  and  distribution  channels.  Our  ability  to
market our brands on any given property or channel is subject to the policies of the relevant third party. There is no guarantee that mobile platforms will continue to
feature our platform, or that neighbors using mobile devices will continue to use our platform rather than competing products. We are dependent on the interoperability
of our platform with mobile operating systems, networks, technologies, products, and standards that we do not control, such as the Android and iOS operating systems.
Any  changes,  bugs,  or  technical  issues  in  such  systems,  or  changes  in  our  relationships  with  mobile  operating  system  partners,  handset  manufacturers,  or  mobile
carriers, or in their terms of service or policies that degrade the functionality of our platform, reduce or eliminate our ability to update or distribute our platform, give
preferential  treatment  to  competitive  products,  limit  our  ability  to  deliver,  target,  or  measure  the  effectiveness  of  advertisements,  or  charge  fees  related  to  the
distribution of our platform or our delivery of advertisements could materially adversely affect the usage of our platform on mobile devices. For example, the release of
iOS 14.5 brought  with it  a  number of  new changes,  including the need for  neighbors  using the app to  opt  in  before  their  identifier  for  advertisers  (“IDFA”) can be
accessed by an app (which came into effect in April 2021). Apple’s IDFA is a string of numbers and letters assigned to Apple devices which advertisers use to identify
app users to deliver personalized and targeted advertising. As a consequence, the ability of advertisers to accurately target and measure their advertising campaigns at
the neighbor level will depend on the opt-in rate to grant IDFA access and if the opt-in rate is low, advertisers’ ability to target and measure advertising campaigns on
the Nextdoor platform may become significantly limited. We did not observe any directly attributable negative impact on our business, operating results or financial
condition, including our revenue, revenue growth rates,  and operating income (loss),  related to the introduction of IDFA during the year ended December 31, 2021,
though we may be impacted by such changes, or other changes to third-party policies or applications in the future, and as a result, our business, operating results and
financial condition, including our revenue, revenue growth rates, and operating income (loss), could, in the future, be adversely impacted by any such changes. Further,
Apple recently introduced changes for the Apple mail client available on its operating systems, including iOS 15, iPadOS 15, and macOS 12, which have impacted, and
are expected to continue to impact our ability to measure the effectiveness of our advertisements. Similarly, Google recently announced that it intends to limit access by
mobile applications to advertising identifiers on its Android devices. As a result, advertisers may find our products less appealing and may seek alternative platforms on
which to run their advertising campaigns.

Further, certain publishers and channels have, from time to time, limited or prohibited advertisements for a variety of reasons. There is no assurance that we will
not be limited or prohibited from using certain current or prospective marketing channels in the future.  If  this were to happen in the case of a significant  marketing
channel and/or for a significant period of time, our business, operating results, and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

Our platform and internal systems rely on software and hardware that is highly technical, and any errors, bugs, or vulnerabilities in these systems, or failures to
address or mitigate technical limitations in our systems, could adversely affect our business.

Our platform and internal systems rely on software and hardware, including software and hardware developed or maintained internally and/or by third parties, that
is  highly technical  and complex.  In  addition,  our  platform and internal  systems depend on the ability  of  such software  and hardware to  store,  retrieve,  process,  and
manage immense amounts of data. The software and hardware on which we rely has contained, and will in the future contain, errors, bugs, or vulnerabilities, and our
systems are  subject  to  certain  technical  limitations  that  may compromise  our  ability  to  meet  our  objectives.  Some errors,  bugs,  or  vulnerabilities  inherently  may be
difficult  to detect  and may only be discovered after  the code has been released for external  or internal  use.  Errors,  bugs,  vulnerabilities,  design defects,  or technical
limitations  within the software and hardware on which we rely have in the past  led to,  and may in the future lead to,  outcomes including a negative experience for
neighbors and advertisers who use our platform, compromised ability of our platform to perform in a manner consistent with our terms, contracts, or policies, delayed
product introductions or enhancements, targeting, measurement, or billing errors, compromised ability to protect the data of neighbors and/or our intellectual property
or other data, or reductions in our ability to provide some or all of our services. For example, we make commitments to our neighbors as to how their data will be used
within and across our platform, and our systems are subject to errors, bugs and technical
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limitations that may prevent us from fulfilling these commitments reliably. In addition, any errors, bugs, vulnerabilities, or defects in our systems or the software and
hardware on which we rely, failures to properly address or mitigate the technical limitations in our systems, or associated degradations or interruptions of service or
failures  to  fulfill  our  commitments  to  our  neighbors,  have  in  the  past  led  to,  and  may  in  the  future  lead  to,  outcomes  including  damage  to  our  reputation,  loss  of
neighbors, loss of advertisers, loss of revenue, regulatory inquiries, litigation, or liability for fines, damages, or other remedies, any of which could adversely affect our
business, operating results, and financial condition.

Risks Related to Financial and Accounting Matters

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly, which makes our future results difficult to predict.

Our quarterly and annual operating results have fluctuated in the past and may fluctuate in the future. Additionally, we have a limited operating history with the
current scale of our business, which makes it difficult to forecast our future results and subjects us to a number of uncertainties, including our ability to plan for and
anticipate  future  growth.  As  a  result,  you  should  not  rely  upon  our  past  quarterly  and  annual  operating  results  as  indicators  of  future  performance.  We  have
encountered, and will continue to encounter, risks and uncertainties frequently experienced by growing companies in rapidly evolving markets, such as the risks and
uncertainties described herein. Our operating results in any given quarter can be influenced by numerous factors, many of which are unpredictable or are outside of our
control, including, but not limited to:

• our ability to generate revenues from our platform;

• our ability to acquire, retain, and grow our neighbors and neighbor engagement on our platform;

• ability to attract and retain advertisers;

• ability to recognize revenue or collect payments from advertisers in a particular period;

• fluctuations in spending by our advertisers due to seasonality, episodic regional or global events, including the COVID-19 pandemic, or other factors;

• fluctuations in internet usage generally;

• the number, prominence, size, format, quality and relevancy of advertisements shown to neighbors;

• the success of technologies designed to block the display of advertisements;

• changes to third-party policies or applications that limit our ability to deliver, target, or measure the effectiveness of advertising, including changes by mobile
operating system and browser providers such as Apple and Google;

• the pricing of our advertisements;

• the timing, cost of and mix of new and existing sales and marketing and promotional efforts;

• the availability of our platform and app on mobile devices and other third-party platforms;

• changes to our platform or the development and introduction of new products or services by our competitors;

• changes in advertising industry association rules and standards that limit our ability to deliver, target or measure the effectiveness of advertising, such as the
Network Advertising Initiative, and Interactive Advertising Bureau;

• neighbor behavior or platform changes that may reduce traffic to features of the platform that we monetize;
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• system failures, disruptions, breaches of security or privacy, whether on our platform or on those of third parties, and the costs associated with any such
breaches and remediation;

• negative publicity associated with our platform, including as a result of content on our platform, security breaches and neighbor privacy concerns that may
result in advertisers reducing or eliminating their spend with us;

• health epidemics, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, influenza, and other highly communicable diseases or viruses;

• the timing of incurring additional expenses, such as increases in sales and marketing or research and development, including as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic;

• adverse litigation judgments, settlements, or other litigation-related costs;

• changes in the legislative or regulatory environment, including with respect to privacy and cybersecurity, or actions by governments or regulators, including
fines, orders, or consent decrees;

• changes in U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and

• changes in domestic and global business and macroeconomic conditions, including as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The impact of one or more of the foregoing and other factors may cause our operating results to vary significantly. As such, quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our
operating results may not be meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indication of future performance. If our quarterly and annual operating results fall below
the expectations of investors or securities analysts, the price of our Class A common stock could decline substantially. If we fail to meet or exceed the expectations of
investors or securities analysts, then the trading price of our Class A common stock could fall substantially, and we could face costly lawsuits, including securities class
action  suits.  Furthermore,  any  quarterly  or  annual  fluctuations  in  our  operating  results  may,  in  turn,  cause  the  price  of  our  Class  A  common  stock  to  fluctuate
substantially.

In  addition,  we  believe  that  our  rapid  growth  may  understate  the  potential  seasonality  of  our  business.  As  our  revenue  growth  rate  slows,  we  expect  that  the
seasonality  in  our  business  may  become  more  pronounced  and  may  in  the  future  cause  our  operating  results  to  fluctuate.  For  example,  advertising  spending  is
traditionally  seasonally  strong  in  the  fourth  quarter  of  each  year  and  we  believe  that  this  seasonality  affects  our  quarterly  results,  which  generally  reflect  higher
sequential revenue growth from the third to fourth quarter compared to sequential revenue growth from the fourth quarter to the subsequent first quarter. In addition,
global  economic concerns continue to  create  uncertainty  and unpredictability  and add risk to  our  future  outlook.  An economic downturn in any particular  region in
which we do business or globally could result in reductions in revenue, as our advertisers reduce their advertising budgets, and other adverse effects that could harm our
business, operating results, and financial condition.

Certain of our market opportunity and key metric estimates could prove to be inaccurate, and any real or perceived inaccuracies may harm our reputation and
negatively affect our business.

The  estimates  discussed  herein  are  subject  to  significant  uncertainty  and  are  based  on  assumptions  that  may  not  prove  to  be  accurate.  The  key  assumptions
underlying our estimates include our ability to scale new neighbor growth, our ability to grow engagement by our existing neighbor base and our ability to increase
monetization of our platform. These assumptions involve risks and uncertainties,  including, but not limited to,  those described in this “Risk Factors” section, which
could cause actual  results to differ materially from our estimates.  Unfavorable changes in any of these or other assumptions,  most of which are beyond our control,
could materially and adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition and result in our estimates being materially different than actual results.
Market opportunity estimates, whether obtained from third-party sources or developed internally, are subject to significant uncertainty and are based on assumptions
that may not prove to be accurate. In particular, our estimates regarding our market penetration in new and existing markets are difficult to predict.
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We regularly review key business and other metrics, including Weekly Average Users (“WAUs”), Verified Users and Average Revenue per Weekly Active User
(“ARPU”)  and  other  measures  to  evaluate  growth  trends,  measure  our  performance,  and  make  strategic  decisions.  These  key  metrics  are  calculated  using  internal
company data derived from our analytics platform and have not been validated by an independent third party and there are inherent challenges in such measurements.
For example, Apple recently introduced changes for the Apple mail client available on its operating systems, including iOS 15, iPadOS 15, and macOS 12, which have
limited, and are expected to continue to limit, our ability to measure user engagement with our emails containing monetizable content for users that use the Apple email
client. We expect these changes to affect our ability to calculate WAUs, a key business metric. Following the introduction of these changes, we will be required to rely
on estimates based on past user behavior and behavior of users engaging with our monetizable content on email clients other than the Apple email client in order to
determine the portion of our WAU figure relating to users that engage solely with emails with monetizable content, which may impact the effectiveness of our analytics
platform, as well as the accuracy of our WAU calculations. If we fail to maintain an effective analytics platform, our key metrics calculations may be inaccurate, and
we may not be able to identify those inaccuracies. Our key business metrics may also be impacted by compliance or fraud-related bans, technical incidents, or false or
spam accounts in existence on our platform. We regularly deactivate accounts that violate our terms of service, and exclude these accounts from the calculation of our
key business metrics; however, we may not succeed in identifying and removing all such accounts from our platform. If our metrics are incorrect or provide incomplete
information about neighbors and their behavior, we may make inaccurate conclusions about our business.

We regularly review and may adjust our processes for calculating our estimates to improve their accuracy. Our estimates may differ from estimates published by
third parties or from similarly titled metrics of our competitors due to differences in methodology. If investors or analysts do not perceive our estimates to be accurate
representations of our business, or if we discover material inaccuracies in our estimates, our reputation, business, operating results, and financial condition would be
adversely affected.

We have a history of net losses and may experience net losses in the future and we cannot assure you that we will achieve or sustain profitability. If we cannot
achieve and sustain profitability, our business, financial condition, and operating results will be adversely affected.

We have experienced significant net losses each year since we began operations in 2007, including net losses of $(95.3) million and $(75.2) million for the years
ended  December  31,  2021  and  2020,  respectively.  We  have  an  accumulated  deficit  of  $480.3  million  as  of  December  31,  2021.  We  anticipate  that  our  operating
expenses and capital expenditures will increase substantially in the foreseeable future as we continue to invest in acquiring additional neighbors, increasing engagement
on  our  platform,  increasing  monetization  on  our  platform,  expanding  our  platform  and  operations  internationally,  hiring  additional  team  members,  developing  and
enhancing our platform, marketing and sales, and enhancing our infrastructure. Our expansion efforts may prove more expensive than we anticipate, and we may not
succeed in increasing our revenues sufficiently to offset these higher expenses. Given the significant operating and capital expenditures associated with our business
plan,  we  expect  to  continue  to  incur  net  losses  for  the  foreseeable  future  and  cannot  assure  you  that  we  will  be  able  to  achieve  profitability.  If  we  do  achieve
profitability, it cannot be certain that we will be able to sustain or increase such profitability.

Our ability to use our U.S. federal and state net operating losses to offset future taxable income may be subject to certain limitations which could subject our
business to higher tax liability.

As of December 31, 2021, we had gross U.S. federal net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards of approximately $390.0 million and gross state NOL carryforwards
of approximately $226.0 million, which if not utilized, will begin to expire for federal and state income tax purposes beginning in 2028. To the extent that we continue
to generate taxable losses, unused losses will carry forward to offset future taxable income, if any. Under the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”), as modified
by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, unused U.S. federal NOLs generated in tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, will not expire and
may be carried forward indefinitely, but the deductibility of such federal NOLs in taxable years beginning after December 31, 2020, is limited to 80% of current year
taxable income.
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Under Section 382 of the Code, and corresponding provisions of state law, if a corporation that undergoes an “ownership change,” which is generally defined as a
greater than 50 percentage point change (by value) in its equity ownership by certain stockholders over a three-year period, the corporation’s ability to utilize its pre-
change NOL carryforwards to offset its post-change income or taxes may be limited. We recently completed a Section 382 study that supports that our use of NOLs
will not be subject to limitation.

We may experience ownership change(s) in the future as a result of subsequent shifts in our stock ownership, some of which may be outside our control. Therefore,
it is possible that such an ownership change could limit the amount of NOLs we can use to offset future taxable income. Our current NOL carryforwards, and any NOL
carryforwards of companies we have acquired, may be subject to limitations, thereby increasing our overall tax liability. Our NOL carryforwards may also be impaired
under similar provisions of state law. We have recorded a full valuation allowance related to our U.S. federal and state NOL carryforwards and other net deferred tax
assets due to the uncertainty of the ultimate realization of the future benefits  of those assets.  Our NOL carryforwards may expire unutilized or underutilized,  which
could prevent us from offsetting future taxable income. Any future changes in U.S. tax laws in respect of the utilization of NOL carryforwards may further affect the
limitation in future years. In addition, there may be periods during which the use of NOL carryforwards is suspended or otherwise limited at the state level, which could
also impact our ability to utilize NOL carryforwards. As a result, even if we attain profitability, we may be unable to use all or a material portion of our NOLs, which
could adversely affect our business, operating results, financial condition, and cash flows.

Our financial results may be adversely affected by changes in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and our financial estimates may be
different from our financial results.

GAAP is  subject  to  interpretation  by  the  Financial  Accounting  Standards  Board,  the  American  Institute  of  Certified  Public  Accountants,  the  SEC and  various
bodies  formed  to  promulgate  and  interpret  appropriate  accounting  principles.  A  change  in  these  principles  or  interpretations  could  harm  our  revenue  and  financial
results, and could affect the reporting of transactions completed before the announcement of a change.

If currency exchange rates fluctuate substantially in the future, our operating results, which are reported in U.S. dollars, could be adversely affected.

As  we  continue  to  expand  our  international  operations,  we  will  become  more  exposed  to  the  effects  of  fluctuations  in  currency  exchange  rates.  A  substantial
majority of our revenues to date have been denominated in U.S. dollars and, therefore, we have not historically been subject to foreign currency risk. In addition, as we
continue to expand internationally, we expect to incur increased expenses for employee compensation and other operating expenses at non-U.S. locations in the local
currency. Fluctuations in the exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and other currencies could result in the dollar equivalent of such expenses being higher. This could
have a negative impact on our operating results. Although we may in the future decide to undertake foreign exchange hedging transactions to cover a portion of our
foreign currency exchange exposure, we currently do not hedge our exposure to foreign currency exchange risks.

We may have greater than anticipated tax liabilities, which could harm our business, revenue and financial results.

We operate in a number of tax jurisdictions globally, including in the U.S. at the federal, state and local levels, and in many foreign countries, and plan to continue
to expand the scale of our operations in the future. We are subject to review and potential audit by a number of U.S. and non-U.S. tax authorities. A change in law or in
our  global  operations  could  result  in  higher  effective  tax  rates,  reduced  cash  flows  and  lower  overall  profitability.  In  particular,  our  intercompany  relationships  are
subject  to  complex  transfer  pricing  regulations  administered  by  taxing  authorities  in  various  jurisdictions.  Significant  judgment  is  required  in  determining  our
worldwide provision for income taxes and other tax liabilities.

We are subject to various indirect non-income taxes, such as payroll, sales, use, value-added and goods and services taxes in the United States and various foreign
jurisdictions, and we may face indirect tax audits in various U.S. and foreign jurisdictions. In certain jurisdictions, we collect and remit indirect taxes. However, tax
authorities may question, challenge or disagree with our calculation, reporting or collection of taxes and may require us to
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collect taxes in jurisdictions in which we do not currently do so or to remit additional taxes and interest, and could impose associated penalties and fees. A successful
assertion by one or more tax authorities requiring us to collect taxes in jurisdictions in which we do not currently do so or to collect additional taxes in a jurisdiction in
which we currently collect taxes, could result in substantial tax liabilities, including taxes on past sales, as well as penalties and interest, could discourage neighbors
from utilizing our platform or could otherwise harm our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Although we do not currently incur significant tax costs due to our history of operating losses, our tax liabilities may increase if our profitability increases in the
future.  In  addition,  our  effective  tax  rate  may  change  from  year  to  year  based  on  changes  in  the  mix  of  activities  and  income  allocated  or  earned  among  various
jurisdictions,  tax  laws  and  the  applicable  tax  rates  in  these  jurisdictions  (including  future  tax  laws  that  may  become  material),  tax  treaties  between  countries,  our
eligibility for benefits under those tax treaties and the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such changes could result in an increase in the effective tax rate
applicable to all or a portion of our income, which would negatively affect our financial results.
Risks Related to Legal and Regulatory Matters

We may be liable as a result of content or information that is published or made available on our platform.

We are subject to many U.S. federal and state and foreign laws and regulations that involve matters central to our business, including laws and regulations that
involve data privacy and protection, intellectual  property (including copyright and patent laws), content regulation, rights of publicity, advertising, marketing, health
and safety, competition, protection of minors, consumer protection, taxation, anti-bribery, anti-money laundering and corruption, economic or other trade prohibitions
or sanctions or securities law compliance. Although content on our platform is typically generated by third parties, and not by us, we may be sued or face regulatory
liability  for  claims  relating  to  personal  information,  content  or  information  that  is  made  available  on  our  service,  including  claims  of  defamation,  disparagement,
intellectual property infringement, breach of our privacy commitments, breach of privacy and data security laws, or other alleged damages could be asserted against us.
Our systems, tools and personnel that help us to proactively detect potentially policy-violating or otherwise inappropriate content cannot identify all such content on our
service, and in many cases this content will appear on the Nextdoor platform. This risk may increase as we develop and increase the use of certain features, such as
video,  for  which  identifying  such  content  and  obtaining  appropriate  consents  is  challenging.  Additionally,  some  controversial  content  may  not  be  banned  on  the
Nextdoor  platform and,  even  if  it  is  not  featured  in  advertisements  to  neighbors,  it  may  still  appear  in  the  newsfeed  or  elsewhere.  This  risk  is  enhanced  in  certain
jurisdictions outside of the United States where our protection from liability for content published on our platform by third parties may be unclear and where we may be
less protected under local laws than we are in the United States. Further, if law and/or policy-violating content is found on the Nextdoor platform, or we do not give
appropriate  notice  or  obtain  appropriate  consents,  we  may  be  in  violation  of  the  terms  of  certain  of  our  key  agreements,  which  may  result  in  termination  of  the
agreement and potentially payment of damages in some cases. We could incur significant costs in investigating and defending such claims and, if we are found liable,
damages. If any of these events occur, our business, operating results, and financial condition could be harmed.

While we rely on a variety of statutory and common-law frameworks and defenses, including those provided by the DMCA, the CDA, the fair-use doctrine in the
United  States  and  the  Electronic  Commerce  Directive  in  the  European  Union,  differences  between  statutes,  limitations  on  immunity,  requirements  to  maintain
immunity, and moderation efforts in the many jurisdictions in which we operate may affect our ability to rely on these frameworks and defenses, or create uncertainty
regarding liability for information or content uploaded by neighbors and advertisers or otherwise contributed by third-parties to our platform.

Actions by governments that restrict access to the Nextdoor platform in their countries, or that otherwise impair our ability to sell advertising in their countries,
could substantially harm our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Governments  may  seek  to  censor  content  available  on  the  Nextdoor  platform  or  restrict  access  to  the  platform  from  their  country  entirely,  or  impose  other
restrictions that may affect the accessibility of the platform in their country for an extended period of time or indefinitely. In addition, government authorities in other
countries may seek to restrict neighbors’ access to the platform if they consider us to be in violation of their laws or a threat to
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public safety or for  other reasons.  It  is  possible that  government authorities  could take action that  impairs  our ability  to sell  advertising,  collect,  process,  use,  store,
disclose  or  transfer  data  including  in  countries  where  access  to  our  consumer-facing  platform may be  blocked  or  restricted.  In  the  event  that  content  shown on the
Nextdoor platform is subject to censorship, access to the platform is restricted, in whole or in part, in one or more countries, or other restrictions are imposed on the
platform, or our competitors are able to successfully penetrate new geographic markets or capture a greater share of existing geographic markets that we cannot access
or where we face other restrictions, our ability to retain or increase our neighbor base, neighbor engagement, or the level of advertising by advertisers may be adversely
affected, we may not be able to maintain or grow our revenue as anticipated, and our financial results could be adversely affected.

Our business is subject to complex and evolving U.S. and foreign laws, regulations, and industry standards, many of which are subject to change and uncertain
interpretation, which uncertainty could harm our business, operating results, and financial condition.

We are subject to many U.S. federal and state and foreign laws, regulations and industry standards that involve matters central to our business, including laws and
regulations  that  involve  data  privacy,  data  security,  intellectual  property  (including  copyright  and  patent  laws),  content,  rights  of  publicity,  advertising,  marketing,
competition, protection of minors, consumer protection, taxation, and telecommunications. These laws and regulations are constantly evolving and may be interpreted,
applied,  created,  or  amended,  in  a  manner  that  could  harm  our  business.  In  addition,  the  introduction  of  new  products,  expansion  of  our  activities  in  certain
jurisdictions, or other actions that we may take may subject the company to additional laws, regulations, or other government scrutiny.

We rely on a variety of statutory and common-law frameworks and defenses relevant to the content available on the Nextdoor platform, including the DMCA, the
CDA  and  the  fair-use  doctrine  in  the  United  States,  and  the  Electronic  Commerce  Directive  in  the  European  Union.  However,  each  of  these  statutes  is  subject  to
uncertain  or  evolving  judicial  interpretation  and  regulatory  and  legislative  amendments.  For  example,  in  the  United  States,  laws  such  as  the  CDA,  which  have
previously  been  interpreted  to  provide  substantial  protection  to  interactive  computer  service  providers,  may  change  and  become  less  predictable  or  unfavorable  by
legislative  action  or  juridical  interpretation.  There  have  been  various  federal  and  state  legislative  efforts  to  restrict  the  scope  of  the  protections  available  to  online
platforms under the CDA, in particular with regards to Section 230 of the CDA, and current protections from liability for third-party content in the United States could
decrease or change. We could incur significant costs investigating and defending such claims and, if we are found liable, significant damages.

The European Union is also reviewing the regulation of digital services, and has introduced the DSA, a package of legislation intended to update the liability and
safety  rules  for  digital  platforms,  products,  and services,  which could negatively  impact  the  scope of  the  limited  immunity  provided by the  E-Commerce  Directive.
Some European jurisdictions and the United Kingdom have also proposed or intend to pass legislation that imposes new obligations and liabilities on platforms with
respect to certain types of harmful content. While the scope and timing of these proposals are currently uncertain, if the rules, doctrines or currently available defenses
change,  if  international  jurisdictions refuse to apply similar  protections that  are currently available  in the United States or the European Union or if  a  court  were to
disagree with our application of those rules to our service, we could be required to expend significant resources to try to comply with the new rules or incur liability,
and our business, operating results, and financial condition could be harmed. Similarly, Australia’s Online Safety Act 2021 recently went into effect and may impose
new obligations and liabilities on platforms with respect to certain types of harmful content. While regulations to implement the law are still being promulgated and are
uncertain,  the  regulations  could require  us  to  expend resources  to  try  to  comply with  the  new regulations  or  incur  liability,  and our  business,  operating results,  and
financial condition could be harmed.

We  collect,  store,  use,  share  and  otherwise  process  data,  some  of  which  contains  personal  information  about  individuals  including,  but  not  limited  to,  our
neighbors, employees and partners including, contact details, network details, and location data. We are therefore subject to U.S. (federal, state, local) and foreign laws
and regulations  regarding data  privacy and security  and the processing of  personal  information and other  data  from neighbors,  employees  or  business  partners.  The
regulatory  framework  for  privacy,  information  security,  data  protection  and  processing  worldwide  and  interpretations  of  existing  laws  and  regulations  is  likely  to
continue to be uncertain and current or future legislation or regulations in the United States and other jurisdictions, or new interpretations of
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existing laws and regulations, could significantly restrict or impose conditions on our ability to process data and increase notice or consent requirements before we can
utilize advertising technologies.

We have internal and publicly posted policies regarding our collection, processing, use, disclosure, deletion and security of information. Although we endeavor to
comply with our policies and documentation, we may at times fail to do so or be accused of having failed to do so. The publication of our privacy policies and other
documentation  that  provide  commitments  about  data  privacy  and  security  can  subject  us  to  potential  actions  if  they  are  found to  be  deceptive,  unfair,  or  otherwise
misrepresent our actual practices, which could materially and adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition.

In the United States, we are subject to numerous federal, state and local data privacy and security laws and regulations governing the processing of information
about individuals. For example, the CCPA, which took effect in January 2020, establishes certain transparency obligations and creates new data privacy rights for users,
including  rights  to  access  and  delete  their  personal  information  as  well  as  opt-out  of  certain  sales  or  transfers  of  their  personal  information.  The law also  prohibits
covered  businesses  from discriminating  against  consumers  (for  example,  charging  more  for  services)  for  exercising  any  of  their  CCPA rights.  The  CCPA imposes
statutory  damages  for  certain  violations  of  the  law as  well  as  a  private  right  of  action  for  certain  data  breaches  that  result  in  the  loss  of  personal  information.  This
private right of action is expected to increase the likelihood of, and risks associated with, data breach litigation. It remains unclear how various provisions of the CCPA
will be interpreted and enforced. Additionally, California voters approved a new privacy law, the CPRA, which becomes effective January 1, 2023 (with a look back to
January 1, 2022). The CPRA will significantly modify the CCPA, including by expanding consumers’ rights and establishing a new state agency that will be vested
with  authority  to  implement  and  enforce  the  CPRA.  For  example,  the  CPRA and  the  CCPA may  lead  other  states  to  pass  comparable  legislation,  with  potentially
greater penalties, and more rigorous compliance requirements relevant to our business. Virginia enacted the VCDPA and Colorado enacted CDPA, respectively, which
may impose obligations similar to or more stringent than those we may face under other data protection laws. Compliance with the CPRA, the CCPA, the VCDPA, the
CDPA and any newly enacted privacy and data security laws or regulations may be challenging and cost- and time-intensive, and may require us to modify our data
processing practices and policies and to incur substantial costs and potential liability in an effort to comply with such legislation.

In the EEA, we are subject to the GDPR and in the United Kingdom, we are subject to the United Kingdom data protection regime consisting primarily of the UK
GDPR and the UK Data Protection Act  2018,  in  each case in  relation to  our  collection,  control,  processing,  sharing,  disclosure  and other  use of  data  relating  to  an
identifiable living individual (personal data). The GDPR, and national implementing legislation in EEA member states and the United Kingdom, imposes a strict data
protection compliance regime, grants new rights for data subjects in regard to their personal data (including the right to be “forgotten” and the right to data portability)
and enhances current rights (e.g., data subject access requests).

We  are  also  subject  to  European  Union  rules  with  respect  to  cross-border  transfers  of  personal  data  out  of  the  EEA  and  the  United  Kingdom.  Recent  legal
developments in Europe have created complexity and uncertainty regarding transfers of personal data from the EEA and the United Kingdom to the United States. On
July  16,  2020,  the  Court  of  Justice  of  the  European  Union  (the  “CJEU”)  invalidated  the  EU-U.S.  Privacy  Shield  Framework  (the  “Privacy Shield”)  under  which
personal data could be transferred from the EEA to U.S. entities who had self-certified under the Privacy Shield scheme. While the CJEU upheld the adequacy of the
standard contractual clauses (a standard form of contract approved by the EU Commission as an adequate personal data transfer mechanism, and potential alternative to
the Privacy Shield), it made clear that reliance on them alone may not necessarily be sufficient in all circumstances. Use of the standard contractual clauses must now
be assessed on a case-by-case basis, taking into account the legal regime applicable in the destination country, in particular applicable surveillance laws and rights of
individuals and additional measures and/or contractual provisions may need to be put in place, however, the nature of these additional measures is currently uncertain.
The CJEU went on to state that if a competent supervisory authority believes that the standard contractual clauses cannot be complied with in the destination country
and  the  required  level  of  protection  cannot  be  secured  by  other  means,  such  supervisory  authority  is  under  an  obligation  to  suspend  or  prohibit  that  transfer.  To
safeguard data transfers from the EEA to other jurisdictions, including the USA, we currently utilize standard contractual contracts approved by the EU Commission.
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This CJEU decision may result in different EEA data protection regulators applying differing standards for the transfer of personal data from the EEA to the United
States, and even require ad hoc verification of measures taken with respect to data flows. Therefore, as a result of this CJEU decision, we may be required to review,
amend and take additional steps to legitimize impacted personal data transfers. As supervisory authorities issue further guidance on personal data export mechanisms,
including  circumstances  where  the  standard  contractual  clauses  cannot  be  used,  and/or  start  taking  enforcement  action,  we  could  suffer  increased  costs  to  ensure
compliance as well as additional complaints and/or regulatory investigations or fines, and/or if we are otherwise unable to transfer personal data between and among
countries and regions in which we operate, it could affect the manner in which we provide our services, the geographical location or segregation of our relevant systems
and  operations,  and  could  adversely  affect  our  business,  financial  condition  and  results  of  operations.  The  EU  Commission  has  also  published  revised  standard
contractual  clauses  for  data  transfers  from  the  EEA:  the  revised  clauses  must  be  used  for  relevant  new  data  transfers  from  September  27,  2021;  existing  standard
contractual clauses arrangements must be migrated to the revised clauses by December 27, 2022. Where we continue to rely on standard contractual clauses, we will
need  to  implement  the  revised  standard  contractual  clauses,  in  relation  to  relevant  existing  contracts  and  vendor/customer  arrangements,  within  the  relevant  time
frames.  There is some uncertainty around whether the revised clauses can be used for all  types of data transfers,  particularly whether they can be relied on for data
transfers to non-EEA entities subject to the GDPR.

The relationship between the United Kingdom and the European Union in relation to certain aspects of data protection law remains unclear, and it is unclear how
U.K. data protection laws and regulations, including those regarding data transfers to and from the United Kingdom, will develop in the medium to longer term. For
example, while the EU Commission has adopted an adequacy decision in favor of the United Kingdom, enabling data transfers from EU member states to the United
Kingdom  without  additional  safeguards,  the  decision  will  automatically  expire  in  June  2025  unless  the  EU  Commission  re-assesses  and  renews/extends  it.  These
developments and this uncertainty will lead to additional costs and increase our overall risk exposure.

We  are  also  subject  to  evolving  E.U.  and  U.K.  privacy  laws  on  cookies  and  e-marketing.  In  the  E.U.  and  the  U.K.,  regulators  are  increasingly  focusing  on
compliance with current national laws that implement the European Directive 2002/58/EC (the “ePrivacy Directive”). The ePrivacy Directive may be replaced by an
EU regulation known as the ePrivacy Regulation that will significantly increase fines for non-compliance. In the E.U. and the U.K., informed consent is required for the
placement of certain cookies or similar technologies on a user’s device and for direct electronic marketing and (under the UK GDPR and the GDPR) valid consent is
tightly defined, including, a prohibition on pre-checked consents and, in the context of cookies, a requirement to obtain separate consents for each type of cookie or
similar technology. While the text of the ePrivacy Regulation is still under development, a recent European court decision and regulators’ recent guidance are driving
increased attention to cookies and tracking technologies. If regulators start to enforce the strict approach in recent guidance, this could lead to substantial costs, require
significant systems changes, limit the effectiveness of our marketing activities, divert the attention of our technology personnel, adversely affect our margins, increase
costs  and subject  us to additional  liabilities.  Regulation of cookies and similar  technologies,  and any decline of cookies or  similar  online tracking technologies as a
means to identify and potentially  target  users,  may lead to broader  restrictions  and impairments  on our marketing and personalization activities  and may negatively
impact our efforts to understand users.

In Canada, we are subject to the Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act (“PIPEDA”) which governs the collection, use and disclosure of
Canadian residents’ personal information in the course of commercial activities. PIPEDA gives individuals, among other things, the right to access information we hold
about them and to challenge the accuracy and completeness of that information. There is debate over the meaning of a number of PIPEDA clauses, including the role of
implied  consent.  On  November  17,  2020,  the  government  of  Canada  introduced  Bill  C-11,  also  known as  the  Digital  Charter  Implementation  Act,  2020  (“DCIA”)
which had significantly increased privacy protections for Canadian residents (such as the rights to data mobility, disposal and the right to be forgotten), and replated a
portion of PIPEDA. It also created an independent tribunal for assessing infringements, a private right of action, and substantially increased penalties for infringement
up to  a  maximum of  the  greater  of  $10 million  or  3% of  global  revenue.  Although DCIA was  not  passed  before  the  dissolution  of  parliament,  DCIA may provide
insight  into  what  privacy  reform  could  look  like  in  the  next  Canadian  parliament  session. Even  if  a  similar  bill  is  not  passed  at  the  parliament  level,  there  is  the
possibility of new provincial privacy
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legislation in Ontario and other provinces. While we endeavor to comply with PIPEDA, however, the meaning of some of its clauses are unclear, and we may not have
correctly implemented them. Furthermore, increased privacy regulation in Canada could require us to expend resources to try to comply with the new regulations or
incur liability, and our business, operating results, and financial condition could be harmed.

We are also subject to, among other laws, Australia’s “Privacy Act 1988” (“Privacy Act”) and Australian Privacy Principles (“APPs”), which require us to, among
other things: (a) establish a governance framework for managing privacy and data protection; (b) give individual the option of not identifying themselves or using a
pseudonym (unless certain exceptions apply); (c) destroy or de-identify unsolicited personal information that was not obtained for a purpose reasonably necessary or
directly  to  related  to  our  business  activities;  and  (d)  not  transfer  or  disclose  personal  information  to  a  party  outside  of  Australia  unless  consent  is  obtained,  the
destination country has substantially similar privacy protections to Australia, or the overseas recipient contractually agrees to comply with the APPs. Non-compliance
with the Privacy Act can result in penalties of up to AU $2.22 million per contravention and a requirement to remediate areas of non-compliance.

The  Australian  Government  recently  released  a  proposed  amendment  to  the  Privacy  Act  called  the  Online  Privacy  Bill  (“Online  Privacy  Bill”)  which  would
increase the enforcement powers of the Australian Information Commissioner, implement an online privacy code that will apply to social media providers and online
platforms with more than 2.5 million or more annual end users in Australia, implement more stringent obligations regarding the notice, collection and user of personal
information, introduce new obligations such as a consumer right to request that companies cease using their personal information, and increase penalties to an amount
not exceeding the greater of AU $10 million, three times the value of the benefit obtained from the conduct, or, if the value cannot be determined, 10% of the domestic
annual revenue of the company. The Online Privacy Bill was open for public responses through December 6, 2021, and the comments are now under review.

The Australian Government also circulated a discussion paper (“Discussion Paper”) seeking further submissions on up to 67 proposals to amend the Privacy Act
and introduce amendments to Australian privacy law focused on increasing enforcement, empowering individuals and aligning Australia with global privacy regimes.
Suggested  amendments  include  the  potential  introduction  of  torts  of  privacy  that  are  enforceable  by  individuals,  new  rights  for  individuals  to  object  or  withdraw
consent regarding the processing and use of their personal information. The Discussion Paper was open for comment through January 10, 2022, and the comments are
now under review. As in other countries, increased privacy regulation in Australia could require us to expend resources to try to comply with the new regulations or
incur liability, and our business, operating results, and financial condition could be harmed.

While  we  have  put  in  efforts  to  comply  with  these  regulations,  the  uncertainty  surrounding  enforcement  and  changing  privacy  landscapes  could  change  our
compliance status. Similarly, there are a number of legislative proposals in the European Union, the United States, at both the federal and state level, as well as other
jurisdictions that could impose new obligations or limitations in areas affecting our business.

The costs of complying with these laws and regulations, which in some cases can be enforced by private parties in addition to government entities, are high and
likely to increase in the future, particularly as the degree of regulation increases, our business grows and our geographic scope expands. The impact of these laws and
regulations may disproportionately affect our business in comparison to our peers in the technology sector that have greater resources. Even though we communicate
with  lawmakers  and  regulators  in  countries  and  regions  in  which  we conduct  business,  and  despite  having  a  dedicated  policy  team to  monitor  legal  and  regulatory
developments, any failure or perceived failure of compliance on our part to comply with the laws and regulations may subject us to significant liabilities or penalties, or
otherwise adversely  affect  our  business,  financial  condition or  operating results.  Furthermore,  it  is  possible  that  certain  governments  may seek to block or  limit  our
products or otherwise impose other restrictions that may affect the accessibility or usability of any or all our products for an extended period of time or indefinitely.
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We could be involved in legal disputes that are expensive and time consuming, and, if resolved adversely, could harm our business, operating results, and financial
condition.

We are currently involved in, and may in the future be involved in, actual and threatened legal proceedings, claims, investigations and government inquiries arising
in the ordinary course of our business, including intellectual property, data privacy, cybersecurity, privacy and other torts, illegal or objectionable content, consumer
protection,  securities,  stockholder  derivative  claims,  employment,  governance,  workplace  culture,  contractual  rights,  civil  rights  infringement,  false  or  misleading
advertising, or other legal claims relating to content or information that is provided to us or published or made available on our platform. Any proceedings, claims or
inquiries involving us, whether successful or not, may be time consuming, result in costly litigation, unfavorable outcomes, increased costs of business, may require us
to change our business practices  or platform, require significant  amount of management’s  time,  may harm our reputation or otherwise harm our business,  operating
results, and financial condition.

We  are  currently  involved  in  and  have  been  subject  to  actual  and  threatened  litigation  with  respect  to  third-party  patents,  trademarks,  copyrights  and  other
intellectual property, and may continue to be subject to intellectual property litigation and threats thereof. Companies in the internet, technology and media industries
own large numbers of patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade secrets and frequently enter into litigation based on allegations of infringement or other violations of
intellectual  property  rights.  As  we  face  increasing  competition,  grow  our  business  and  platform  offerings,  and  become  increasingly  high  profile,  the  possibility  of
receiving  a  larger  number  of  intellectual  property  claims  against  the  company  grows.  In  addition,  various  “non-practicing  entities”  that  own  patents  and  other
intellectual  property  rights  have  asserted,  and  may in  the  future  attempt  to  assert,  intellectual  property  claims  against  us  to  extract  value  through licensing  or  other
settlements.

From time to time, we receive letters from patent holders alleging that the Nextdoor platform infringes on their patent rights and from trademark holders alleging
infringement  of  their  trademark  rights.  We  also  receive  letters  from  holders  of  copyrighted  content  alleging  infringement  of  their  intellectual  property  rights.  Our
technologies and content, including the content that neighbors upload to the platform, may not be able to withstand such third-party claims.

With respect to any intellectual property claims, we may have to seek a license to continue using technologies or engaging in practices found to be in violation of a
third-party’s rights, which may not be available on reasonable terms and may significantly increase our operating expenses. A license to continue such technologies or
practices  may  not  be  available  to  us  at  all  and  we  may  be  required  to  discontinue  use  of  such  technologies  or  practices  or  to  develop  alternative  non-infringing
technologies or practices. The development of alternative non-infringing technologies or practices could require significant effort and expense or may not be achievable
at all. Our business, operating results, and financial condition could be harmed as a result.

Exposure to United Kingdom political developments, including the effect of its withdrawal from the European Union, could be costly and difficult to comply with
and could adversely impact our business, operating results, and financial condition.

In June 2016, a referendum was passed in the United Kingdom to leave the European Union, commonly referred to as “Brexit.” This decision created an uncertain
political  and economic environment  in  the United Kingdom and other  European Union countries,  and the formal  process  for  leaving the European Union has taken
years to complete. Although the United Kingdom and the European Union have recently entered into a trade and cooperation agreement, the long-term nature of the
United Kingdom’s relationship with the European Union remains unclear and there is considerable uncertainty as to their future political and economic relations. The
political and economic instability created by Brexit has caused and may continue to cause significant volatility in global financial markets and uncertainty regarding the
regulation of cybersecurity  in the United Kingdom. In addition,  Brexit  could lead to legal  uncertainty and potentially  divergent  national  laws and regulations as the
United Kingdom determines which European Union laws to replace or replicate. For example, as discussed above, although the European Commission has adopted an
adequacy decision in favor of the United Kingdom, enabling data transfers from EU member states to the United Kingdom without additional safeguards, uncertainty
remains  regarding  how  data  transfers  to  and  from  the  United  Kingdom  will  be  regulated  in  the  long  term.  Brexit  could  also  have  the  effect  of  disrupting  the  free
movement of goods, services, capital, and people between the United Kingdom, the European
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Union, and elsewhere. The full effect of Brexit is uncertain and depends on any current and future agreements the United Kingdom makes with the European Union and
others. Consequently, no assurance can be given about the impact of these developments, and our operational, tax, and other policies may require reassessment and our
business, operating results, and financial condition may be seriously harmed.

The obligations associated with operating as a public company require significant resources and management attention and have, and will continue to, cause us to
incur additional expenses, which will adversely affect our profitability.

Operating  as  a  public  company will  increase  our  expenses  as  a  result  of  the  additional  accounting,  legal  and various  other  additional  expenses  associated  with
operating as a public company and complying with public company disclosure obligations. We are required to comply with certain requirements of the Exchange Act,
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), and other applicable securities rules and
regulations. The Exchange Act requires, among other things, that we file annual, quarterly, and current reports with respect to our business and operating results with
the SEC. We are also required to ensure that we have the ability to prepare financial statements that are fully compliant with all SEC reporting requirements on a timely
basis. Compliance with these rules and regulations has increased, and will continue to increase, our legal and financial compliance costs, make some activities more
difficult, time-consuming or costly and increase demand on our systems and resources. As a public company, we have and will continue to, among other things:

• prepare and distribute periodic public reports and other stockholder communications in compliance with our obligations under the federal securities laws;

• create or expand the roles and duties of our Board of Directors and committees of the Board of Directors;

• institute more comprehensive financial reporting and disclosure compliance functions; and

• establish new and enhance existing internal policies, including those relating to disclosure controls and procedures.

These changes, and the additional involvement of accountants and legal advisors, will require a significant commitment of additional resources. We might not be
successful in complying with these obligations and the significant commitment of resources required for complying with them could have a material adverse effect on
our  business,  financial  condition,  results  of  operations  and  cash  flows.  If  our  efforts  to  comply  with  new  laws,  regulations  and  standards  differ  from  the  activities
intended by regulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguities related to practice, regulatory authorities may initiate legal proceedings against us, and our business may
be harmed. Moreover, the cost of our directors’ and officers’ insurance coverage has increased as a public company. In the future, it may be more expensive or more
difficult  for  us  to  obtain  director  and  officer  liability  insurance,  and  we  may  be  required  to  accept  reduced  coverage  or  incur  substantially  higher  costs  to  obtain
coverage. These factors would also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified members of our Board of Directors and qualified executive officers.

Failure to maintain effective systems of internal control and disclosure controls could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, and
financial condition.

Effective internal and disclosure controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and effectively prevent fraud and to operate successfully as a
public company. We are required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act to design and maintain a system of internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and
procedures. If we cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, our reputation and operating results would be harmed.

Our  current  controls  and  any  new  controls  we  develop  may  become  inadequate  because  of  changes  in  conditions  in  our  business.  Further,  weaknesses  in  our
internal  controls  may  be  discovered  in  the  future.  Any  failure  to  develop  or  maintain  effective  controls,  or  any  difficulties  encountered  in  their  implementation  or
improvement, could harm our operating results, may result in a restatement of our financial statements for prior periods, cause us
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to fail to meet our reporting obligations, and could adversely affect the results of periodic management evaluations and annual independent registered public accounting
firm attestation reports regarding the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting that we are required to include in the periodic reports we will file with
the SEC. We are currently an “emerging growth company,” and, so long as we remain an “emerging growth company” we will not be required to include an attestation
report  on  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  issued  by  our  independent  registered  public  accounting  firm.  Ineffective  disclosure  controls  and  procedures  and
internal  control  over  financial  reporting  could  also  cause  investors  to  lose  confidence  in  our  reported  financial  and  other  information,  which  would  likely  have  a
negative effect on the market price of our Class A common stock.

We  expect  to  incur  significant  expenses  and  devote  substantial  management  effort  toward  ensuring  compliance  with  the  requirements  of  Section  404  of  the
Sarbanes-Oxley  Act,  which  will  increase  when we are  no  longer  an  “emerging  growth  company.”  As  a  result,  management’s  attention  may be  diverted  from other
business concerns, which could harm our business, operating results and financial condition.

If we experience a material weakness in the future or otherwise fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls in the future, we may not be able to
accurately report our financial results in a timely manner, which may adversely affect investor confidence in our company and materially and adversely affect our
business and operating results, and as a result, the value of our Class A common stock.

Prior  to  the  Closing  Date  of  the  Business  Combination,  on  August  31,  2021,  KVSB’s  management,  together  with  its  audit  committee,  determined  that  its
previously issued financial statements and other financial data as of and for the period from January 29, 2021 (inception) through March 31, 2021 should be restated
(the “Restatement”). Due solely to the events that led to the Restatement of KVSB’s financial statements,  its management identified material  weaknesses in internal
controls over financial reporting related to that inaccurate accounting. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Effective internal controls are necessary to provide reliable financial reports and prevent fraud. KVSB devoted significant effort and resources to the remediation
and improvement  of  its  internal  controls  over financial  reporting.  Effective  as of  the closing of the Business Combination,  our management  became responsible  for
internal control over financial reporting and the former management of KVSB no longer participates in financial reporting. Following the Closing Date of the Business
Combination, we have devoted, and we plan to continue to devote, significant effort and resources towards the maintenance of an effective system of internal controls,
which may be time consuming and costly, and there is no assurance that the significant effort and resources towards this initiative will ultimately have the intended
effects.

Our assessment is that, after the Business Combination, we have a sufficiently staffed and technically experienced finance and accounting team to address the
financial reporting requirements of a public company. After the Business Combination, because the conditions causing the material weakness no longer existed, and are
not expected to exist, we determined the material weakness in internal control over financial reporting did not exist as of December 31, 2021. However, if we identify
any new material weaknesses in the future, any such newly identified material weakness could limit our ability to prevent or detect a misstatement of our accounts or
disclosures that could result in a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements. In such case, we may be unable to maintain compliance with
securities law requirements regarding timely filing of periodic reports in addition to applicable stock exchange listing requirements, investors may lose confidence in
our financial reporting and our stock price may decline as a result. We cannot assure you that the measures we have taken to date, or any measures we may take in the
future, will be sufficient to avoid potential future material weaknesses.

Risks Related to Intellectual Property

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property, the value of our brands and other intangible assets may be diminished, and our business, operating results,
and financial condition may be adversely affected.

We rely and expect to continue to rely on a combination of confidentiality, assignment, and license agreements with our employees, consultants, and third parties
with whom we have relationships, as well as trademark,
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copyright,  patent,  trade  secret,  and  domain  name  protection  laws,  to  protect  our  proprietary  rights.  In  the  United  States  and  internationally,  we  have  filed  various
applications for protection of certain aspects of our intellectual property, and we currently hold issued patents and copyrights in the United States, issued copyrights in
the  United  States,  and  multiple  trademark  registrations  in  the  United  States  and  other  foreign  countries.  Third  parties  may  knowingly  or  unknowingly  infringe  our
proprietary rights, third parties may challenge proprietary rights held by us, and pending and future trademark and patent applications may not be approved.

Any  issued  patents  may  be  challenged,  invalidated  or  circumvented,  and  any  rights  granted  under  these  patents  may  not  actually  provide  adequate  defensive
protection or competitive advantages to us. Patent applications in the U.S. are typically not published until at least 18 months after filing, or, in some cases, not at all.
We cannot be certain that we were the first  to make the inventions claimed in our pending patent applications or that  we were the first  to file for patent protection.
Additionally,  the  process  of  obtaining  patent  protection  is  expensive  and  time-consuming,  and  we  may  not  be  able  to  prosecute  all  necessary  or  desirable  patent
applications  at  a  reasonable  cost  or  in  a  timely  manner.  Recent  changes  to  the  patent  laws in  the  U.S.  may also  bring into  question  the  validity  of  certain  software
patents and may make it more difficult and costly to prosecute patent applications. Such changes may lead to uncertainties or increased costs and risks surrounding the
prosecution,  validity,  ownership,  enforcement,  and  defense  of  our  issued  patents  and  patent  applications  and  other  intellectual  property,  the  outcome  of  third-party
claims of infringement, misappropriation, or other violation of intellectual property brought against us and the actual or enhanced damages (including treble damages)
that may be awarded in connection with any such current or future claims, and could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We rely  on  our  trademarks,  trade  names,  and  brand  names  to  distinguish  our  platform from the  products  of  our  competitors.  However,  third  parties  may  have
already registered identical or similar marks for products or solutions that also address the software market. Efforts by third parties to limit use of our brand names or
trademarks  and  barriers  to  the  registration  of  brand  names  and  trademarks  may  restrict  our  ability  to  promote  and  maintain  a  cohesive  brand  throughout  our  key
markets.  There  can  also  be  no  assurance  that  pending  or  future  U.S.  or  foreign  trademark  applications  will  be  approved  in  a  timely  manner  or  at  all,  or  that  such
registrations will effectively protect our brand names and trademarks. Third parties may also oppose our trademark applications, or otherwise challenge our use of the
trademarks. In the event that our trademarks are successfully challenged, we could be forced to rebrand our platform, which would result in loss of brand recognition
and would require us to devote resources to advertising and marketing new brands.

In addition, effective intellectual property protection may not be available in every country in which we operate or intend to operate our business. In any or all of
these cases, we may be required to expend significant time and expense in order to prevent infringement or to enforce our rights. Although we have generally taken
measures to protect our proprietary rights, there can be no assurance that others will not offer products or concepts that are substantially similar to ours and compete
with our business.  If  the protection of our proprietary rights is inadequate to prevent unauthorized use or appropriation by third parties,  the value of our brands and
other intangible assets may be diminished and competitors may be able to more effectively mimic the Nextdoor platform and methods of operations.

To prevent substantial unauthorized use of our intellectual property rights, it may be necessary to prosecute actions for infringement and/or misappropriation of our
proprietary  rights  against  third  parties.  Any such action  could  result  in  significant  costs  and diversion  of  our  resources  and management’s  attention,  and we cannot
assure that we will be successful in such action. Furthermore, many of our current and potential competitors have the ability to dedicate substantially greater resources
to enforce their  intellectual  property  rights  (or  to  contest  claims of  infringement)  than we do.  Accordingly,  despite  our  efforts,  we may not  be able  to prevent  third
parties from knowingly or unknowingly infringing upon, misappropriating or circumventing our intellectual property rights. If we are unable to protect our proprietary
rights (including aspects of our software and platform protected other than by patent rights), we will find ourselves at a competitive disadvantage to others who need
not  incur  the  additional  expense,  time  and  effort  required  to  create  our  platform.  Moreover,  we  may  need  to  expend  additional  resources  to  defend  our  intellectual
property rights in foreign countries, and our inability to do so could impair our business, results of operations and financial condition or adversely affect our business,
operating results, and financial condition.
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Confidentiality agreements with employees and others may not adequately prevent disclosure of trade secrets and proprietary information.

We have devoted substantial resources to the development of our intellectual property and proprietary rights. To protect our intellectual property and proprietary
rights,  we rely in part  on confidentiality  agreements with our employees,  vendors,  licensees,  independent contractors and other advisors.  These agreements may not
effectively prevent disclosure of confidential information and may not provide an adequate remedy in the event of unauthorized disclosure of confidential information.
Effective trade secret protection may also not be available in every country in which the Nextdoor platform is available or where we have employees or independent
contractors. The loss of trade secret protection could make it easier for third parties to compete with the Nextdoor platform by copying functionality. In addition, any
changes in, or unexpected interpretations of, the trade secret and employment laws in any country in which we operate may compromise our ability to enforce our trade
secret and intellectual property rights. In addition, others may independently discover trade secrets and proprietary information and in such cases, we could not assert
any trade secret rights against such parties. Costly and time-consuming litigation could be necessary to enforce and determine the scope of our proprietary rights and
failure to obtain or maintain trade secret protection could adversely affect our competitive business position.

Third parties may claim that our platform infringes their intellectual property rights and this may create liability for us or otherwise adversely affect our business,
operating results, and financial condition.

Third  parties  may  claim  that  the  Nextdoor  platform  infringes  their  intellectual  property  rights,  and  such  claims  may  result  in  legal  claims  against  us  and  our
technology partners and customers. These claims may damage our brand and reputation and create liability for us. We expect the number of such claims to increase as
the functionality of our platform overlaps with that of other products and services, and as the volume of issued software patents and patent applications continues to
increase.

Companies in the software and technology industries own large numbers of patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade secrets and frequently enter into litigation
based on allegations of infringement or other violations of intellectual property rights. In addition, many of these companies have the capability to dedicate substantially
greater  resources  to  enforce  their  intellectual  property  rights  and  to  defend  claims  that  may  be  brought  against  them.  Furthermore,  patent  holding  companies,  non-
practicing entities, and other adverse patent owners that are not deterred by our existing intellectual property protections may seek to assert patent claims against us. We
have received, and may in the future receive, notices that claim we have misappropriated, misused, or infringed other parties’ intellectual property rights, and, to the
extent we gain greater market visibility, we may face a higher risk of being the subject of intellectual property infringement claims.

We  may  also  face  exposure  to  third  party  intellectual  property  infringement,  misappropriation,  or  violation  actions  if  we  engage  software  engineers  or  other
personnel who were previously engaged by competitors or other third parties and those personnel inadvertently or deliberately incorporate proprietary technology of
third parties into our products. In addition, we may lose valuable intellectual property rights or personnel. A loss of key personnel or their work product could hamper
or prevent our ability to develop, market and support potential products or enhancements, which could severely harm our business. Any intellectual property claims,
with or without merit, could be very time-consuming, could be expensive to settle or litigate, and could divert our management’s attention and other resources. These
claims could also subject us to significant liability for damages, potentially including treble damages if we are found to have willfully infringed patents or copyrights.
These claims could also result in us having to stop using technology found to be in violation of a third party’s rights. We might be required to seek a license for the
intellectual property, which may not be available on reasonable terms or at all. Even if a license were available, we could be required to pay significant royalties, which
would  increase  our  operating  expenses.  Alternatively,  we  could  be  required  to  develop  alternative  non-infringing  technology,  which  could  require  significant  time,
effort, and expense, and may affect the performance or features of our platform. If we cannot license or develop alternative non-infringing substitutes for any infringing
technology used in any aspect of our business, we would be forced to limit use of our platform. Any of these results would adversely affect our business, operating
results and financial condition.
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Our use of “open source” software could subject us to possible litigation or could prevent us from offering products that include open source software or require us
to obtain licenses on unfavorable terms.

A portion of the technologies we use incorporates “open source” software, and we may incorporate open source software in the future. Open source software is
generally  licensed  by  its  authors  or  other  third  parties  under  open  source  licenses.  These  licenses  may  subject  us  to  certain  unfavorable  conditions,  including
requirements that we offer our products that incorporate the open source software for no cost, that we make publicly available the source code for any modifications or
derivative work we create based upon, incorporating or using the open source software, or that we license such modifications or derivative works under the terms of the
particular open source license. From time to time, companies that use third-party open source software have also faced claims challenging the use of such open source
software and their compliance with the terms of the applicable open source license. We may be subject to suits by parties claiming ownership of what we believe to be
open source software, or claiming non-compliance with the applicable open source licensing terms.

In addition to using open source software, we also license to others some of our software through open source projects. Open sourcing our own software requires
the company to make the source code publicly available,  and therefore can affect  our ability to protect  our intellectual  property rights with respect  to that  software.
Additionally, if a third-party software provider has incorporated open source software into software that we license from such provider, we could be required to disclose
any of our source code that incorporates or is a modification or derivative work of such licensed software. If an author or other third party that distributes open source
software that we use or license were to allege that we had not complied with the conditions of the applicable license, we could be required to incur significant legal
expenses defending against such allegations and could be subject to significant damages, enjoined from offering our products that contained the open source software,
required to release proprietary source code, required to obtain licenses from third parties or otherwise required to comply with the unfavorable conditions unless and
until we can re-engineer the product so that it complies with the open source license or does not incorporate the open source software.

The terms of many open source licenses have not been interpreted by U.S. or foreign courts, and accordingly there is a risk that those licenses could be construed in
a manner that imposes unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to commercialize our platform. In that event, we could be required to seek licenses from
third parties in order to continue offering our platform, to re-develop our platform, or to release our proprietary source code under the terms of an open source license,
any of which could harm our business. Enforcement activity for open source licenses can also be unpredictable. Were it determined that our use was not in compliance
with a particular license, we may be required to release our proprietary source code, defend claims, pay damages for breach of contract or copyright infringement, grant
licenses  to  our  patents,  re-engineer  our  platform,  or  take other  remedial  action that  may divert  resources  away from our  product  development  efforts,  any of  which
could  negatively  impact  our  business.  Open  source  compliance  problems  can  also  result  in  damage  to  reputation  and  challenges  in  recruitment  or  retention  of
engineering personnel. Further, given the nature of open source software, it may be more likely that third parties might assert copyright and other intellectual property
infringement claims against us based on our use of these open source software programs. Litigation could be costly for us to defend, have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financial condition, or require us to devote additional development resources to change our platform.

We license technology from third parties, and our inability to maintain those licenses could harm our business.

We  currently  incorporate,  and  will  in  the  future  continue  to  incorporate,  technology  that  we  license  from  third  parties,  including  software,  into  our  platform.
Licensing technologies from third parties exposes us to increased risk of being the subject of intellectual property infringement due to, among other things, our lower
level of visibility into the development process with respect to such technology and the care taken to safeguard against infringement risks. We cannot be certain that our
licensors do not or will not infringe on the intellectual property rights of third parties or that our licensors have or will have sufficient rights to the licensed intellectual
property in all jurisdictions in which we operate. Some of our agreements with our licensors may be terminated by them for convenience, or otherwise provide for a
limited term. If we are unable to continue to license technology because of intellectual property infringement claims brought by third parties against our licensors or
against us, or if we are unable to continue our license agreements or enter into new licenses on commercially reasonable terms, our ability to develop
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our platform that is dependent on that technology would be limited, and our business could be harmed. Additionally, if we are unable to license technology from third
parties, we may be forced to acquire or develop alternative technology, which we may be unable to do in a commercially feasible manner or at all, and may require us
to use alternative technology of lower quality or performance standards. As a result, our business, operating results and financial condition would be adversely affected.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Class A Common Stock

The price of our Class A common stock has been, and may continue to, be volatile.

We cannot predict the prices at which our Class A common stock will continue to trade. Since the closing of the Business Combination on November 5, 2021, our
closing stock price has ranged from $7.55 to $13.50 through December 31, 2021. The price of our Class A common stock, may fluctuate due to a variety of factors,
including:

• actual or anticipated fluctuations in our user growth, retention, engagement, revenue, or other operating results;

• developments involving our competitors;

• variations between our actual operating results and the expectations of securities analysts, investors, and the financial community;

• actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly or annual operating results;

• any forward-looking financial or operating information we may provide to the public or securities analysts, any changes in this information, or our failure to
meet expectations based on this information;

• publication of research reports by securities analysts about us, our competitors or our industry;

• the public’s reaction to our press releases, our other public announcements and our filings with the SEC;

• additional shares of our Class A common stock being sold into the market by us or our existing stockholders, or the anticipation of such sales, or if existing
stockholders subject to a lock-up sell shares into the market when applicable “lock-up” periods end;

• additions and departures of key personnel;

• commencement of, or involvement in, litigation involving us;

• changes in our capital structure, such as future issuances of securities or the incurrence of additional debt;

• the volume of shares of our Class A common stock available for public sale;

• announcements by us or our competitors of significant products or features, technical innovations, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures, or capital
commitments;

• announcements by us or estimates by third parties of actual or anticipated changes in the size of our user base or the level of user engagement;

• changes in operating performance and stock market valuations of technology companies in our industry, including our partners and competitors;

• the impact of interest rate increases on the overall stock market and the market for technology company stocks;

• price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market, including as a result of trends in the economy as a whole;
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• developments in new legislation and pending lawsuits or regulatory actions, including interim or final rulings by judicial or regulatory bodies; and

• other events or factors, including those resulting from effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, the ongoing conflict in Ukraine, recessions, interest rates, local and
national elections, international currency fluctuations, corruption, political instability and acts of war or terrorism.

In addition, extreme price and volume fluctuations in the stock markets have affected and continue to affect many technology companies’ stock prices. Often, their
stock prices have fluctuated in ways unrelated or disproportionate to the companies’ operating performance. In the past, stockholders have filed securities class action
litigation following periods of market volatility. If we were to become involved in securities litigation, it could subject us to substantial costs, divert resources and the
attention of management from our business, and seriously harm our business.

The dual class structure of our common stock may adversely affect the trading market for our Class A common stock.

S&P Dow Jones and FTSE Russell limit their eligibility criteria for inclusion of shares of public companies on certain indices, including the S&P 500, namely, to
exclude companies with multiple classes of shares of common stock from being added to such indices. In addition, several shareholder advisory firms have announced
their opposition to the use of multiple class structures. As a result, the dual class structure of our common stock may prevent the inclusion of our Class A common stock
in such indices and may cause shareholder advisory firms to publish negative commentary about our corporate governance practices or otherwise seek to cause us to
change our capital structure. Any such exclusion from indices could result in a less active trading market for our Class A common stock. Any actions or publications by
shareholder advisory firms critical of our corporate governance practices or capital structure could also adversely affect the value of our Class A common stock.

The dual class structure of our common stock has the effect of concentrating voting power with our management and other existing stockholders, which will limit
your ability to influence the outcome of important transactions, including a change in control.

Our Class B common stock has 10 votes per share and our Class A common stock has one vote per share. Stockholders who hold shares of our Class B common
stock,  including  certain  of  our  executive  officers,  employees,  and  directors  and  their  affiliates,  together  hold  a  substantial  majority  of  the  voting  power  of  our
outstanding capital stock as of December 31, 2021. Because of the 10-to-1 voting ratio between our Class B common stock and Class A common stock, the holders of
our Class B common stock collectively control a majority of the combined voting power of common stock and therefore are able to control all matters submitted to our
stockholders for approval so long as the shares of Class B common stock represent at least 9.1% of all outstanding shares of our Class A common stock and Class B
common stock. This concentrated control will limit or preclude your ability to influence the outcome of important corporate matters, including a change in control, for
the foreseeable future.

Transfers by holders of our Class B common stock will generally result in those shares converting to Class A common stock, subject to limited exceptions, such as
certain transfers effected for estate planning or charitable purposes. The conversion of Class B common stock to Class A common stock will have the effect, over time,
of increasing the relative voting power of those holders of Class B common stock who retain their shares in the long term.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends for the foreseeable future.

We currently intend to retain our future earnings, if any, to finance the further development and expansion of our business and do not intend to pay cash dividends
in the  foreseeable  future.  Any future  determination  to  pay dividends will  be  at  the  discretion  of  our  Board of  Directors  and will  depend on our  financial  condition,
results of operations, capital requirements, restrictions contained in future agreements and financing instruments, business prospects and such other factors as our Board
of Directors deems relevant. As a result, you may only receive a return on your investment in our Class A common stock if the market price of our Class A common
stock increases.
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If analysts do not publish research about our business or if they publish inaccurate or unfavorable research, our stock price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our Class A common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that analysts publish about our business. We do not have any
control over these analysts. If one or more of the analysts who cover our company downgrade our Class A common stock or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research
about our business,  the price of our Class A common stock would likely decline.  If  few analysts cover our company, demand for our Class A common stock could
decrease and our Class A common stock price and trading volume may decline. Similar results may occur if one or more of these analysts stop covering us in the future
or fail to publish reports on us regularly.

We may be subject to securities litigation, which is expensive and could divert management attention.

The market price of our Class A common stock may be volatile and, in the past, companies that have experienced volatility in the market price of their stock have
been subject to securities class action litigation. We may be the target of this type of litigation in the future. Securities litigation against us could result in substantial
costs and divert management’s attention from other business concerns, which could seriously harm our business.

Future resales of our Class A common stock may cause the market price of our securities to drop significantly, even if our business is doing well.

Subject to certain exceptions, certain affiliated individuals and certain Nextdoor equity holders are contractually restricted from selling or transferring any of their
shares  of  Class  A common  stock  (not  including  the  shares  of  our  Class  A common  stock  issued  in  the  PIPE Investment  (as  defined  below in  this  Annual  Report)
pursuant  to  the  terms  of  the  Subscription  Agreements  or  purchased  in  the  public  market)  for  certain  periods  of  time  following  the  closing  date  of  the  Business
Combination (the “Closing Date”). Under our Restated Bylaws (the “Bylaws”), and subject to certain customary exceptions, such lockup restrictions applicable to all
the Nextdoor Stockholders’ Lock-up Shares began on the Closing Date and end on May 4, 2022, the date that is 180 days following the Closing Date. As of December
31, 2021, an aggregate of 365,486,793 shares of our Class B common stock (including 60,789,889 shares of our Class B common stock subject to outstanding equity
awards) and the same number of shares of our Class A common stock underlying such Class B common stock are subject to lock-up restrictions set forth in our Bylaws.
As a result, a significant number of our shares of Class A common stock will be available for sale on May 5, 2022. Pursuant to the lock-up agreement entered into with
Khosla  Ventures  SPAC Sponsor  II  LLC (the  “Sponsor”),  and  subject  to  certain  customary  exceptions,  such  lockup  restrictions  applicable  to  the  shares  held  by  the
Sponsor began on the Closing Date and end on November 5, 2022, the one year anniversary of the Closing Date. An aggregate of 11,541,291 shares of our Class A
common stock and an aggregate of 8,580 shares of our Class B common stock are subject to lock-up restrictions under the Sponsor lock-up agreement.

Following the expiration of each lockup, the applicable stockholders will not be restricted from selling shares of our Class A common stock held by them, other
than by applicable securities laws. Additionally,  the Third-Party PIPE Investors (as defined below in this Annual Report) are not restricted from selling any of their
shares of our Class A common stock, other than by applicable securities laws. As such, sales of a substantial number of shares of our Class A common stock in the
public market could occur at any time. These sales, or the perception in the market that the holders of a large number of shares intend to sell shares, could reduce the
market price of our Class A common stock.

As restrictions on resale end and registration statements (filed after the Closing Date to provide for the resale of such shares from time to time) are available for
use, the sale or possibility of sale of these shares could have the effect of increasing the volatility in our share price or the market price of our Class A common stock
could decline if the holders of currently restricted shares sell them or are perceived by the market as intending to sell them.

We are an emerging growth company and a smaller reporting company within the meaning of the Securities Act, and we take advantage of certain exemptions
from disclosure requirements available to emerging growth
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companies or smaller reporting companies, which could make our securities less attractive to investors and may make it more difficult to compare our performance
with other public companies.

We are an “emerging growth company” within the meaning of the Securities Act, as modified by the JOBS Act, and we take advantage of certain exemptions from
various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required to
comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act,  reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our
periodic  reports  and  proxy  statements,  and  exemptions  from  the  requirements  of  holding  a  nonbinding  advisory  vote  on  executive  compensation  and  stockholder
approval  of  any  golden  parachute  payments  not  previously  approved.  As  a  result,  our  stockholders  may  not  have  access  to  certain  information  they  may  deem
important.  We could be an emerging growth company for up to five years,  although circumstances could cause us to lose that status earlier,  including if the market
value of our shares of Class A common stock held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the end of any second quarter of a fiscal year, in which case we would
no longer be an emerging growth company as of the end of such fiscal year. We cannot predict whether investors will find our securities less attractive because we rely
on these exemptions. If some investors find our securities less attractive as a result of our reliance on these exemptions, the trading prices of our securities may be lower
than they otherwise would be, there may be a less active trading market for our securities and the trading prices of our securities may be more volatile.

Further,  Section  102(b)(1)  of  the  JOBS  Act  exempts  emerging  growth  companies  from  being  required  to  comply  with  new  or  revised  financial  accounting
standards until private companies (that is, those that have not had a Securities Act registration statement declared effective or do not have a class of securities registered
under the Exchange Act) are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a company can elect to opt out of
the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-emerging growth companies but any such election to opt out is irrevocable. We have
elected  not  to  opt  out  of  such extended transition  period,  which means  that  when a  standard  is  issued or  revised  and it  has  different  application  dates  for  public  or
private companies, we, as an emerging growth company, can adopt the new or revised standard at the time private companies adopt the new or revised standard. This
may make it difficult or impossible to compare our financial results with the financial results of another public company that is either not an emerging growth company
or is an emerging growth company that has chosen not to take advantage of the extended transition period exemptions because of the potential differences in accounting
standards used.

Additionally,  we are a “smaller  reporting company” as defined in Item 10(f)(1)  of Regulation S-K. Smaller  reporting companies may take advantage of certain
reduced disclosure obligations, including, among other things, providing only two years of audited financial statements. We will remain a smaller reporting company
until the last day of the fiscal year in which (1) the market value of our shares of common stock held by non-affiliates equals or exceeds $250 million as of the end of
that year’s second fiscal quarter, and (2) our annual revenues equaled or exceeded $100 million during such completed fiscal year or the market value of our shares of
common stock held by non-affiliates equals or exceeds $700 million as of the end of that year’s second fiscal quarter. To the extent we take advantage of such reduced
disclosure obligations, it may also make comparison of our financial statements with other public companies difficult or impossible.

Provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law, including anti-takeover provisions, could make an acquisition of us, which may be beneficial to our
stockholders, more difficult and may limit attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management.

Provisions  in  our  Certificate  of  Incorporation  and  our  Bylaws,  including  anti-takeover  provisions,  may  have  the  effect  of  delaying  or  preventing  a  merger,
acquisition  or  other  change  of  control  of  the  company that  our  stockholders  may consider  favorable.  In  addition,  because  our  Board  of  Directors  is  responsible  for
appointing  the  members  of  our  management  team,  these  provisions  may  frustrate  or  prevent  any  attempts  by  our  stockholders  to  replace  or  remove  our  current
management  by  making  it  more  difficult  for  stockholders  to  replace  members  of  our  Board  of  Directors.  Among  other  things,  our  Certificate  of  Incorporation  and
Bylaws include provisions that:

• provide that our Board of Directors is classified into three classes of directors with staggered three-year terms;
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• permit our Board of Directors to establish the number of directors and fill any vacancies and newly created directorships;

• require super-majority voting to amend some provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws;

• authorize the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock that our Board of Directors could use to implement a stockholder rights plan;

• provide that only our chairperson of the Board of Directors, our chief executive officer, the lead independent director or a majority of our Board of Directors
will be authorized to call a special meeting of stockholders;

• eliminate the ability of our stockholders to call special meetings of stockholders;

• do not provide for cumulative voting;

• provide that directors may only be removed “for cause” and only with the approval of two-thirds of our stockholders;

• provide for a dual class common stock structure in which holders of our Class B common stock may have the ability to control the outcome of matters
requiring stockholder approval, even if they own significantly less than a majority of the outstanding shares of our common stock, including the election of
directors and other significant corporate transactions, such as a merger or other sale of our company or its assets;

• prohibit stockholder action by written consent, which requires all stockholder actions to be taken at a meeting of our stockholders;

• provide that our Board of Directors is expressly authorized to make, alter, or repeal our Bylaws; and

• establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our Board of Directors or for proposing matters that can be acted upon by stockholders at
annual stockholder meetings.

Moreover, Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (“DGCL”) may discourage, delay, or prevent a change in control of our company. Section 203
imposes certain restrictions on mergers, business combinations, and other transactions between us and holders of 15% or more of our common stock.

Our Certificate of Incorporation contains exclusive forum provisions for certain claims, which may limit our stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial
forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers, or employees.

Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, to the fullest extent permitted by law, will be the exclusive forum for
any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, any action asserting a breach of fiduciary duty, any action asserting a claim against us arising pursuant to the
DGCL, our Certificate of Incorporation, our Bylaws, or any action asserting a claim against us that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine.

Moreover, Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over all claims brought to enforce any duty or liability created
by the Securities Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that the federal district courts of the United States will, to the
fullest  extent  permitted  by  law,  be  the  exclusive  forum  for  resolving  any  complaint  asserting  a  cause  of  action  arising  under  the  Securities  Act  (“Federal Forum
Provision”).  Our decision to  adopt  a  Federal  Forum Provision followed a decision by the Supreme Court  of  the State  of  Delaware holding that  such provisions  are
facially valid under Delaware law. While there can be no assurance that federal or state courts will follow the holding of the Delaware Supreme Court or determine that
the Federal Forum Provision should be enforced in a particular case, application of the Federal Forum Provision means that suits brought by our stockholders to enforce
any duty or liability created by the Securities Act must be brought in federal court and cannot be brought in state court.
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Section 27 of the Exchange Act creates exclusive federal jurisdiction over all claims brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the
rules  and  regulations  thereunder.  In  addition,  the  Federal  Forum  Provision  applies  to  suits  brought  to  enforce  any  duty  or  liability  created  by  the  Exchange  Act.
Accordingly, actions by our stockholders to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules and regulations thereunder must be brought in federal
court.

Our stockholders will not be deemed to have waived our compliance with the federal securities laws and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring or holding any interest  in any of our securities  shall  be deemed to have notice  of  and consented to our
exclusive  forum provisions,  including  the  Federal  Forum Provision.  These  provisions  may limit  a  stockholders’  ability  to  bring  a  claim in  a  judicial  forum of  their
choosing  for  disputes  with  us  or  our  directors,  officers,  or  employees,  which  may  discourage  lawsuits  against  us  and  our  directors,  officers,  and  employees.
Alternatively, if a court were to find the choice of forum provision contained in our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws to be inapplicable or unenforceable in an
action, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions,  which could harm our business, financial  condition, and operating
results.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

We are headquartered in San Francisco, California. As of December 31, 2021, we maintained offices in various locations in the United States and internationally,
including approximately 115,770 square feet for our corporate headquarters. All of our facilities are leased. We believe that our current facilities are adequate to meet
our current needs and that, should it be needed, suitable additional or alternative space will be available to accommodate our operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business. We are not presently a party to any legal proceedings that,
if determined adversely to us, would individually or taken together have a material adverse effect on our business or financial results.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Information for Common Stock

Our Class A common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol ”KIND” on November 8, 2021. Prior to that  date,  there was no
public trading market for our Class A common stock.

Our Class B common stock is not listed or traded on any stock exchange.

Holders of Record

As of March 11, 2022, there were 56 stockholders of record of our Class A common stock and 693 stockholders of record of our Class B common stock. The actual
number of holders of our Class A and Class B common stock is greater than the number of record holders and includes stockholders who are beneficial owners, but
whose shares are held in street name by brokers or other nominees. The number of holders of record presented here also does not include stockholders whose shares
may be held in trust by other entities.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared nor paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain all available funds and any future earnings for use in the
operation of our business and do not expect to pay any dividends on our capital stock in the foreseeable future. Any future determination relating to our dividend policy
will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors, subject to applicable laws, and will depend on our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements,
general business conditions, and other factors that our Board of Directors considers relevant.  In addition, our ability to pay dividends is limited by covenants of our
existing and unused indebtedness and may be limited by covenants of any future indebtedness we incur.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement (the “Proxy Statement”) for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed
with the SEC within 120 days of the year ended December 31, 2021, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.

Use of Proceeds

On March 26, 2021, KVSB consummated its initial public offering of 40,000,000 public shares. On March 30, 2021 in connection with the underwriters’ election
to partially exercise their over-allotment option, KVSB sold an additional 1,634,412 public shares to cover over-allotments. The public shares were sold at a price of
$10.00 per share, generating total gross proceeds of $416.3 million from the initial public offering and partial exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option. The
securities sold in the offering were registered under the Securities Act on a registration statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-253098). The registration statement became
effective on March 23, 2021.

Simultaneously with the consummation of the initial public offering, KVSB consummated a private placement of 1,100,000 private placement shares, at a price of
$10.00 per share,  to the Sponsor,  generating gross proceeds to KVSB of $11.0 million.  In connection with the underwriters’  partial  exercise  of  their  over-allotment
option that closed on March 30, 2021, KVSB also consummated the sale of an additional 32,688 private placement shares to the Sponsor, generating gross proceeds of
$0.3 million. Such securities were issued pursuant to the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.

51



KVSB incurred $23.6 million in offering costs for its initial public offering including $14.6 million of deferred underwriting fees, $8.3 million of underwriting
discounts and commissions, and $0.7 million of other costs. Following the initial public offering, the partial exercise of the over-allotment option, and the sale of the
private placement shares, a total of $416.3 million was deposited into the trust account for the purpose of effecting an initial business combination. As of November 5,
2021, the record date of the Business Combination,  there was $416.4 million held in the trust  account.  After deducting payments to existing KVSB shareholders of
$12.2 million in connection with their exercise of redemption rights, the payment of the $14.6 million of deferred underwriting fees, and $28.9 million of expenses in
connection with the Business Combination paid from the trust account, the remainder of the trust account is now held on our balance sheet to fund our operations and
continued growth.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.

Item 6. [Reserved]

52



Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis provides information which our management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of our consolidated
results of operations and financial condition. The discussion should be read together with our consolidated financial statements and related notes that are included
elsewhere in this Annual Report.  This discussion may contain forward-looking statements based upon current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties.  Our
actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth under “Special
Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors” or in other parts of this Annual Report.

Overview

At Nextdoor, our purpose is to cultivate a kinder world where everyone has a neighborhood they can rely on. Nextdoor is the neighborhood network that connects
neighborhood stakeholders, including neighbors, businesses, and public services, online and in real life to build stronger, more vibrant, and resilient neighborhoods. As
of December 31, 2021, Nextdoor was in more than 285,000 neighborhoods around the world and in nearly 1 in 3 households in the United States, and during the fourth
quarter of 2021, we reached 69 million global Verified Neighbors. Neighbors and organizations,  which include small and mid-sized businesses, large brands, public
agencies,  and  nonprofits,  around the  world  turn  to  Nextdoor  to  receive  trusted  information,  give  and  get  help,  and  build  real-world  connections  with  neighborhood
stakeholders.

Key business metrics for the three months ended December 31, 2021 are as follows:

• Weekly active users (“WAUs”) were 35.9 million, an increase of 32% compared to the three months ended December 31, 2020.

• Average revenue per weekly active user (“ARPU”) was $1.65, an increase of 12% compared to the three months ended December 31, 2020.

Financial Results as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021 are as follows:

• Revenue was $192.2 million, an increase of 56% compared to 2020.

• Total costs and expenses were $287.0 million, an increase of 44% compared to 2020.

• Net loss increased 27% to $(95.3) million in 2021, compared to $(75.2) million in 2020.

• Adjusted EBITDA loss decreased 13% to $(43.7) million in 2021, compared to $(50.2) million in 2020.

• Cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities were $715.8 million.

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measure” below for more information and
for  a  reconciliation  of  net  loss,  the  most  directly  comparable  financial  measure  calculated  and  presented  in  accordance  with  U.S.  generally  accepted  accounting
principles (“GAAP”), to Adjusted EBITDA.

Recent Developments

Closing of Transactions

On November  5,  2021,  the  Company  consummated  the  Business  Combination  and  the  PIPE  Investment  (as  described  in  the  consolidated  financial  statements
included  elsewhere  in  this  Annual  Report)  (collectively,  the  “Reverse  Recapitalization”).  Reported  results  from  operations  included  herein  prior  to  the  Reverse
Recapitalization are those of Legacy Nextdoor. Each share of Legacy Nextdoor common stock that was issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Closing Date,
after  giving effect  to the conversion of all  issued and outstanding shares of Legacy Nextdoor preferred stock to Legacy Nextdoor common stock, was canceled and
converted into a number of shares of Nextdoor Class B common stock equal to the exchange ratio of 3.1057 as calculated in accordance with the Merger Agreement
(“Exchange Ratio”) multiplied by the number of shares of Legacy Nextdoor common stock. 
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The Merger  was accounted for  as  a  reverse  recapitalization in  accordance with  GAAP. Under  this  method of  accounting,  KVSB was treated as  the  “acquired”
company for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, the financial statements of Nextdoor represent the continuation of the financial statements of Legacy Nextdoor,
with the Merger reflected as the equivalent of Nextdoor issuing common stock for the net assets of KVSB, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets of KVSB
were recognized as of the Closing at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded. Operations prior to the Merger are those of Legacy Nextdoor
and Legacy Nextdoor’s operations are the only ongoing operations of Nextdoor.

Key Business Metrics

In addition to the measures presented in our consolidated financial statements,  we use the following key business metrics to evaluate our business, measure our
performance, develop financial forecasts, and make strategic decisions:

Weekly Active Users (WAUs)

We define  a  Weekly  Active  User  (“WAU”)  as  a  Nextdoor  user  who opens  our  application,  logs  on  to  our  website,  or  engages  with  an  email  with  monetizable
content at least once during a defined 7-day period.  We calculate average WAUs for a particular period by calculating the count of unique users, on a rolling basis for
the past seven days, for each day of that period, and dividing that sum by the number of days in that period. We assess the health of our business by measuring WAUs
because we believe that weekly usage best captures the cadence at which we expect a healthy user base to engage with, and derive the most utility from our platform,
and by extension their neighborhood. We also present WAUs by geography because we are more advanced in engagement and monetization in the United States than
internationally.

In September 2021, Apple released changes to the Apple email client available on its operating systems, including iOS 15 and iPadOS 15, which limit our ability to
measure user engagement with emails containing monetizable content for users that use the Apple email client. The introduction of these changes impacts our ability to
accurately calculate a portion of WAUs for periods following the adoption of the updated operating systems. Following this introduction, we use estimates for these
user engagement numbers based on historical data sets, as well as data from users who engage with Nextdoor’s monetizable content on email clients other than Apple
email.

Our WAU for the three months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was 35.9 million and 27.1 million, respectively. In 2021, engagement as measured by WAUs
has grown steadily as users have returned to our platform for the utility that it offers them. As illustrated below, our international WAUs have grown at a faster rate than
our U.S. WAUs, and we expect this international growth to continue to outpace U.S. growth in the near term.

 Emails with monetizable content are emails with a primary purpose to regularly inform users about topics that are relevant to them, and are therefore appropriate for delivering ads to users.
These emails comprise almost all of the emails that we send our users and include, but are not limited to, new, trending and top posts, weekly and anytime digests, welcome emails and urgent and
emergency alerts. We earn revenue from delivery of ad impressions in emails with monetizable content on either a cost per thousand (“CPM”) basis or on a cost per click (“CPC”) basis or, with
respect to neighborhood sponsorships and local deals, on a fixed-fee basis. While we have the ability to serve ads in all emails with monetizable content, we currently only do so on a portion of the
total.

2

2
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Quarterly Average Weekly Active Users

(in millions)

Average Revenue per Weekly Active User (ARPU)

We generate revenue primarily from advertising. We measure monetization of our platform through our ARPU metric. We define ARPU as our total revenue in
that geography during a period divided by the average of the number of WAUs in that geography during the same period. We present ARPU on a U.S. and international
basis because we are more advanced in our monetization in the United States than internationally.
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U.S. ARPU is higher primarily due to our decision to focus our earliest monetization efforts there, the size and maturity of our audience in the United States, as
well the size of the U.S. advertising market. For purposes of calculating ARPU, revenue by user geography is apportioned to each region based on a determination of
the  location  of  the  account  where  the  revenue-generating  activities  occur. Our  ARPU  for  the  years  ended  December  31,  2021  and 2020 was  $6.13  and  $4.62,
respectively. Our ARPU reflects the seasonality of our advertising revenue, with the fourth quarter typically being the strongest quarter of each year.

Quarterly ARPU

Factors Affecting Our Performance

Growth in and Engagement of Users. We measure growth in, and engagement of, users by tracking WAUs. As the size and engagement of our user base grows, we
believe the potential to increase our revenue grows.
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We  may  face  challenges  increasing  the  size  and  engagement  of  our  user  base  due  to  a  number  of  factors  including  competition,  challenges  in  acquiring  and
engaging users, or changes in regulations.

Growth  in  Monetization.  Monetization  trends,  which  are  reflected  in  our  ARPU,  are  a  key  factor  that  affects  our  revenue  and  financial  results.  To  increase
monetization, we are focused on serving more national brands by building out our salesforce, and enhancing our self-serve tools for customers of all sizes. We are also
focused  on  increasing  our  user  base  and  engagement  in  the  United  States  and  internationally,  which  will  increase  the  opportunities  for  businesses  to  advertise  on
Nextdoor.

There are many variables that impact ARPU, including the number of ad impressions shown on our platform and the price per ad, which depends on a number of
factors including the engagement of our user base, the number and diversity of our customers, seasonality of advertising spend, our customers’ advertising objectives,
advertising  performance,  the  effectiveness  of  our  advertising  products,  our  ability  to  measure  that  effectiveness  for  our  customer,  and  the  effect  of  geographic
differences on each of these factors.

Due to our decision to focus our earliest  monetization efforts in the United States,  we have less experience monetizing international  markets and therefore may
experience challenges scaling and monetizing these markets. The international advertising market is also less mature than the U.S. digital advertising market.

Investment for Growth. We intend to continue to invest in technology that we believe will enhance user and customer experiences. We also intend to continue to
invest heavily in our advertising products, including our self-serve advertising platform and first-party and third-party ad measurement tools, as well as our sales team.
Our ability to grow our user base, attract new advertisers, increase our revenue, and expand our total addressable market will depend, in part, on our ability to continue
innovating.

International Expansion. Our early proof points from launches in certain countries outside of the United States show user engagement across international markets
on par with the U.S. market. We believe that increased international monetization presents an important opportunity for growth, and we are working on localizing our
product and expanding our operations to better serve our international user and customer base. We are still in the early stages of global expansion and will continue to
evaluate  expansion  opportunities  in  our  current  international  markets,  and also  in  additional  geographies.  Over  time,  we believe  that  international  WAUs can grow
rapidly. We also believe that we can increase the monetization of users in international markets and that we can increase long-term ARPU for international WAUs from
current levels. While we expect to grow ARPU for international WAUs, we still expect this to be lower than ARPU for U.S. WAUs. We expect that our international
expansion  will  require  significant  investment.  Although  our  investments  in  international  expansion  may  adversely  affect  our  operating  results  in  the  near  term,  we
believe that they will contribute to our long-term growth. If our near-term investments do not lead to increased international WAUs and ARPU and expected revenue
growth over time, we may not achieve or, if achieved, maintain profitability and our growth rates may slow or decline.

Seasonality. Industry advertising spend tends to be strongest in the fourth quarter, and we observe a similar pattern in our historical revenue. Our significant growth
has partially masked these trends in historical periods.

Components of Results of Operations

Revenue

We generate substantially all of our revenue from the delivery of advertisements on our platform which includes the delivery of advertising impressions sold on a
CPM basis and CPC basis, as well as neighborhood sponsorships and local deals which are sold on a fixed-fee basis. The majority of our revenue is generated in the
United States.

Cost of Revenue

Cost  of  revenue  consists  primarily  of  expenses  associated  with  the  delivery  of  our  revenue  generating  activities,  including  the  third-party  cost  of  hosting  our
platform and allocated personnel-related costs, which include salaries, benefits, and stock-based compensation for employees engaged in development of our revenue
generating products. Cost of revenue also includes third-party costs associated with delivering and supporting our advertising products and credit card transaction fees
related to processing customer transactions.
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We expect cost of revenue will increase on an absolute dollar basis as neighbor activity on our platform increases. While we expect to realize scale benefits over
time, our cost of revenue as a percentage of revenue may vary from period-to-period and is expected to increase modestly over the near and medium term as we invest
in new products and features to further increase platform engagement.

Research and Development

Research  and  development  expenses  consist  primarily  of  personnel-related  costs,  including  salaries,  benefits,  and  stock-based  compensation  for  our  employees
engaged in research and development,  as  well  as  costs  for  consultants,  contractors  and third-party  software.  In  addition,  allocated  overhead costs,  such as  facilities,
information technology, and depreciation are included in research and development expenses.

We expect research and development expenses will  increase on an absolute dollar basis due to investments that we are making in our platform. We expect that
research and development expenses as a percentage of revenue will vary from period-to-period over the short term and decrease over the long term.

Sales and Marketing

Sales  and  marketing  expenses  consist  of  personnel-related  and  other  costs  which  include  salaries,  commissions,  benefits,  and  stock-based  compensation  for
employees engaged in sales and marketing activities as well as other costs including third-party consulting, public relations, allocated overhead costs, and amortization
of acquired intangible assets. Sales and marketing expenses also include brand and performance marketing for both user and small and mid-sized customer acquisition,
and neighbor services, which includes personnel-related costs for our neighbor support team, our outsourced neighbor support function, and verification costs.

Performance  marketing  costs  related  to  user  acquisition  largely  consist  of  the  distribution  of  mailed  invitations  and,  to  a  lesser  extent,  digital  advertising.
Performance marketing costs related to small and mid-sized customer acquisition largely consists of digital advertising and, to a lesser extent, direct mail campaigns.
Fluctuations in our performance marketing expenses are driven by a variety of factors, including but not limited to: our target geographies, whether we are acquiring
users or businesses, assessment of return on investment of marketing spend, strategic priorities, and seasonal factors.

We expect sales and marketing expenses will increase on an absolute dollar basis due to continued investment in sales activities, increased investment in marketing
to acquire users, small and mid-sized customers, and further investment in international expansion. We expect sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue
will vary from period-to-period over the short term and decrease over the long term.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel-related costs, including salaries, benefits, and stock-based compensation for certain executives,
finance, legal, information technology, human resources, and other administrative employees. In addition, general and administrative expenses include fees and costs
for professional services, including consulting, third-party legal and accounting services, and allocated overhead costs.

We expect general and administrative expenses will increase on an absolute dollar basis for the foreseeable future to support our growth as well as due to additional
costs  associated  with  legal,  accounting,  compliance,  investor  relations,  and  other  costs  as  a  result  of  operating  as  a  public  company.  We  expect  general  and
administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue will vary from period-to-period over the short term and decrease over the long term.

Interest Income

Interest income consists of interest earned on our cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other  income (expense),  net  consists  primarily  of  unrealized  gains  and  losses  from the  re-measurement  of  monetary  assets  and  liabilities  denominated  in  non-
functional currencies, and foreign currency transaction gains and losses.
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Provision for Income Taxes

The  provision  for  income  taxes  consists  primarily  of  income  taxes  related  to  foreign  and  state  jurisdictions  in  which  we  conduct  business.  We  maintain  a  full
valuation allowance on our U.S. federal and state deferred tax assets as we have concluded that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Results of Operations

The  results  of  operations  presented  below  should  be  reviewed  in  conjunction  with  our  consolidated  financial  statements  and  related  notes  thereto  included
elsewhere in this Annual Report. The following table sets forth our consolidated results of operations for the periods presented.

Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2021 2020
Revenue $ 192,197 $ 123,284 
Costs and expenses :

Cost of revenue 28,813 21,586 
Research and development 97,096 69,231 
Sales and marketing 106,430 80,325 
General and administrative 54,664 28,793 

Total costs and expenses 287,003 199,935 
Loss from operations (94,806) (76,651)

Interest income 177 727 
Other income (expense), net (539) 817 

Loss before income taxes (95,168) (75,107)
Provision for income taxes 157 127 

Net loss $ (95,325) $ (75,234)

__________________
(1) Includes stock-based compensation expense as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2021 2020
Cost of revenue $ 1,466 $ 905 
Research and development 20,690 10,235 
Sales and marketing 6,388 3,403 
General and administrative 18,970 8,065 
Total $ 47,514 $ 22,608 

(1)
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The following table sets forth the components of our consolidated statements of operations as a percentage of revenue for each of the periods presented:

Years Ended December 31,
(as a percentage of total revenue) 2021 2020
Revenue 100 % 100 %
Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue 15 18 
Research and development 51 56 
Sales and marketing 55 65 
General and administrative 28 23 

Total costs and expenses 149 162 
Loss from operations (49) (62)

Interest income — 1 
Other income (expense), net — 1 

Loss before income taxes (50) (61)
Provision for income taxes — — 

Net loss (50)% (61)%

Note: Certain figures may not sum due to rounding.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenue

Years Ended December 31, Change
(in thousands, except percentages) 2021 2020 $ %
Revenue $ 192,197 $ 123,284 $ 68,913 56 %

Revenue increased by $68.9 million, or 56%, for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily
due to increased advertiser demand across our product offerings, our growing sales team, and increased user engagement as measured by a 32% increase in Q4 WAUs.
ARPU increased 33% primarily due to a 40% increase in the number of impressions delivered, which outpaced WAU growth during the period, and a 7% increase in
the price per delivered impression.

Cost of revenue

Years Ended December 31, Change
(in thousands, except percentages) 2021 2020 $ %
Cost of revenue $ 28,813 $ 21,586 $ 7,227 33 %

Cost  of  revenue increased  by $7.2  million,  or  33%, for  the  year  ended December  31,  2021 compared  to  the  year  ended December  31,  2020.  The increase  was
primarily due to $4.0 million higher third-party hosting costs due to increased user growth and engagement, a $1.4 million increase in third-party costs associated with
delivering and supporting our advertising products, and a $1.1 million increase in allocated personnel-related costs.
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Research and development

Years Ended December 31, Change
(in thousands, except percentages) 2021 2020 $ %
Research and development $ 97,096 $ 69,231 $ 27,865 40 %

Research and development expenses increased by $27.9 million, or 40%, for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020.
The increase was primarily due to a $21.9 million increase in personnel-related costs primarily driven by an increase in headcount, a $2.9 million increase in third-party
software costs, and a $1.7 million increase in allocated overhead costs reflecting an increase in headcount.

Sales and marketing

Years Ended December 31, Change
(in thousands, except percentages) 2021 2020 $ %
Personnel-related and other $ 56,950 $ 45,622 $ 11,328 25 %
Brand and performance marketing 37,534 23,666 13,868 59 %
Neighbor services 11,946 11,037 909 8 %
Total sales and marketing $ 106,430 $ 80,325 $ 26,105 32 %

Sales and marketing expenses increased by $26.1 million, or 32%, for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. The
increase was primarily due to an $11.3 million increase in personnel-related and other costs, which was primarily driven by growth in our sales team who supports large
brands, a $9.9 million increase in performance marketing costs to attract small and mid-sized customers, a $4.0 million increase in performance marketing costs for user
acquisition, and an increase of $0.9 million in neighbor services costs due to the growth of our user base and the corresponding neighbor support and verification costs.

General and administrative

Years Ended December 31, Change
(in thousands, except percentages) 2021 2020 $ %
General and administrative $ 54,664 $ 28,793 $ 25,871 90 %

General and administrative expenses increased by $25.9 million, or 90%, for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020.
The increase was primarily due to a $14.9 million increase in personnel-related costs which was driven by an increase in headcount and also includes a one-time stock-
based  compensation  expense  of  $8.5  million  related  to  a  stock  option  grant  with  a  performance-based  vesting  condition  that  was  satisfied  upon  the  closing  of  the
Merger. General and administrative expenses also experienced a $6.5 million increase in fees for professional services primarily due to costs related to preparations for
and operating as a public company.

Interest income

Years Ended December 31, Change
(in thousands, except percentages) 2021 2020 $ %
Interest income $ 177 $ 727 $ (550) (76)%

Interest  income decreased  by $0.6 million,  or  76%, for  the  year  ended December  31,  2021 compared to  the  year  ended December  31,  2020.  The decrease  was
primarily due to a decline in effective market yields on our marketable securities.
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Other income (expense), net

Years Ended December 31, Change
(in thousands, except percentages)
(NM = Not Meaningful) 2021 2020 $ %
Other income (expense), net $ (539) $ 817 $ (1,356) NM

Other income (expense), net decreased by $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. The decrease was
primarily due to the periodic re-measurement of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies.

Provision for income taxes

Years Ended December 31, Change
(in thousands) 2021 2020 $ %
Provision for income taxes $ 157 $ 127 $ 30 24 %

Provision for income taxes increased by $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was
primarily due to state income tax expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since inception, we have generated negative cash flows from operations and have primarily financed our operations from net proceeds received from the sale of
equity securities and payments received from our customers. As of December 31, 2021, we had raised an aggregate of $470.9 million, net of issuance costs, through the
sales of redeemable convertible preferred stock and issuance of restricted stock. We currently have no debt outstanding. On November 5, 2021, we consummated the
Reverse Recapitalization and received net cash proceeds of $628.5 million, prior to the payment of transaction costs of $5.4 million.

We have generated losses from our operations, as reflected in our accumulated deficit of $480.3 million as of December 31, 2021. We incurred operating losses
and cash outflows from operations by supporting the growth of our business. We expect these losses and operating cash outflows to continue for the foreseeable future.
We also expect to incur significant research and development, sales and marketing, and general and administrative expenses over the next several years in connection
with the continued development and expansion of our business.

As of December 31, 2021, we had $715.8 million in cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities. We
anticipate  satisfying  our  short  term  cash  requirements,  including  meeting  our  working  capital  and  capital  expenditure  requirements,  with  our  existing  cash,  cash
equivalents, and marketable securities. In the long term, we may satisfy our cash requirements with cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities on hand or with
proceeds  from  a  future  equity  or  debt  financing.  Our  ability  to  support  our  requirements  and  plans  for  cash,  including  working  capital  and  capital  expenditure
requirements, will depend on many factors, including the rate of our revenue growth, the timing and extent of spending on research and development efforts and other
business initiatives,  the expansion of sales and marketing activities,  the introduction of new and enhanced product offerings and features,  and the continuing market
adoption of our platform, and our ability to obtain equity or debt financing. Our principal commitments were as follows as of December 31, 2021:

Payments Due By Period

(in thousands) Total Less Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years
More Than 5

Years
Operating lease commitments $ 81,029 $ 10,045 $ 21,004 $ 22,283 $ 27,697 
Non-cancellable purchase commitments 51,923 18,978 32,945 — — 
Total contractual obligations and commitments $ 132,952 $ 29,023 $ 53,949 $ 22,283 $ 27,697 

(1)

(2)
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__________________
(1) The contractual commitment amounts under operating leases in the table above are primarily related to corporate office facility leases.
(2) As of December 31, 2021, our non-cancellable purchase commitments primarily related to third-party hosting costs. These purchase commitments were not recorded as liabilities on the

consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, as we had not yet received the related services.

To the extent existing cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities are insufficient to fund our working capital and capital expenditure requirements, or should
we  require  additional  cash  for  other  purposes,  we  may  attempt  to  raise  additional  capital  through  the  sale  of  equity  or  debt  securities.  If  we  raise  additional  funds
through the issuance of equity or debt securities, those securities may have rights, preferences, or privileges senior to the rights of our Class A and Class B common
stock, and our stockholders may experience dilution. Any future indebtedness we incur may result in terms that could also be unfavorable to our equity investors. There
can be no assurances that we will be able to raise additional capital on terms we deem acceptable, or at all. The inability to raise additional capital as and when required
would have an adverse effect, which could be material, on our results of operations, financial condition, and ability to achieve our business objectives.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We  did  not  have  during  the  periods  presented,  and  we  do  not  currently  have,  any  commitments  or  obligations,  including  contingent  obligations,  arising  from
arrangements with unconsolidated entities or persons that have or are reasonably likely to have a material current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in
financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, cash requirements, or capital resources.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods presented:

Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2021 2020
Net cash used in operating activities $ (51,268) $ (41,604)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $ (149,522) $ 36,792 
Net cash provided by financing activities $ 637,576 $ 6,367 

Operating activities

Cash used in operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2021 was $51.3 million which resulted from a net loss of $(95.3) million, adjusted for non-
cash  charges  of  $52.0  million  and  net  cash  outflows  of  $7.9  million  from  changes  in  operating  assets  and  liabilities.  Non-cash  charges  primarily  consisted  of
$47.5 million of stock-based compensation expense and $4.2 million of depreciation and amortization expense. The net cash outflows from changes in operating assets
and liabilities were primarily due to an $8.2 million increase in accounts receivable, a $4.1 million increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets, and a $5.8
million decrease in operating lease liabilities due to lease payments. These amounts were partially offset by a $6.6 million decrease in operating lease right-of-use assets
due to normal amortization and a $2.8 million increase in accounts payable.

Cash used in operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2020 was $41.6 million which resulted from a net loss of $(75.2) million, adjusted for non-
cash  charges  of  $26.2  million  and  net  cash  inflows  of  $7.4  million  from  changes  in  operating  assets  and  liabilities.  Non-cash  charges  primarily  consisted  of
$22.6 million of stock-based compensation expense and $3.1 million of depreciation and amortization expense. The net cash inflow from changes in operating assets
and liabilities was primarily the result of a $7.7 million increase in accrued expenses and other current liabilities, a $5.2 million decrease in operating lease right-of-use
assets  due  to  normal  amortization,  and  a  $2.5  million  decrease  in  prepaid  expenses  and  other  current  assets.  These  amounts  were  partially  offset  by  a  $4.5  million
decrease in operating lease liabilities due to lease payments and a $3.2 million increase in accounts receivable.

Investing activities
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Cash  used  in  investing  activities  for  the  year  ended  December  31,  2021  was  $149.5  million,  which  consisted  of  purchases  of  marketable  securities  of  $199.8
million and the purchase of property and equipment of $8.8 million. This was offset by proceeds from maturities of marketable securities of $56.7 million and proceeds
from sales of marketable securities of $2.4 million.

Cash provided by investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2020 was $36.8 million, which consisted of proceeds from sales of marketable securities of
$21.8 million and maturities of marketable securities of $97.6 million. This was offset by the purchases of marketable securities of $77.6 million and the purchase of
property and equipment of $5.0 million related to our new San Francisco headquarters.

Financing activities

Cash provided by financing activities  for  the  year  ended December  31,  2021 was $637.6 million,  which included $628.5 million  in  proceeds  from the Reverse
Recapitalization and $15.3 million of proceeds from the exercise of stock options, net of repurchases. This was partially offset by the payment of deferred transaction
costs of $5.4 million.

Cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2020 was $6.4 million, which reflected proceeds from the exercise of stock options, net of
repurchases.

Non-GAAP Financial Measure

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure that represents our net loss adjusted for depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation, net interest
income, provision for income taxes, and acquisition-related costs.

We use  Adjusted  EBITDA in  conjunction  with  GAAP measures  as  part  of  our  overall  assessment  of  our  performance,  including  the  preparation  of  our  annual
operating  budget  and  quarterly  forecasts,  to  evaluate  the  effectiveness  of  our  business  strategies  and  to  communicate  with  our  Board  of  Directors  concerning  our
financial  performance.  We  believe  Adjusted  EBITDA  is  also  helpful  to  investors,  analysts,  and  other  interested  parties  because  it  can  assist  in  providing  a  more
consistent and comparable overview of our operations across our historical financial periods. Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, however, and you
should not consider it  in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results  as reported under GAAP. Because of these limitations,  you should consider Adjusted
EBITDA alongside other financial performance measures, including net loss and our other GAAP results. In evaluating Adjusted EBITDA, you should be aware that in
the future we may incur expenses that are the same as or similar to some of the adjustments in this presentation. Our presentation of Adjusted EBITDA should not be
construed  to  imply  that  our  future  results  will  be  unaffected  by  the  types  of  items  excluded  from  the  calculation  of  Adjusted  EBITDA.  Adjusted  EBITDA  is  not
presented in accordance with GAAP and the use of this term varies from others in our industry.

The following is a reconciliation of net loss, the most comparable GAAP measure, to Adjusted EBITDA:

Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2021 2020
Net loss $ (95,325) $ (75,234)
Depreciation and amortization 4,172 3,058 
Stock-based compensation 47,514 22,608 
Interest income (177) (727)
Provision for income taxes 157 127 
Adjusted EBITDA $ (43,659) $ (50,168)

64



Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We  prepare  our  consolidated  financial  statements  in  accordance  with  GAAP.  Preparing  consolidated  financial  statements  requires  us  to  make  estimates  and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses, and related disclosures. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on an ongoing
basis. Our estimates are based on historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Our actual results could
differ from these estimates.

The critical  accounting policies requiring estimates,  assumptions,  and judgments that  we believe have the most significant  impact on our consolidated financial
statements are described below.

Revenue Recognition

We generate a majority of our revenue from the delivery of advertising services.

We determine revenue recognition through the following steps:

1) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

2) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

3) Determination of the transaction price;

4) Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

5) Recognition of revenue when, or as, we satisfy a performance obligation.

We recognize  advertising  revenue  after  satisfying  our  contractual  performance  obligation,  which,  for  the  majority  of  our  advertising  arrangements,  is  when  an
advertising impression is displayed to users. None of our arrangements contain minimum impression guarantees. We typically bill advertisers on a monthly basis and
our payment terms vary by customer type and location. We have other advertising arrangements for the sale of neighborhood sponsorship and local deals which are
typically fixed-fee arrangements and revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable contractual term of the agreement, generally beginning on
the date our service is made available to the customer.

Deferred Revenue

In certain advertising arrangements we require payment upfront from our customers. We record deferred revenue when we collect cash from customers in advance
of revenue recognition.

Leases

At the inception of our contracts we determine if the contract is or contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Operating leases consist of real estate leases and are included in operating lease right-of-use assets
and operating lease liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets at commencement date based on the present value of remaining fixed lease payments.

When the discount rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined, we use the applicable incremental borrowing rate at lease commencement in order to
discount  lease  payments  to present  value for  purposes  of  performing lease  classification  tests  and measuring the lease liability.  The incremental  borrowing rate  is  a
hypothetical rate based on the rate of interest we would have to pay to borrow on a collateralized basis over a similar term and amount equal to the lease payments in a
similar economic environment.

Stock-based compensation

Stock-based  compensation  expense  for  stock-based  awards  is  measured  based  on  the  grant  date  fair  value  of  the  awards  and  recognized  in  the  consolidated
statements of operations on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
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period of the awards. The grant date fair value of stock options granted is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Forfeitures are accounted for as they
occur.  Historically,  our  stock option awards  and restricted  stock permitted  early  exercise.  The unvested portion  of  shares  exercised  is  recorded as  a  liability  on our
consolidated balance sheets and reclassified into stockholders’ equity (deficit) as vesting occurs.

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model requires the use of highly subjective assumptions. These assumptions are estimated as follows:

• Fair Value of the Underlying Common Stock—Prior to the Reverse Recapitalization, the Board of Directors considered numerous objective and subjective
factors to determine the fair value of our common stock. After the Reverse Recapitalization, the fair value of the underlying common stock is determined by
the closing price, on the date of grant, of our Class A common stock, which is traded on the New York Stock Exchange.

• Expected Volatility—Expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which the stock price is expected to fluctuate. Since we do not have sufficient trading
history of our common stock, we estimate the expected volatility of our stock options at their grant date by taking the weighted average historical volatility of
a group of comparable publicly traded companies over a period equal to the expected term of the options;

• Expected Term—We determine the expected term based on the average period the stock options are expected to remain outstanding using the simplified
method, calculated as the midpoint of the stock options’ vesting term and contractual expiration period, as we do not have sufficient historical information to
develop reasonable expectations about future exercise patterns and post-vesting employment termination behavior;

• Risk Free Interest Rate—We use the U.S. Treasury yield for our risk-free interest rate that corresponds with the expected term; and

• Dividend Yield—We utilize a dividend yield of zero, as we do not currently issue dividends and do not expect to in the future.

Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes in the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining our uncertain tax positions.
We  recognize  a  tax  benefit  from  an  uncertain  tax  position  only  if  it  is  more  likely  than  not  that  the  tax  position  will  be  sustained  on  examination  by  the  taxing
authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.

We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in the consolidated financial statements or in our tax returns. Deferred income taxes are recognized for differences
between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities at the enacted statutory tax rates in effect for the years in which the temporary differences are expected
to reverse. We make an assessment of the likelihood that the resulting deferred tax assets will be realized. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.

JOBS Act Accounting Election

We  are  an  “emerging  growth  company”  as  defined  in  Section  2(a)  of  the  Securities  Act,  and  have  elected  to  take  advantage  of  the  benefits  of  the  extended
transition  period  for  complying  with  new  or  revised  accounting  standards.  We  expect  to  use  this  extended  transition  period  for  complying  with  new  or  revised
accounting  standards  until  the  earlier  of  the  date  we  (a)  are  no  longer  an  emerging  growth  company  or  (b)  affirmatively  and  irrevocably  opt  out  of  the  extended
transition period provided for in the JOBS Act. This may make it difficult  or impossible to compare our financial results with the financial results of another public
company that is either not an emerging growth company or is an emerging growth company that has chosen not to take advantage of the extended transition period
exemptions because of the potential differences in accounting standards used. See Note 2 of the accompanying
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audited  consolidated  financial  statements  included  elsewhere  in  this  Annual  Report  for  the  recent  accounting  pronouncements  adopted  and  the  recent  accounting
pronouncements not yet adopted for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

In addition, we intend to rely on the other exemptions and reduced reporting requirements provided by the JOBS Act. Subject to certain conditions set forth in the
JOBS Act, as an emerging growth company, we are not required to, among other things: (a) provide an auditor’s attestation report on our system of internal control over
financial reporting pursuant to Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act; (b) provide all of the compensation disclosure that may be required of non-emerging growth
public companies under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act; and (c) disclose certain executive compensation-related items such as the
comparison of the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation to median employee compensation.

We will remain an emerging growth company under the JOBS Act until the earliest of (a) the last day of our first fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the
IPO, (b) the last date of the fiscal year in which our total annual gross revenue is at least $1.1 billion, (c) the date on which we are deemed to be a “large accelerated
filer” under the rules of the SEC with at least $700.0 million of outstanding securities held by non-affiliates or (d) the date on which we have issued more than $1.0
billion in non-convertible debt securities during the previous three years.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2 to  our  consolidated  financial  statements  included  elsewhere  in  this  Annual  Report  for  more  information  regarding  recently  issued  accounting
pronouncements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk in the ordinary course of our business. Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our financial condition due to adverse
changes in financial market prices and rates. Our market risk exposure is primarily the result of fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest Rate Risk

As of December 31, 2021, we had cash and cash equivalents of $521.8 million and marketable securities of $194.0 million. Our cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash in bank accounts, demand deposits, and money market funds. The primary objectives of our investment activities are to preserve principal and provide liquidity
without significantly increasing risk. We do not enter into investments for trading or speculative purposes. Due to the relatively short-term nature of our investment
portfolio, a hypothetical 100 basis point change in interest rates would not have a material effect on the fair value of our portfolio for the periods presented.

Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency of our international subsidiaries is generally their local currency. Our sales are typically denominated in the local currency of the country
in which the sale was made. The majority of our revenue is denominated in U.S. Dollars. As such, our revenue is not currently exposed to significant foreign currency
risk.  Our  operating  expenses  are  generally  denominated  in  the  currency  of  the  countries  in  which  the  operations  are  located,  and  are  subject  to  fluctuations  due  to
changes in foreign currency exchange rates, particularly the British Pound, the Euro, Canadian Dollar, and the Australian Dollar. Our consolidated results of operations
and cash flows are, therefore, subject to fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates and may be adversely affected in the future due to changes in
foreign exchange rates.  During the years  ended December 31,  2021 and 2020, we do not  believe a 10% change in the relative value of the U.S. Dollar  would have
materially affected our consolidated financial statements. To date, we have not had a formal hedging program with respect to foreign currency, but we may do so in the
future if our exposure to foreign currency should become more significant.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Nextdoor Holdings, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the related consolidated
statements of operations, comprehensive loss, redeemable convertible preferred stock and stockholders' equity (deficit) and cash flows for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2021, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements
based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2018.
Redwood City, California
March 15, 2022
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Nextdoor Holdings, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except per share data)
As of December 31,

2021 2020
Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 521,812 $ 83,642 
Marketable securities 193,999 53,341 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $425 and $313 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively 29,673 21,818 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 16,259 5,453 
Restricted cash, current — 1,101 

Total current assets 761,743 165,355 
Property and equipment, net 12,545 5,718 
Operating lease right-of-use assets 59,422 37,776 
Intangible assets, net 4,835 6,987 
Goodwill 1,211 1,211 
Other assets 330 700 

Total assets $ 840,086 $ 217,747 
Liabilities, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 6,163 $ 3,354 
Operating lease liabilities, current 7,131 3,348 
Liability for unvested restricted stock 4,765 10,483 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 15,444 14,998 

Total current liabilities 33,503 32,183 
Operating lease liabilities, non-current 61,598 36,254 

Total liabilities 95,101 68,437 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)

Redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; no shares authorized, issued, and outstanding as of December 31, 2021;
190,477 shares authorized, issued, and outstanding as of December 31, 2020; aggregate liquidation preference of $447,890 as of
December 31, 2020 — 447,166 

Stockholders' equity (deficit):
Class A Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 2,500,000 shares authorized as of December 31, 2021; 78,954 shares issued and

outstanding as of December 31, 2021; no shares authorized, issued, and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 8 — 
Class B Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 500,000 and 375,788 shares authorized as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

respectively; 304,701 and 103,777 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively 30 10 
Additional paid-in capital 1,225,815 87,945 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (529) (797)
Accumulated deficit (480,339) (385,014)

Total stockholders' equity (deficit) 744,985 (297,856)
Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred stock and stockholders' equity (deficit) $ 840,086 $ 217,747 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Nextdoor Holdings, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share data)

 
Years Ended
December 31,

 2021 2020
Revenue $ 192,197 $ 123,284 
Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue 28,813 21,586 
Research and development 97,096 69,231 
Sales and marketing 106,430 80,325 
General and administrative 54,664 28,793 

Total costs and expenses 287,003 199,935 
Loss from operations (94,806) (76,651)

Interest income 177 727 
Other income (expense), net (539) 817 

Loss before income taxes (95,168) (75,107)
Provision for income taxes 157 127 

Net loss $ (95,325) $ (75,234)

Net loss per share attributable to Class A and Class B common stockholders, basic and diluted $ (0.65) $ (0.83)
Weighted average shares used in computing net loss per share attributable to Class A and Class B common stockholders,

basic and diluted 146,337 90,190 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Nextdoor Holdings, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Net loss $ (95,325) $ (75,234)
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments 283 (796)
Change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale marketable securities (15) (36)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 268 (832)
Comprehensive loss $ (95,057) $ (76,066)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Nextdoor Holdings, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(in thousands) 

Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock Class A Common Stock Class B Common Stock Additional

Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Accumulated
Deficit

Total
Stockholders'

(Deficit)
Equity Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balances as of December 31, 2019 190,477 $ 447,166 — $ — 97,777 $ 10 $ 52,439 $ 35 $ (309,780) $ (257,296)
Issuance of common stock upon

exercise of stock options, net of
repurchases of unvested common
stock — — — — 6,801 — 6,367 — — 6,367 

Cancellation of restricted stock and
unvested common stock issued
in connection with acquisition,
net of common stock issued — — — — (801) — — — — — 

Release of holdback stock in
connection with acquisition — — — — — — 291 — — 291 

Vesting of early exercised stock
options — — — — — — 522 — — 522 

Vesting of restricted stock — — — — — — 5,718 — — 5,718 
Stock-based compensation — — — — — — 22,608 — — 22,608 
Other comprehensive loss — — — — — — — (832) — (832)
Net loss — — — — — — — — (75,234) (75,234)

Balances as of December 31, 2020 190,477 $ 447,166 — $ — 103,777 $ 10 $ 87,945 $ (797) $ (385,014) $ (297,856)
Conversion of redeemable

convertible preferred stock into
Class B common stock in
connection with the Reverse
Recapitalization (190,477) (447,166) — — 190,477 19 447,147 — — 447,166 

Issuance of common stock upon the
Reverse Recapitalization, net of
issuance costs — — 78,954 8 — — 622,580 — — 622,588 

Release of restricted stock units — — — — 101 0 — — — — 
Tax withholdings on release of

restricted stock units — — — — — — (863) — — (863)
Issuance of common stock upon

exercise of stock options, net of
repurchases of unvested common
stock — — — — 10,325 1 15,333 — — 15,334 

Issuance of common stock in
connection with acquisition — — — — 21 0 — — — — 

Vesting of early exercised stock
options — — — — — — 442 — — 442 

Vesting of restricted stock — — — — — — 5,717 — — 5,717 
Stock-based compensation — — — — — — 47,514 — — 47,514 
Other comprehensive income — — — — — — — 268 — 268 
Net loss — — — — — — — — (95,325) (95,325)

Balances as of December 31, 2021 — $ — 78,954 $ 8 304,701 $ 30 $ 1,225,815 $ (529) $ (480,339) $ 744,985 

(1) The shares of the Company’s common and redeemable convertible preferred stock prior to the Reverse Recapitalization (as defined in Note 1) have been retroactively restated to reflect the
exchange ratio of 3.1057 established in the Merger Agreement as described in Note 3.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(1) (1)
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Nextdoor Holdings, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)
Years Ended December 31,

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (95,325) $ (75,234)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 4,172 3,058 
Stock-based compensation 47,514 22,608 
Bad debt expense 317 291 
Other 3 239 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (8,172) (3,173)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (4,087) 2,472 
Operating lease right-of-use assets 6,605 5,181 
Other assets 370 (221)
Accounts payable 2,759 15 
Operating lease liabilities (5,844) (4,529)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 420 7,689 

Net cash used in operating activities (51,268) (41,604)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment (8,846) (5,023)
Purchases of marketable securities (199,832) (77,600)
Sales of marketable securities 2,411 21,826 
Maturities of marketable securities 56,745 97,589 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (149,522) 36,792 
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from exercise of stock options, net of repurchases 15,334 6,367 
Proceeds from the Reverse Recapitalization 628,489 — 
Payment of transaction costs related to the Reverse Recapitalization (5,384) — 
Tax withholdings on release of restricted stock units (863) — 

Net cash provided by financing activities 637,576 6,367 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 283 (796)

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 437,069 759 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at beginning of period 84,743 83,984 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at end of period $ 521,812 $ 84,743 
Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash to the consolidated balance sheets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 521,812 $ 83,642 
Restricted cash — 1,101 
Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash $ 521,812 $ 84,743 
Supplemental cash flow disclosures:

Cash paid for taxes $ 313 $ 30 
Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Vesting of restricted stock and early exercised stock options $ 6,159 $ 6,240 
Lease liabilities arising from obtaining right-of-use assets $ 34,971 $ 40,790 
Unpaid deferred transaction costs $ 314 $ — 
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock into Class B common stock in connection with the Reverse

Recapitalization $ 447,166 $ — 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Description of Business

Nextdoor  Holdings,  Inc.  (“Nextdoor”  or  the  “Company”)  is  headquartered  in  San  Francisco,  California.  Nextdoor’s  purpose  is  to  cultivate  a  kinder  world  where
everyone has a neighborhood they can rely on. That purpose enables the Company’s mission to be the neighborhood hub for trusted connections and the exchange of
helpful information, goods, and services.

On  November  5,  2021  (the  “Closing”),  the  Company  consummated  the  transactions  contemplated  by  the  Agreement  and  Plan  of  Merger,  dated  July  6,  2021,  as
amended on September  30,  2021 (the “Merger  Agreement”),  by and among Khosla  Ventures  Acquisition Co.  II  (“KVSB”),  a  special  purpose acquisition company,
Lorelei  Merger  Sub  Inc.  (“Merger  Sub”),  and  Nextdoor,  Inc.  (“Legacy  Nextdoor”),  with  Legacy  Nextdoor  surviving  as  a  wholly  owned  subsidiary  of  KVSB  (the
“Merger” and, collectively with the other transactions that occurred in connection with the Merger, including the PIPE Investment (as described in Note 3, the “Reverse
Recapitalization”).  In  connection  with  the  Closing,  KVSB  was  renamed  to  Nextdoor  Holdings,  Inc.  Reported  results  from  operations  included  herein  prior  to  the
Reverse Recapitalization are those of Legacy Nextdoor.

See Note 3 - Reverse Recapitalization for further details.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company’s fiscal year ends on
December 31.

The Merger was accounted for as a reverse recapitalization in accordance with GAAP. This determination was primarily based on the evaluation of the following facts
and circumstances:

• Legacy Nextdoor stockholders had a relative majority of the voting power of Nextdoor;

• The Board of Directors of Nextdoor had ten members, and Legacy Nextdoor stockholders had the ability to nominate a majority of the members of the Board
of Directors;

• Legacy Nextdoor’s senior management comprised the senior management roles of Nextdoor and were responsible for the day-to-day operations;

• Nextdoor assumed the Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. name and Legacy Nextdoor’s corporate headquarters; and

• The  intended  strategy  and  operations  of  Nextdoor  continued  Legacy  Nextdoor’s  strategy  and  operations  to  leverage  technology  to  connect  millions  of
neighbors online and in real life to build stronger, more vibrant, and resilient neighborhoods.

Under this method of accounting, KVSB was treated as the “acquired” company for financial  reporting purposes. Accordingly, the financial  statements of Nextdoor
represent the continuation of the financial statements of Legacy Nextdoor, with the Merger reflected as the equivalent of Nextdoor issuing common stock for the net
assets  of  KVSB, accompanied by a  recapitalization.  The shares  and corresponding capital  amounts and all  per  share data  related to  Legacy Nextdoor’s outstanding
redeemable  convertible  preferred  stock,  common  stock,  and  stock-based  awards  prior  to  the  Reverse  Recapitalization  have  been  retroactively  adjusted  using  the
Exchange Ratio (as defined in Note 3).  The conversion of the outstanding shares of Legacy Nextdoor redeemable convertible preferred stock into shares of Class B
common  stock  in  connection  with  the  Reverse  Recapitalization  and  the  issuance  of  Class  A  common  stock  are  presented  as  of  the  Closing  of  the  Merger  in  the
consolidated  statements  of  redeemable  convertible  preferred  stock  and  stockholders’  equity  (deficit).  The  net  assets  of  KVSB were  recognized  as  of  the  Closing  at
historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded. Operations prior to the Merger are those of Legacy Nextdoor and Legacy Nextdoor’s operations are
the only ongoing operations of Nextdoor.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation  of  financial  statements  in  conformity  with  GAAP requires  management  to  make  estimates  and  assumptions  that  affect  the  amounts  reported  in  the
consolidated  financial  statements  and accompanying  notes.  Estimates  include,  but  are  not  limited  to,  valuation  of  financial  instruments,  valuation  of  common stock
through  the  date  of  the  Reverse  Recapitalization,  valuation  of  stock-based  awards,  revenue  recognition,  collectability  of  accounts  receivable,  valuation  of  acquired
intangible  assets  and goodwill,  useful  lives  of  intangible  assets,  useful  lives of  property and equipment,  the incremental  borrowing rate  applied in lease accounting,
income taxes and deferred income tax assets and associated valuation allowances. The Company bases these estimates and assumptions on historical experience and
various other assumptions that it considers reasonable. The actual results could differ materially from these estimates.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company’s international subsidiaries is generally their local currency. The financial statements of these subsidiaries are translated into
U.S.  dollars  using  month-end  exchange  rates  for  assets  and  liabilities,  historical  exchange  rates  for  equity,  and  average  exchange  rates  for  revenue  and  expenses.
Translation  gains  and  losses  are  recorded  in  accumulated  other  comprehensive  income  (loss)  as  a  component  of  stockholders’  equity  (deficit).  Unrealized  foreign
exchange gains and losses due to the re-measurement of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies and realized foreign exchange gains
and losses on foreign exchange transactions are recorded in other income (expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with insignificant interest rate risk and original maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase.
Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and money market accounts. Interest is accrued as earned. Cash and cash equivalents are recorded at cost, which
approximates fair value.

Marketable Securities

The Company’s  marketable  securities  are  comprised  of  commercial  paper,  corporate  securities,  U.S.  Treasury  securities,  and asset-backed  securities.  The Company
determines  the  appropriate  classification  of  its  investments  at  the  time  of  purchase  and  reevaluates  such  designation  at  each  balance  sheet  date.  The  Company  has
classified and accounted for its investments as available-for-sale securities as the Company may sell these securities at any time for use in its current operations or for
other purposes, even prior to maturity. As a result, the Company classifies its investments, including securities with stated maturities beyond 12 months, within current
assets on the consolidated balance sheets.

Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value each reporting period. Unrealized gains and losses on these investments are reported as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) on the consolidated balance sheets until realized. Interest income is reported within interest income in the consolidated
statements of operations. The Company periodically evaluates its marketable securities to assess whether those with unrealized loss positions are other-than-temporarily
impaired. The Company considers various factors in determining whether to recognize an impairment charge, including the length of time the investment has been in a
loss position, the extent to which the fair value is less than the Company’s cost basis, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the investee. Realized gains and
losses are determined based on the specific identification method and are reported in other income (expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations. If the
Company  determines  that  the  decline  in  an  investment’s  fair  value  is  other  than  temporary,  the  difference  is  recognized  as  an  impairment  loss  in  the  consolidated
statements of operations. The Company did not consider any of its investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company accounts for certain assets and liabilities at fair value, which is the expected exchange price that would be received for an asset or an exit price paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
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participants on the measurement date. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified into the following categories based on the degree to which the inputs
the Company uses to measure the fair values are observable in active markets. The Company uses the most observable inputs available when measuring fair value.

• Level 1: Observable inputs such as unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

• Level 2: Observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive
markets, or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data or other means; and

• Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company records accounts receivable at the original invoiced amount. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for any receivables it may be
unable to collect and reduces the allowance when it determines that it will be unable to collect specific receivables. The Company determines the allowance based on its
receivables’ age, the customers’ credit quality, and current economic conditions, among other factors that may affect the customers’ ability to pay.

Restricted Cash

The Company’s  restricted  cash  balance  is  primarily  invested  in  a  savings  account  and pledged  as  collateral  for  standby letters  of  credit  as  security  deposits  for  the
Company’s office leases. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had restricted cash balances of $0 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property  and  equipment  are  recorded  at  cost,  less  accumulated  depreciation  and  amortization.  Depreciation  and  amortization  are  computed  using  the  straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Estimated Useful Life
Computer equipment and software 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Leasehold improvements
Shorter of the estimated useful life of 5 years or

the lease term

Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred.

Capitalized Internal-use Software

The Company capitalizes  internal-use  software  costs  when preliminary  development  efforts  are  successfully  completed,  management  has  authorized  and committed
project funding, and it is probable that the project will be completed, and the software will be used as intended. Costs related to preliminary project activities and post-
implementation  activities  are  expensed  as  incurred  and  costs  related  to  the  application  development  stage  are  capitalized.  Capitalized  costs  are  recorded  as  part  of
property and equipment, net. The capitalized costs related to internal-use software are amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of two to three
years. Management evaluates the useful lives of these assets on an annual basis and tests for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances occur that could
impact the recoverability of these assets. The Company capitalized no internal-use software costs and $0.2 million of internal-use software costs for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Business Combinations
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The Company includes the results  of operations of the businesses that  it  acquires from the date of  acquisition.  The Company accounts for  its  acquisitions using the
acquisition method of accounting. The Company allocates the fair value of purchase consideration to the tangible assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and intangible
assets acquired, based on their estimated fair values. The excess of the fair value of purchase consideration over the values of these identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. When determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, management makes significant estimates and assumptions, especially
with respect to intangible assets. Significant estimates in valuing certain identifiable assets include, but are not limited to, expected long-term market growth, future
expected operating expenses, appropriate discount rates, and useful lives. Management’s estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable,
but which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and, as a result, actual results may differ from estimates. Acquisition costs, such as legal and consulting fees, are
expensed  as  incurred.  During the  measurement  period,  the  Company may record  adjustments  to  the  assets  acquired  and liabilities  assumed,  with  the  corresponding
offset to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of the measurement period, which is not to exceed one year from the acquisition date, any subsequent adjustments are recorded
in the consolidated statements of operations. See Note 4 - Acquisitions for additional information regarding the Company’s acquisition.

Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets

Goodwill  represents  the  excess  of  the  purchase  price  over  the  fair  value  of  net  assets  acquired  in  connection  with  business  combinations  accounted  for  using  the
acquisition method of accounting.  Goodwill  is  not  amortized,  but  is  tested for  impairment  at  least  annually,  in the fourth quarter,  or  whenever events or  changes in
circumstances indicate that goodwill might be impaired. For all periods presented the Company had one reporting unit. The Company’s test for goodwill impairment
starts with a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is necessary to perform the quantitative goodwill impairment test. If the Company determines, based on the
qualitative factors, that the fair value of the reporting unit is more likely than not to be less than the carrying amount, then a quantitative goodwill impairment test is
required. There was no impairment of goodwill recorded for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Intangible  assets  consist  of  identifiable  intangible  assets,  including  customer  relationships  and  developed  technology,  resulting  from  the  Company’s  acquisitions.
Acquired  intangible  assets  are  recorded at  cost,  net  of  accumulated  amortization.  Intangible  assets  are  amortized  on a  straight-line  basis  over  their  estimated  useful
lives. Amortization costs are recorded in sales and marketing in the consolidated statements of operations.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Property  and equipment  and other  long-lived  assets,  such  as  finite-lived  intangible  assets,  subject  to  amortization,  are  reviewed for  impairment  whenever  events  or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of these assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amounts to the future undiscounted cash flows the assets are expected to generate. If impairment is indicated, an impairment loss is recognized as the amount by which
the carrying amount exceeds the fair value. No impairment was required for long-lived assets for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Leases

Results and disclosure requirements for all periods presented are presented under ASU 2016-02, Leases (“Topic 842”).

The Company has various lease agreements related to real estate that are all classified as operating leases. At the inception of the Company’s contracts it determines if
the contract is or contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.  The Company has elected not  to separate  the lease and non-lease components  within the contract.  For leases that  have greater  than a 12-month lease
term, right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and operating lease liabilities are recognized on the consolidated balance sheets at commencement date based on the present value of
remaining fixed lease payments.
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Certain of the Company’s leases include options to extend the lease, with renewal terms that can extend the lease term from one month to five years. If the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, the extension period is included as part of the ROU asset and the operating lease liability.

When the discount rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at lease commencement in order to discount
lease  payments  to  present  value  for  purposes  of  performing  lease  classification  tests  and  measuring  the  lease  liability.  The  Company’s  incremental  borrowing  rate
represents  the rate  of  interest  the Company would have to  pay to  borrow, on a collateralized  basis,  over  a  similar  term an amount  equal  to  the lease payments  in  a
similar economic environment.

The operating lease ROU asset  also includes accrued lease expense resulting from the straight-line accounting under prior  accounting methods,  which is  now being
amortized over the remaining life of the lease.

The  Company’s  lease  payments  are  largely  fixed.  Variable  lease  payments  exist  in  circumstances  such  as  payments  for  property  tax,  insurance,  and  common  area
maintenance.  Variable  lease  payments  are  recognized  in  operating  expense  in  the  period  in  which  the  obligation  for  those  payments  are  incurred.  Certain  of  the
Company’s leases include an option to early terminate the lease. The Company’s leases may contain early termination options which may result in an early termination
fee. The Company early terminated one of its leases in October 2020 and incurred an early termination fee of $0.1 million. The Company has a significant lease for its
new headquarters  in San Francisco,  California,  which does not include an option to early terminate.  The first  portion of the lease commenced in June 2020 and the
second, and final portion of the lease, commenced in January 2021.

For the Company’s leases, it has elected to not apply the recognition requirements to leases of twelve months or less. These leases are expensed on a straight-line basis
and no operating lease liability will be recorded.

Concentration of Credit and Customer Risks

Financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and accounts receivable.
The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities with domestic and foreign financial institutions and at times may exceed federally insured
limits. The Company performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of these institutions. The Company maintains investments in U.S. government debt
and agency securities, corporate debt securities, and commercial paper that carry high credit ratings and accordingly, minimal credit risk exists with respect to these
balances.

One customer represented 10% or more of accounts receivable and no customer represented 10% or more of revenue as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021.
No customer represented 10% or more of accounts receivable or revenue as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates a majority of its revenue from the delivery of advertising services.
The Company determines revenue recognition through the following steps:

(1) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer

(2) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract

(3) Determination of the transaction price

(4) Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

(5) Recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation

The Company recognizes advertising revenue after satisfying its contractual performance obligation, which, for the majority of its advertising arrangements, is when an
advertising impression is displayed to users. None of the Company’s arrangements contain minimum impression guarantees. The Company typically bills advertisers on
a
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monthly basis and the payment terms vary by customer type and location. The Company has other advertising arrangements for the sale of neighborhood sponsorship
and local deals which are typically fixed-fee arrangements and revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable contractual term of the agreement,
generally beginning on the date its service is made available to the customer.

Deferred Revenue

In  certain  advertising  arrangements  the  Company  requires  payment  upfront  from its  customers.  The  Company  records  deferred  revenue  when  it  collects  cash  from
customers  in  advance  of  revenue  recognition.  As  of  December  31,  2021  and  2020,  deferred  revenue  was  $3.4  million  and  $2.6  million,  respectively,  and  included
within accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, revenue recognized from
deferred revenue at the beginning of each year was $2.5 million and $0.7 million, respectively.

Practical Expedients and Exemptions

The Company expenses sales commissions as incurred because the expected period of benefit is less than one year. These costs are recorded within sales and marketing
expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

The Company does not disclose the value of unsatisfied performance obligations for (i) contracts with an original expected length of one year or less and (ii) contracts
for which it recognizes revenue at the amount to which it has the right to invoice for services performed.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of expenses associated with the delivery of the Company’s revenue generating activities, including third-party costs of hosting its
platform  and  allocated  personnel-related  costs,  including  salaries,  benefits  and  stock-based  compensation  for  employees  engaged  in  development  of  its  revenue
generating products. Cost of revenue also includes third-party costs associated with delivering and supporting its advertising products and credit card transaction fees
related to processing customer transactions.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses consist primarily of personnel-related costs, including salaries, benefits and stock-based compensation for its employees engaged
in research and development, as well as costs for consultants, contractors and third-party software. In addition, allocated overhead costs, such as facilities, information
technology, and depreciation are included in research and development expenses.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of personnel-related costs and other costs which include salaries, commissions, benefits, and stock-based compensation
for  employees  engaged  in  sales  and  marketing  activities  as  well  as  other  costs  including  third-party  consulting,  public  relations,  allocated  overhead  costs,  and
amortization of acquired intangible assets. Sales and marketing expenses also include brand and performance marketing for both user and small and mid-sized customer
acquisition,  and  neighbor  services,  which  includes  personnel-related  costs  for  the  Company's  neighbor  support  team,  its  outsourced  neighbor  support  function,  and
verification costs.

General and Administrative

General  and  administrative  expenses  consist  primarily  of  personnel-related  costs,  including  salaries,  benefits,  and  stock-based  compensation,  for  certain  executives,
finance, legal, information technology, human resources, and other administrative employees. In addition, general and administrative expenses include fees and costs
for professional services, including consulting, third-party legal and accounting services, and allocated overhead costs.
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Advertising Costs

Advertising  costs  which  consist  primarily  of  brand  and  performance  marketing  are  expensed  as  incurred  and  are  included  in  sales  and  marketing  expense  in  the
consolidated  statements  of  operations.  Total  advertising  costs  incurred  were  $37.5  million  and  $23.7  million  for  the  years  ended  December  31,  2021  and  2020,
respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future
tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the consolidated financial statements or in the Company’s tax returns. Deferred income taxes are recognized
for  differences  between  financial  reporting  and  tax  bases  of  assets  and  liabilities  at  the  enacted  statutory  tax  rates  in  effect  for  the  years  in  which  the  temporary
differences are expected to reverse. Management makes an assessment of the likelihood that the resulting deferred tax assets will be realized. A valuation allowance is
provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. Due to the Company’s historical operating performance and
the recorded cumulative net losses in prior fiscal periods, the U.S. net deferred tax assets have been fully offset by a valuation allowance.

The Company operates in various tax jurisdictions which are subject to audit by various tax authorities. The Company recognizes a tax benefit from an uncertain tax
position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.
The  tax  benefits  recognized  in  the  financial  statements  from such  positions  are  then  measured  based  on  the  largest  benefit  that  has  a  greater  than  50% cumulative
likelihood of being realized upon settlement.  The Company recognizes interest  and penalties  related to unrecognized tax benefits  in the income tax provision in the
consolidated statements of operations.

Net Loss Per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

The Company presents net loss per share attributable to common stockholders in conformity with the two-class method required for multiple classes of common stock
and participating securities. Under the two-class method, net loss is attributed to common stockholders and participating securities based on their participation rights.
The rights, including the liquidation and dividend rights, of the Class A common stock and Class B common stock are substantially identical, other than voting rights.
Accordingly,  the  Class  A  common  stock  and  Class  B  common  stock  share  proportionately  in  the  Company’s  net  losses.  The  Company  considers  its  redeemable
convertible  preferred  stock  (prior  to  the  Reverse  Recapitalization),  early  exercised  stock  options,  and  unvested  restricted  stock  to  be  participating  securities  and
contractually entitles the holders of such shares to participate in dividends but does not contractually obligate the holders of such shares to participate in the Company’s
losses. As such, net losses for the periods presented were not allocated to these securities.

The Company computes basic net  loss per  share attributable  to common stockholders  by dividing the net  loss attributable  to common stockholders  by the weighted
average number  of  shares  of  common stock outstanding during the period,  adjusted for  outstanding shares  that  are  subject  to  repurchase.  Diluted net  loss  per  share
attributable to common stockholders is computed by giving effect to all potentially dilutive securities outstanding for the period. For periods in which the Company
reports net losses, diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is the same as basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, because all
potentially dilutive securities are anti-dilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense for stock-based awards granted to employees and non-employees is measured based on the grant date fair value of the awards and
recognized in the consolidated statements of operations on a straight-line basis over the period during which services are provided in exchange for the award, generally,
the vesting period of the award. The grant date fair value of stock options granted is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Forfeitures are accounted
for as they occur.
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Segments

The Company has one reportable and operating segment. The Company’s chief operating decision maker is its Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), who reviews financial
information presented on a  consolidated basis  for  purposes  of  making operating decisions,  assessing financial  performance,  and allocating resources.  See Note 14 -
Geographical Information for more details on the Company’s revenue and long-lived assets by jurisdiction.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework-Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value
Measurement. ASU  2018-13  changes  the  disclosure  requirements  for  fair  value  measurement.  The  Company  adopted  this  standard  as  of  January  1,  2020,  and  the
adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of  Credit  Losses on Financial  Instruments,  and has
since issued various amendments including ASU 2018-19, ASU 2019-04, and ASU 2019-05. The guidance and related amendments modify the accounting for credit
losses for  most  financial  assets  and require  the use of  an expected loss model,  replacing the currently  used incurred loss  method.  Under this  model,  entities  will  be
required to estimate the lifetime expected credit loss on such instruments and record an allowance to offset the amortized cost basis of the financial asset, resulting in a
net presentation of the amount expected to be collected on the financial asset. The new guidance will be effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2023, though
early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes – Topic 740 – Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes,  which simplifies the accounting for
income taxes by removing certain exceptions to the general principals in Topic 740. The amendments also improve consistent application of and simplify GAAP for
other areas of Topic 740 by clarifying and amending existing guidance. The ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Note 3. Reverse Recapitalization

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, as described in Note 1, Merger Sub merged with and into Legacy Nextdoor, with Legacy Nextdoor surviving the Merger. Legacy
Nextdoor  became a  wholly  owned  subsidiary  of  KVSB and  KVSB was  immediately  renamed  Nextdoor  Holdings,  Inc.  Upon the  consummation  of  the  Merger,  the
following events contemplated by the Merger Agreement occurred, based on Legacy Nextdoor’s capitalization as of November 5, 2021:

• all  61,331,815 issued and outstanding shares of Legacy Nextdoor redeemable convertible preferred stock were converted into 61,331,815 shares of Legacy
Nextdoor common stock at the conversion rate as calculated pursuant to Legacy Nextdoor’s certificate of incorporation;

• all 97,886,321 issued and outstanding shares of Legacy Nextdoor common stock (including Legacy Nextdoor common stock resulting from the conversion of
the Legacy Nextdoor redeemable convertible preferred stock) were converted into 304,003,976 shares of Nextdoor Class B common stock after giving effect
to the exchange ratio of 3.1057 as calculated in accordance with the Merger Agreement (“Exchange Ratio”);

• all  19,196,313  granted  and  outstanding  unexercised  Legacy  Nextdoor  options  were  converted  into  59,616,898  Nextdoor  options  exercisable  for  shares  of
Nextdoor Class B common stock with the same terms and vesting conditions except for the number of shares exercisable and the exercise price, each of which
was adjusted by the Exchange Ratio;
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• all 866,687 granted and outstanding unvested Legacy Nextdoor restricted stock units (“RSUs”) were converted into 2,691,577 Nextdoor RSUs for shares of
Nextdoor Class B common stock with the same terms and vesting conditions except for the number of shares, which was adjusted by the Exchange Ratio; and

• the entitlement to receive 58,135 shares of Legacy Nextdoor common stock pursuant to the Pixel Labs Merger Agreement converted into the right to receive
180,549 shares of Nextdoor Class B common stock, which was adjusted by the Exchange Ratio.

There were 304,003,976 shares  of  Nextdoor Class  B common stock issued and outstanding as  of  the Closing and Nextdoor  options and RSUs covering 62,308,475
shares reserved for the potential future issuance of Nextdoor Class B common stock as of the Closing.

In connection with the Closing of the Merger:

• all KVSB Class B founder shares, consisting of 5,000,000 shares of KVSB Class B common stock, automatically converted into an aggregate of 7,347,249
shares of Nextdoor Class A common stock;

• all  KVSB  Class  K  founder  shares,  consisting  of  5,000,000  shares  of  KVSB  Class  K  common  stock,  converted  into  an  aggregate  of  3,061,354  shares  of
Nextdoor Class A common stock;

• all 1,132,688 private placement sponsor shares of KVSB Class A common stock converted into shares of Nextdoor Class A common stock on a one-to-one
basis; and

• 40,412,372 shares of KVSB Class A common stock held by KVSB public stockholders, net of the redemption of 1,222,040 shares of KVSB Class A common
stock, converted into Nextdoor Class A common stock on a one-to-one basis.

On July 6, 2021, concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, KVSB entered into subscription agreements with certain investors (collectively, the “PIPE
Investors”),  pursuant  to,  and  on  the  terms  and  subject  to  the  conditions  of  which,  the  PIPE  Investors  subscribed  for  an  aggregate  of  27,000,000  shares  of  Class  A
common stock, which included 750,000 shares of Nextdoor Class A common stock to the KVSB sponsor and 4,500,000 shares of Nextdoor Class A common stock to
certain  Legacy  Nextdoor  stockholders,  including  500,000  shares  of  Nextdoor  Class  A  common  stock  to  Nextdoor's  Chief  Executive  Officer  and  President,  for  an
aggregate purchase price of $270.0 million (the “PIPE Investment”). The PIPE Investment was consummated substantially concurrently with the Closing of the Merger.

There were 78,953,663 shares of Nextdoor Class A common stock issued and outstanding as of the Closing.

Each holder of shares of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Class A common stock held on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders
and  each  holder  of  shares  of  Class  B  common  stock  is  entitled  to  10  votes  for  each  share  of  Class  B  common  stock  held  on  all  matters  submitted  to  a  vote  of
stockholders.

The following table presents the number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding immediately following the Reverse Recapitalization:
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Shares
KVSB Class A common stock, outstanding prior to Reverse Recapitalization 42,767,100
Less: redemption of KVSB Class A common stock (1,222,040)
Conversion of KVSB Class B founder shares 7,347,249
Conversion of KVSB Class K common stock 3,061,354
Shares issued to PIPE Investors 27,000,000
Nextdoor Class A common stock 78,953,663

Conversion of Legacy Nextdoor common stock 113,526,555
Conversion of Legacy Nextdoor redeemable convertible preferred stock 190,477,421
Nextdoor Class B common stock 304,003,976

Total shares of common stock immediately after Reverse Recapitalization 382,957,639

(1) Upon the completion of the Reverse Recapitalization, the 36,554,506 outstanding shares of Legacy Nextdoor common stock were converted into shares of Nextdoor Class B common stock using
the Exchange Ratio.

(2) Upon the completion of the Reverse Recapitalization, all 61,331,815 outstanding shares of Legacy Nextdoor redeemable convertible preferred stock converted into Legacy Nextdoor common
stock on a one-to-one basis, which were then converted into shares of Nextdoor Class B common stock using the Exchange Ratio.

KVSB was treated  as  the  “acquired”  company for  financial  reporting  purposes.  Accordingly,  the  financial  statements  of  Nextdoor  represent  the  continuation  of  the
financial statements of Legacy Nextdoor, with the Merger reflected as the equivalent of Nextdoor issuing common stock for the net assets of KVSB, accompanied by a
recapitalization. The net assets of KVSB were recognized as of the Closing at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded. Operations prior to
the Merger are those of Legacy Nextdoor and Legacy Nextdoor’s operations are the only ongoing operations of Nextdoor.

In connection with the Reverse Recapitalization, the Company raised $628.5 million of proceeds, presented as cash flows from financing activities, which included the
contribution of $416.4 million of funds held in KVSB’s trust account, $0.2 million of cash held in KVSB’s operating cash account, and $270.0 million of proceeds from
the PIPE Investment, net of $12.2 million paid to redeem 1,222,040 public shares of KVSB’s Class A common stock and $45.9 million in transaction costs incurred by
KVSB.  Legacy  Nextdoor  incurred  $5.7  million  of  transaction  costs,  which  consisted  of  direct  incremental  legal,  accounting,  consulting,  and  other  fees  which  were
recorded  as  deferred  transaction  costs  and  upon  completion  of  the  Reverse  Recapitalization  were  reclassified  to  additional  paid-in  capital  as  a  reduction  of  the  net
proceeds received.

The following table reconciles the elements of the Reverse Recapitalization to the consolidated statements of cash flows and the consolidated statements of redeemable
convertible preferred stock and stockholders' equity (deficit) (in thousands):

(1)

(2)
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Year Ended December 31,
2021

Funds held in KVSB's trust account $ 416,359 
Funds held in KVSB's operating cash account 194
Proceeds from the PIPE Investment 270,000
Less: amount paid to redeem public shares of KVSB's Class A common stock (12,221)
Less: transaction costs incurred by KVSB (45,843)
Proceeds from the Reverse Recapitalization 628,489
Less: non-cash liabilities assumed from KVSB (203)
Less: unpaid deferred transaction costs (314)
Less: payment of transaction costs related to the Reverse Recapitalization (5,384)
Net cash from issuance of common stock upon the Reverse Recapitalization, net of issuance costs $ 622,588 

The shares and corresponding capital amounts and all per share data related to Legacy Nextdoor’s outstanding redeemable convertible preferred stock, common stock,
and stock-based awards prior to the Reverse Recapitalization have been retroactively adjusted using the Exchange Ratio.

Note 4. Acquisitions

Pixel Labs, Inc. Business Combination

On August 22, 2019 the Company executed a merger agreement to acquire the assets and liabilities of Pixel Labs, Inc. (“Pixel Labs”). The acquisition closed on August
27,  2019.  The  purchase  accounting  was  completed  in  2019  and  no  measurement  period  adjustments  were  recorded.  The  aggregate  purchase  consideration  of
$7.6  million  included  a  time-based  cash  and  share  holdback  of  $0.7  million  and  $0.2  million,  respectively,  to  be  paid  at  a  future  date.  In  November  2020  final
settlement of the holdback was completed.

At closing, certain Pixel Labs stockholders had not completed administrative forms that were required for the Company’s common stock to be legally issued. During
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 an additional 20,885 and 29,665 shares, respectively, were issued as a result of the administrative forms being completed.
In April 2020 the founder of Pixel Labs departed, and therefore the unvested shares granted to the founder at the time of acquisition, which were accounted for as post
combination compensation cost, were cancelled as they were contingent upon continued employment.

Note 5. Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The amortized costs, unrealized gains and losses, and estimated fair values of the Company’s cash equivalents and marketable securities were as follows (in thousands):

 As of December 31, 2021
 Amortized

Cost
Unrealized

Gain
Unrealized

Loss
Estimated
Fair Value

Cash equivalents:     
Money market funds $ 474,294 $ — $ — $ 474,294 

Marketable securities:
Commercial paper 83,728 — — 83,728 
Corporate securities 78,353 24 (14) 78,363 
U.S. Treasury securities 15,200 — (12) 15,188 
Asset-backed securities 16,735 — (15) 16,720 

Total marketable securities 194,016 24 (41) 193,999 
Total $ 668,310 $ 24 $ (41) $ 668,293 
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 As of December 31, 2020
 Amortized

Cost
Unrealized

Gain
Unrealized

Loss
Estimated
Fair Value

Cash equivalents:     
Money market funds $ 28,371 $ — $ — $ 28,371 

Marketable securities:
Commercial paper 27,473 — — 27,473 
Corporate securities 6,940 — (2) 6,938 
U.S. Treasury securities 16,157 1 — 16,158 
Asset-backed securities 2,772 — — 2,772 

Total marketable securities 53,342 1 (2) 53,341 
Total $ 81,713 $ 1 $ (2) $ 81,712 

All marketable securities are designated as available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.
The following tables present the contractual maturities of the Company’s marketable securities (in thousands):
 As of December 31, 2021

 
Amortized

Cost
Estimated
Fair Value

Due within one year $ 137,077 $ 137,043 
Due after one to four years 56,939 56,956 
Total $ 194,016 $ 193,999 

 As of December 31, 2020

 
Amortized

Cost
Estimated
Fair Value

Due within one year $ 53,342 $ 53,341 

Note 6. Fair Value Measurements

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are classified by level within the fair value hierarchy. There were no financial
assets or liabilities measured using Level 3 inputs as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. The following table presents information about the Company’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurement as of December 31, 2021
 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Assets:    
Cash equivalents:    

Money market funds $ 474,294 $ — $ 474,294 
Marketable securities:

Commercial paper — 83,728 83,728 
Corporate securities — 78,363 78,363 
U.S. Treasury securities — 15,188 15,188 
Asset-backed securities — 16,720 16,720 

Total marketable securities — 193,999 193,999 
Total cash equivalents and marketable securities $ 474,294 $ 193,999 $ 668,293 
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Fair Value Measurement as of December 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Total

Assets:    
Cash equivalents:    

Money market funds $ 28,371 $ — $ 28,371 
Marketable securities:

Commercial paper — 27,473 27,473 
Corporate securities — 6,938 6,938 
U.S. Treasury securities — 16,158 16,158 
Asset-backed securities — 2,772 2,772 

Total marketable securities — 53,341 53,341 
Total cash equivalents and marketable securities $ 28,371 $ 53,341 $ 81,712 

The Company classifies its cash equivalents, marketable securities, and restricted cash within Level 1 or Level 2 because it determines their fair values using quoted
market prices or alternative pricing sources and models utilizing market observable inputs. There were no transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy during the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The  carrying  amounts  of  certain  financial  instruments,  including  cash  held  in  banks,  accounts  receivable,  and  accounts  payable  approximate  fair  value  due  to  their
short-term maturities and are excluded from the fair value table above.
Note 7. Other Balance Sheet Components

Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net consisted of the following (in thousands):
 As of December 31,
 2021 2020
Computer equipment and software $ 3,123 $ 2,002 
Furniture and fixtures 2,201 1,174 
Capitalized internal-use software 1,842 1,842 
Leasehold improvements 9,502 2,850 
Property and equipment, gross 16,668 7,868 
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (4,123) (2,150)
Property and equipment, net $ 12,545 $ 5,718 

Depreciation and amortization expense was $2.0 million and $1.0 million, for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Intangible Assets, net

The Company’s intangible assets consist of customer relationships and developed technology arising from acquisitions.
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Intangible assets, net consisted of the following (in thousands):
As of December 31, 2021

Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization Net Carrying Amount

Weighted Average
Remaining Life (years)

Customer relationships $ 7,068 $ (4,684) $ 2,384 3.0
Developed technology 4,600 (2,149) 2,451 2.7

Total intangible assets, net $ 11,668 $ (6,833) $ 4,835 2.8

 As of December 31, 2020
Gross Carrying

Amount
Accumulated
Amortization Net Carrying Amount

Weighted Average
Remaining Life (years)

Customer relationships $ 7,068 $ (3,451) $ 3,617 3.0
Developed technology 4,600 (1,230) 3,370 3.7

Total intangible assets, net $ 11,668 $ (4,681) $ 6,987 3.3

Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $2.2 million and $2.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Expected future amortization expense for intangible assets as of December 31, 2021 was as follows (in thousands):
Years Ending December 31, Amount
2022 $ 1,773 
2023 1,773 
2024 1,054 
2025 235 
Thereafter — 
Total $ 4,835 

Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):
 As of December 31,
 2021 2020
Accrued compensation $ 3,375 $ 6,888 
Liability for early exercise of unvested stock options 690 1,133 
Taxes payable 879 516 
Deferred revenue 3,388 2,585 
Other accrued and current liabilities 7,112 3,876 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 15,444 $ 14,998 

Note 8. Leases

The Company has entered into various non-cancellable office facility leases in various locations with original lease periods expiring between 2020 and 2029, with its
primary office location in San Francisco, California. The Company entered into a lease consisting of multiple floors for its new San Francisco headquarters in 2019,
with a lease term through 2029. The first portion of the lease commenced in June 2020, and the second and final portion of the lease commenced in January 2021. The
facility  lease  agreements  generally  provide  for  escalating  rental  payments.  The  Company's  lease  agreements  generally  do  not  contain  any  material  residual  value
guarantees or
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material restrictive covenants.
The components of lease costs were as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Operating lease cost $ 9,864 $ 6,278 
Short-term lease cost 525 495 
Variable lease cost 409 452 
Total $ 10,798 $ 7,225 

Other information related to the Company’s operating leases was as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,

2021 2020
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:  

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 6,585 $ 5,624 
ROU assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations:

Operating leases $ 28,252 $ 39,664 

Lease terms and discount rates for operating leases were as follows:
As of December 31,

2021 2020
Weighted average remaining lease term (years) 7.3 8.2
Weighted average discount rate 4.5 % 5.3 %

As of December 31, 2021, future minimum lease payments under operating leases were as follows (in thousands):

Years Ending December 31, Amount
2022 $ 10,045 
2023 10,347 
2024 10,657 
2025 10,977 
2026 11,306 
Thereafter 27,697 
Total lease payments 81,029 
Less: imputed interest (12,300)
Present value of lease liabilities 68,729 
Less: current operating lease liabilities (7,131)
Long-term operating lease liabilities $ 61,598 

The table above does not include lease payments that were not fixed at commencement or lease modification.
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Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had non-cancellable purchase commitments with certain service providers primarily related to the provision of cloud
computing services as follows (in thousands):

Total Commitments
Years Ending December 31,
2022 $ 18,978 
2023 22,528 
2024 10,417 
Thereafter — 
Total $ 51,923 

Legal matters

From time to time, the Company is a party to a variety of claims, lawsuits, and proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business, including claims of alleged
infringement of intellectual property rights. The Company records a liability when it believes that it is probable that a loss will be incurred and the amount of loss or
range of loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company discloses potential losses when they are reasonably possible. In the Company’s opinion, resolution of pending
matters is not likely to have a material adverse impact on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows, or its financial position. Given the unpredictable nature of
legal  proceedings,  the  Company  bases  its  estimate  on  the  information  available  at  the  time  of  the  assessment.  As  additional  information  becomes  available,  the
Company reassesses the potential liability and may revise the estimate. There were no such material matters as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.
Indemnification

In  the  ordinary  course  of  business,  the  Company often  includes  standard  indemnification  provisions  in  its  arrangements  with  its  customers,  partners,  suppliers,  and
vendors. Pursuant to these provisions, the Company may be obligated to indemnify such parties for losses or claims suffered or incurred in connection with its service,
breach of representations or covenants, intellectual property infringement, or other claims made against such parties. These provisions may limit the time within which
an indemnification claim can be made. It is not possible to determine the maximum potential amount under these indemnification obligations due to the limited history
of prior indemnification claims and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 the
Company did not incur material costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to these indemnifications. The Company believes the fair value of these liabilities is not
material and accordingly has no liabilities recorded for these agreements as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Note 10. Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, Common Stock, and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

The shares and corresponding capital amounts and all per share data related to Legacy Nextdoor’s authorized and outstanding redeemable convertible preferred stock,
common stock, and stock-based awards prior to the Reverse Recapitalization have been retroactively adjusted using the Exchange Ratio.

Legacy Nextdoor Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
Upon  the  completion  of  the  Reverse  Recapitalization  on  November  5,  2021,  all  outstanding  shares  of  Legacy  Nextdoor  redeemable  convertible  preferred  stock
converted into Legacy Nextdoor common stock on a one-to-one basis,  which were then converted into 190,477,421 shares of Nextdoor Class B common stock as a
result of the Reverse Recapitalization, using the Exchange Ratio of 3.1057.

Preferred Stock
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In connection with the Reverse Recapitalization, the Company's amended and restated certificate of incorporation became effective, which authorized the issuance of
50,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share with such designations, voting, and other rights and preferences as may be determined from
time to time by the Company's Board of Directors. As of December 31, 2021 there were no shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding.

Common Stock

The Company was authorized to issue 2,500,000,000 shares of Class A common stock and 500,000,000 shares of Class B common stock as of December 31, 2021 and
375,788,212 shares of common stock as of December 31, 2020. The rights, including the liquidation and dividend rights, of the Class A common stock and Class B
common stock are substantially identical, other than voting and conversion rights. The holder of each share of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share
and the holder of each share of Class B common stock is entitled to ten votes per share. Shares of Class B common stock are convertible into an equivalent number of
shares of Class A common stock at the option of the holder or upon certain events upon the terms and conditions described in the Company’s amended and restated
certificate of incorporation. Class A common stock and Class B common stock are referred to, collectively, as common stock throughout the notes to these consolidated
financial statements, unless otherwise indicated. Shares of common stock reserved for future issuance on an as-converted basis were as follows (in thousands):

As of December 31,
2021 2020

Redeemable convertible preferred stock — 190,477 
Stock options outstanding 58,278 46,973 
Unvested restricted stock units (RSUs) 2,511 — 
Shares reserved for future award issuances 77,924 12,558 
Total 138,713 250,008 

Common Stock Subject to Repurchase

Certain  stock  option  grant  agreements  permit  exercise  prior  to  vesting.  Upon  termination  of  service  of  an  employee,  the  Company  has  the  right  to  repurchase  any
unvested, but issued, common stock at the original purchase price. The consideration received for an exercise of an option is accounted for as a deposit of the exercise
price and is recorded as a liability. Upon vesting of the shares pursuant to the grant agreements, the shares and related liability are reclassified into stockholders’ equity
(deficit).  As  of  December  31,  2021  and  2020,  the  Company  had  $0.7  million  and  $1.1  million  recorded  in  accrued  expenses  and  other  current  liabilities  related  to
421,594 and 692,990 unvested shares of common stock subject to repurchase, respectively.

Restricted Stock Subject to Repurchase

In 2018, an executive of the Company purchased 15,408,183 shares of restricted stock, subject to time-based service requirements, which vest over a forty-eight month
period. The shares issued upon the purchase of restricted stock are considered to be legally issued and outstanding on the date of purchase and the executive has full
voting rights. Upon termination of service, the Company may repurchase unvested shares acquired at a price equal to the price per share paid upon the exercise. Upon
vesting of the shares pursuant to the grant agreements, the shares and related liability are reclassified into stockholders’ equity (deficit). As of December 31, 2021, the
Company had $4.8 million recorded in deposits related to 3,210,037 unvested shares of common stock subject to repurchase. As of December 31, 2020, the Company
had $10.5 million recorded in deposits related to 7,062,082 unvested shares of common stock subject to repurchase. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense of $4.6 million and $4.6 million, respectively, related to this restricted stock.
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Equity Incentive Plans

2008 and 2018 Equity Incentive Plans

In  2018,  the  2008  Equity  Incentive  Plan  (“the  2008  Plan”)  was  terminated,  and  Legacy  Nextdoor’s  board  of  directors  approved  the  adoption  of  the  2018  Equity
Incentive  Plan  (“the  2018  Plan”),  which  included  both  incentive  and  non-statutory  stock  options.  The  2008  Plan  and  2018  Plan  (collectively,  the  “Legacy  Equity
Incentive Plans”) provided for the grant of shares of common stock to employees,  directors,  officers,  and consultants pursuant to awards of stock options, restricted
stock,  or  RSUs.  As  of  December  31,  2020,  the  Company  had  reserved  4,043,637  shares  of  its  common  stock  under  the  Legacy  Equity  Incentive  Plans  for  future
issuance. Options were granted at a price per share equal to the fair market value of the underlying common stock at the date of grant. Options granted generally vest
over four years.  RSUs granted are typically subject  to a four-year vesting period and vest  quarterly.  While no new awards will  be granted under the Legacy Equity
Incentive Plans, any outstanding awards made under the Legacy Equity Incentive Plans will remain outstanding in accordance with the terms of the applicable plan and
the applicable award agreements.

2021 Equity Incentive Plan

In November 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders approved the Company’s 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2021 Plan”) as a successor to the
Legacy Equity Incentive Plans, with the purpose of granting stock-based awards to employees, directors, officers, and consultants, including stock options, restricted
stock awards, and RSUs.

The Company initially  reserved for issuance under the 2021 Plan (a)  46,008,885 shares of Class A common stock,  plus (b) shares that  are subject  to issuance upon
exercise of options granted under the 2018 Plan prior to the Closing but which, after the Closing, cease to be subject to the option for any reason other than exercise of
the option, (c) shares that are subject to awards granted under the 2018 Plan prior to the Closing that, after the Closing, are forfeited or are repurchased by the Company
at the original issue price, (d) shares that are subject to awards granted under the 2018 Plan prior to the Closing that, after the Closing, otherwise terminate without such
shares being issued, and (e) shares that, after the Closing, are used to pay the exercise price of a stock option issued under the 2018 Plan prior to the Closing or are
withheld to satisfy the tax withholding obligations related to any award issued under the 2018 Plan prior to the Closing. The number of shares available for grant and
issuance under the 2021 Plan will increase automatically on January 1 of each of 2022 through 2031 by the number of shares equal to the lesser of (i) five percent (5%)
of the number of shares (rounded down to the nearest whole share) of Class A common stock and Class B common stock issued and outstanding on each December 31
immediately prior to the date of increase, or (ii) such number of shares determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.

2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In  November  2021,  the  Company’s  Board of  Directors  and stockholders  approved the  Company’s  2021 Employee Stock Purchase  Plan (the  “2021 ESPP”).  Over  a
series  of  offering periods,  each of which may consist  of  one or more purchase periods,  eligible  employees will  be offered the option to purchase shares of  Class A
common stock at 85% of the lesser of the fair market value of Class A common stock on (i) the first business day of the applicable offering period and (ii) the date of
purchase. Under the 2021 ESPP, the Company initially reserved 8,901,159 shares of Class A common stock for issuance, and the aggregate number of shares reserved
will  increase  automatically  on  January  1  of  each  of  2022  through  2031  by  the  number  of  shares  equal  to  the  lesser  of  (i)  one  percent  (1%)  of  the  total  number  of
outstanding  shares  of  Class  A  common  stock  and  Class  B  common  stock  as  of  the  immediately  preceding  December  31,  or  (ii)  a  number  of  shares  as  may  be
determined  by  the  Company’s  Board  of  Directors.  The  aggregate  number  of  shares  issued  over  the  term of  the  2021  ESPP,  subject  to  adjustments  for  stock-splits,
recapitalizations, or similar events, may not exceed 89,011,590 shares. As of December 31, 2021, there had been no offering period or purchase period under the 2021
ESPP.

Stock Options and RSUs

The Company may grant options to acquire shares of Class A common stock to employees, directors, officers, and consultants at a price not less than the fair market
value of the shares at the date of grant. Options granted to a person
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who, at the time of the grant, owns more than 10% of the voting power of all classes of stock shall be at no less than 110% of the fair market value and expire five years
from the  date  of  grant.  All  other  options  generally  have  a  contractual  term  of  ten  years.  Options  granted  generally  vest  on  a  monthly  basis  over  four  years.  RSUs
granted for Class A common stock generally vest on a quarterly basis over four years.

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 and related information is as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Number of Options
Weighted- Average

Exercise Price

Weighted Average
Remaining Contractual

Term (years)
Aggregate Intrinsic

Value
Balances at December 31, 2020 46,973 $ 1.80 7.8 $ 28,467 

Options granted 25,262 $ 3.05 
Options exercised (10,325) $ 1.48 
Options forfeited or expired (3,632) $ 2.50 

Balances at December 31, 2021
58,278 $ 2.35 8.1 $ 322,799 

Options vested and exercisable at December 31, 2021 23,443 $ 1.72 6.6 $ 144,608 

The  intrinsic  value  is  calculated  as  the  difference  between  the  exercise  price  of  the  underlying  common  stock  option  award  and  the  fair  value  of  the  Company’s
common stock as of the respective balance sheet date. The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted was $3.63 per share and $2.40 per share during the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The total number of shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was 18,455,667 and 13,012,287, respectively. The weighted average grant-date
fair  value  of  options  vested  was  $2.23  per  share  and  $1.64  per  share  during  the  years  ended  December  31,  2021 and  2020,  respectively.  The  intrinsic  value  of  the
options exercised was $31.9 million and $9.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
The Company granted 19,639 options to non-employees during the year ended December 31, 2021. The Company did not issue any grants to non-employees during the
year ended December 31, 2020.

The  table  above  includes  2,308,097  options  granted  to  the  Company’s  Chief  Executive  Officer  in  March  2021  which  were  subject  to  a  performance-based  vesting
condition that would be satisfied in full upon the first to occur of: (i) a Qualified IPO, (ii) a direct listing, or (iii) the closing by the Company of a transaction with a
publicly  traded special  purpose acquisition company (“SPAC”) in which the common stock is  publicly  listed on a securities  exchange.  The options would vest  in  a
single installment upon the satisfaction of the performance-based vesting condition subject to the Chief Executive Officer’s continuous employment through such date.
Upon the Closing, the performance-based vesting condition was satisfied and the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $8.5 million and had no
unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to these options as of December 31, 2021.

A summary of the Company’s RSU activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 and related information is as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Number of Shares
Weighted Average

Grant Date Fair Value
Unvested at December 31, 2020 — $ — 
RSUs granted 2,701 $ 8.74 
RSUs vested (166) $ 8.91 
RSUs forfeited (24) $ 7.68 
Unvested at December 31, 2021 2,511 $ 8.74 

Valuation Assumptions

The Company’s use of the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock options granted requires the input of highly subjective assumptions.
These assumptions were estimated as follows:

Fair value of the underlying common stock – Prior to the Reverse Recapitalization, the Board of Directors considered numerous objective and subjective factors
to determine the fair value of the Company’s common stock including, but not limited to: (i) the results of contemporaneous third-party valuations of the Company’s
common  stock;  (ii)  the  prices,  rights,  preferences,  and  privileges  of  the  Company’s  redeemable  convertible  preferred  stock  relative  to  those  of  its  common  stock;
(iii)  the  lack  of  marketability  of  the  Company’s  common stock;  (iv)  actual  operating  and  financial  results;  (v)  current  business  conditions  and  projections;  (vi)  the
likelihood of achieving a liquidity event, such as an initial public offering, merger, or acquisition of the Company, given prevailing market conditions; (vii) transactions
involving the Company’s shares; (viii) the history and nature of its business, industry trends and competitive environment; and (iv) general economic outlook. After the
Reverse Recapitalization, the fair value of the underlying common stock is determined by the closing price, on the date of grant, of the Company’s Class A common
stock, which is traded on the New York Stock Exchange.

Expected  volatility  – Expected  volatility  is  a  measure  of  the  amount  by  which  the  stock  price  is  expected  to  fluctuate.  Since  the  Company  does  not  have
sufficient  trading  history  of  its  common  stock,  it  estimates  the  expected  volatility  of  its  stock  options  at  their  grant  date  by  taking  the  weighted  average  historical
volatility of a group of comparable publicly traded companies over a period equal to the expected term of the options.

Expected  term  – The  Company  determines  the  expected  term  based  on  the  average  period  the  stock  options  are  expected  to  remain  outstanding  using  the
simplified method, calculated as the midpoint of the stock options’ vesting term and contractual expiration period, as the Company does not have sufficient historical
information to develop reasonable expectations about future exercise patterns and post-vesting employment termination behavior.

Risk-free rate – The Company uses the U.S. Treasury yield for its risk-free interest rate that corresponds with the expected term.

Expected dividend yield – The Company utilizes a dividend yield of zero, as it does not currently issue dividends and does not expect to in the future.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of employee and non-employee stock option grants made during the following periods:
Years Ended December 31,

2021 2020



Expected volatility 53.7% - 54.5% 48.8% -53.4%
Expected term (years) 6.3 6.0
Risk-free interest rate 1.1% 0.6%
Expected dividend yield — —
Fair value of common stock per share $4.92 - $6.83 $3.89 - $4.23

93



Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense in the consolidated statements of operations as follows (in thousands):
 Years Ended December 31,
 2021 2020
Cost of revenue $ 1,466 $ 905 
Research and development 20,690 10,235 
Sales and marketing 6,388 3,403 
General and administrative 18,970 8,065 
Total $ 47,514 $ 22,608 

As of December 31, 2021, there was $123.2 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average
period of 2.4 years.

Note 11. Net Loss Per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

As a result of the Reverse Recapitalization, the Company has retroactively adjusted the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding prior to the
Closing by multiplying them by the Exchange Ratio of 3.1057 used to determine the number of shares of common stock into which they converted. The following table
sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders (in thousands, except per share data):

Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Class A Class B Common
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (8,032) $ (87,293) $ (75,234)
Weighted average shares used in computing net loss per share attributable to Class A and Class B

common stockholders, basic and diluted 12,330 134,007 90,190 
Net loss per share attributable to Class A and Class B common stockholders, basic and diluted $ (0.65) $ (0.65) $ (0.83)

The following potentially dilutive securities outstanding have been excluded from the computations of diluted net loss per share because such securities have an anti-
dilutive impact due to losses reported (in thousands):

As of December 31,
2021 2020

Redeemable convertible preferred stock — 190,477
Outstanding stock options 58,278 46,973
Unvested RSUs 2,511 —
Unvested early exercised stock options subject to repurchase 422 693
Unvested restricted stock 3,210 7,062
Contingently issuable shares 181 204
Total 64,602 245,409

Note 12. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has a 401(k) plan (“the Plan”) covering all eligible employees in the United States. The Company is allowed to make discretionary profit sharing and
qualified  non-elective  contributions  as  defined  by  the  Plan  and  as  approved  by  the  Board  of  Directors.  Through  December  31,  2020,  the  Company  did  not  match
eligible participants’ 401(k) contributions. As of January 1, 2021, the Company began matching a portion of eligible participants’ 401(k) contributions. The Company’s
match totaled $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. No discretionary profit-sharing contributions have been made to date.
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Note 13. Income Taxes

Loss before income taxes during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Domestic $ (94,693) $ (74,882)
Foreign (475) (225)
Loss before income taxes $ (95,168) $ (75,107)

The provision for income taxes was as follows (in thousands):
 Years Ended December 31,
 2021 2020
Current:   

Federal $ — $ — 
State 146 11 
Foreign 11 116 

Total current provision for income taxes 157 127 
Deferred:

Federal — — 
State — — 
Foreign — — 

Total deferred provision for income taxes — — 
Total provision for income taxes $ 157 $ 127 

Income tax expense (benefit) differed from the amount computed by applying the federal statutory income tax rate of 21% to pretax loss as a result of the following:
Years Ended December 31,

2021 2020
Statutory rate (21.0)% (21.0)%
State tax 0.2 (2.5)
Permanent items 0.7 0.4 
Transaction costs (4.8) — 
Stock-based compensation 6.6 4.3 
R&D credit (4.2) (4.2)
Other — 0.1 
Changes in valuation allowance 22.8 22.9 
Foreign rate differential (0.1) 0.2 
Effective tax rate 0.2 % 0.2 %
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The tax effects of significant items comprising the Company’s deferred taxes were as follows (in thousands):

 As of December 31,
 2021 2020
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss $ 96,423 $ 82,031 
Credit carryforwards 14,162 10,143 
Stock-based compensation 5,924 3,149 
Lease liability 16,691 9,288 
Reserves, accruals and other 1,774 1,152 
Other 331 — 

Total deferred tax assets 135,305 105,763 
Valuation allowance (120,873) (96,044)

Total deferred tax assets, net 14,432 9,719 
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixed asset basis and other — (858)
ROU asset basis (14,432) (8,861)

Total deferred tax liabilities (14,432) (9,719)
Net deferred tax assets $ — $ — 

Based upon available objective evidence, management believes it is more likely than not that the U.S. net deferred tax assets will not be fully realizable. Accordingly,
the  Company  has  established  a  full  valuation  allowance  for  its  U.S.  net  deferred  tax  assets.  The  valuation  allowance  increased  by  $24.8  million  and  $8.7  million,
respectively,  during  2021  and  2020.  The  Company  had  aggregate  deferred  tax  assets  of  $135.3  million  and  $105.8  million  as  of  December  31,  2021  and  2020,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had federal  net  operating loss carryforwards of $390.0 million,  which begin to expire in 2028, and state net  operating loss
carryforwards of $226.0 million, which begin to expire in 2028. Of the $390.0 million U.S. federal net operating losses $214.1 million is carried forward indefinitely
but is limited to 80% of current year taxable income. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had federal tax credits of $16.6 million, which begin to expire in 2028,
and state tax credits of $14.2 million, which do not expire. The Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) limits the amount of net operating loss carryforwards that a company
may use in a given year in the event of certain cumulative changes in ownership over a three-year period as described in Section 382 of the IRC. Utilization of net
operating loss carryforwards and credits may be subject to a substantial annual limitation due to the ownership change limitations provided by the IRC, as amended,
and similar state provisions. The annual limitation may result in the expiration of net operating losses and credits before utilization.

The Company accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with ASC 740 Income Taxes.  Tax positions are evaluated in a two-step process,  whereby the
Company first determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authority, including resolutions of any
related appeals or litigation processes, based on technical merit. If a tax position meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold it is then measured to determine
the amount of benefit  to recognize in the financial statements.  The tax position is measured as the largest amount of benefit  that is greater than 50% likely of being
realized upon ultimate settlement.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of unrecognized tax benefit were as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Gross unrecognized tax benefits - beginning of year $ 10,143 $ 6,971 
Increases related to current year tax positions 3,759 3,129 
Increases related to prior year tax positions — 43 
Gross unrecognized tax benefits - end of year $ 13,902 $ 10,143 

All of the unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2021 are accounted for as a reduction in the Company’s deferred tax assets. Due to the Company’s valuation
allowance, none of the $13.9 million of unrecognized tax benefits, related solely to its federal and state research and development income tax credits, would affect the
Company’s effective tax rate, if recognized. The Company does not believe it is reasonably possible that its unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change in the
next twelve months.

The  Company  recognizes  interest  and  penalties  related  to  unrecognized  tax  benefits  as  income  tax  expense.  There  were  no  interest  or  penalties  accrued  related  to
unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, and no liability for accrued interest or penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The  Company  has  identified  its  U.S.  federal  and  California  tax  returns  as  “material”  tax  filings.  The  Company  is  not  currently  under  examination  by  income  tax
authorities in any jurisdiction. However, because the Company has net operating losses in several jurisdictions,  including the United States federal and various state
jurisdictions, certain items attributable to closed tax years are still subject to adjustment by applicable taxing authorities through an adjustment to tax attributes carried
forward to open years. All tax returns will remain open for examination by the federal and most state taxing authorities for three years and four years, respectively, from
the date of utilization of any net operating loss carryforwards or research and development income tax credits.

Note 14. Geographical Information

Revenue disaggregated by geography based on the customers’ location was as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020

United States $ 183,724 $ 119,118 
International 8,473 4,166 
Total $ 192,197 $ 123,284 

Substantially all of the Company’s long-lived assets are located in the United States.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report, and have concluded that, based on
such evaluation, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2021 at the reasonable assurance level to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
SEC’s  rules  and  forms,  and  is  accumulated  and  communicated  to  our  management,  including  our  principal  executive  and  principal  financial  officers,  or  persons
performing similar functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management's annual report on internal control over financial reporting

This  Annual  Report  does  not  include  a  report  of  management's  assessment  regarding  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  or  an  attestation  report  of  the
company's registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public companies.

In addition, because we are an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS Act, our independent registered public accounting firm will not be required to attest to
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting for so long as we are an emerging growth company.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Prior to the Business Combination, KVSB made the determination that it was required to restate certain previously issued financial statements and other financial
data  as  of  and  for  the  period  from January  29,  2021 (inception)  through March  31,  2021.  Due  solely  to  the  events  that  led  to  the  restatement  of  KVSB’s  financial
statements, KVSB's management concluded that its disclosure controls and procedures were not effective due to material weaknesses in internal controls over financial
reporting related to the inaccurate accounting of its redeemable Class A common stock and its Class K founder shares.

Effective as of the closing of the Business Combination, the management of Legacy Nextdoor is responsible for internal control over financial reporting and the
former management of KVSB no longer participates in financial reporting. Our assessment is that, after the Business Combination, we have a sufficiently staffed and
technically experienced finance and accounting team to address the financial reporting requirements of a public company. After the Business Combination, because the
conditions  causing  the  material  weakness  no  longer  existed,  and  are  not  expected  to  exist,  we  determined  the  material  weakness  in  internal  control  over  financial
reporting did not exist as of December 31, 2021.

There were no other changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by Rule 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d)
of the Exchange Act that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2021 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or internal control
over  financial  reporting  will  prevent  all  errors  and  all  fraud.  A  control  system,  no  matter  how  well  designed  and  implemented,  can  provide  only  reasonable,  not
absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and
the  benefits  of  controls  must  be  considered  relative  to  their  costs.  Because  of  the  inherent  limitations  in  all  control  systems,  no  evaluation  of  controls  can  provide
absolute assurance that all control issues within a company are detected. The inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-

98



making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple errors or mistakes. Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by
collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the
inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections

Not Applicable.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed with the SEC within 120
days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed with the SEC within 120
days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed with the SEC within 120
days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed with the SEC within 120
days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed with the SEC within 120
days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

1.Financial Statements

See Index to Financial Statements under Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report.

2.Financial Statement Schedules

Schedules not listed above have been omitted because they are not required, not applicable, or the required information is otherwise included.

3.Exhibits

The exhibits listed below are filed as part of this Annual Report or are incorporated herein by reference as indicated.

Exhibit Number Description
Incorporated by Reference

Form Exhibit Filing Date
2.1† Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 6, 2021, by and

among the Khosla Ventures Acquisition Co. II, Lorelei Merger Sub
Inc. and Nextdoor, Inc., as amended (included as Annex A to the
registration statement on Form S-4)

S-4 2.1 October 1, 2021

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Nextdoor
Holdings, Inc.

8-K 3.1 November 12, 2021

3.2 Restated Bylaws of Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. 8-K 3.2 November 12, 2021
4.1 Specimen Class A Common Stock Certificate of Nextdoor

Holdings, Inc.
8-K 4.1 November 12, 2021

4.2* Description of Registrant’s Securities
10.1 Sponsor Support Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2021, by and

among the Khosla Ventures Acquisition Co. II, Khosla Ventures
SPAC Sponsor II LLC and the other parties thereto

S-4 10.1 July 20, 2021

10.2 Election, Waiver and Consent, dated as of October 1, 2021, by and
among Khosla Ventures SPAC Sponsor II LLC, Nextdoor Inc., and
the other parties thereto

10.3 Stockholder Support Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2021, by and
among the Khosla Ventures Acquisition Co. II, the Persons set forth
on Schedule I thereto, and Nextdoor, Inc.

S-4 10.2 July 20, 2021

10.4 Form of Subscription Agreement S-4 10.3 July 20, 2021
10.5 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated

November 5, 2021, by and among Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. and the
other parties thereto

8-K 10.5 November 12, 2021

10.6+ 2008 Equity Incentive Plan of Nextdoor, Inc. S-4 10.24 July 20, 2021
10.7+ Form of Early Exercise Stock Option Grant under the 2008 Equity

Incentive Plan
S-4 10.26 July 20, 2021
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10.8+ Form of Stock Option Grant under the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan of
Nextdoor, Inc.

S-4 10.27 July 20, 2021

10.9+ 2018 Equity Incentive Plan of Nextdoor, Inc. S-4 10.25 July 20, 2021
10.10+ Form of Early Exercise Stock Option Grant under the 2018 Equity

Incentive Plan of Nextdoor, Inc.
S-4 10.28 July 20, 2021

10.11+ Form of Stock Option Grant under the 2018 Equity Incentive Plan of
Nextdoor, Inc.

S-4 10.29 July 20, 2021

10.12+ Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2018
Equity Incentive Plan of Nextdoor, Inc.

8-K 10.18 November 12, 2021

10.13+ Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan 8-K 10.7 November 12, 2021
10.14+ Form of Stock Option Agreement under Nextdoor Holdings, Inc.

Equity Incentive Plan
S-4 10.15 July 20, 2021

10.15+ Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under Nextdoor
Holdings, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan

S-4 10.16 July 20, 2021

10.16+ Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 8-K 10.10 November 12, 2021
10.17 Form of KVSB Equityholders Lock-Up Agreement (included as Annex

K to the registration statement on Form S-4)
S-4 10.5 July 20, 2021

10.18 Letter Agreement, dated as of March 23, 2021, by and among Khosla
Ventures Acquisition Co. II, Khosla Ventures SPAC Sponsor II LLC
and the other parties thereto

S-4 10.6 July 20, 2021

10.19+ Executive Offer Letter of Sarah Friar S-4 10.18 July 20, 2021
10.20+ Executive Offer Letter of Michael Doyle S-4 10.19 July 20, 2021
10.21+ Executive Offer Letter of Heidi Anderson S-4 10.20 July 20, 2021
10.22+ Executive Offer Letter of John Orta S-4 10.21 July 20, 2021
10.23+ Form of Indemnity Agreement 8-K 10.6 November 12, 2021
10.24+ Form of Change in Control and Severance Agreement S-4 10.23 July 20, 2021
21.1 List of Subsidiaries 8-K 21.1 November 12, 2021
23.1* Consent of Ernst & Young, LLP, independent registered public

accounting firm
24.1* Power of Attorney (reference is made to the signature page thereto)
31.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)

and 15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)
and 15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

101.INS* XBRL Instance Document.

#

#
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101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.
104* Cover Page Interactive Date File (formatted in iXBRL and contained in

Exhibit 101)

_____________
†      Certain of the exhibits and schedules to this Exhibit have been omitted in accordance with Regulation S-K Item 601(a)(5). We agree to furnish a copy of all omitted exhibits and schedules to the

SEC upon its request.
+      Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.
*    Filed herewith.
#    This certification is deemed not filed for purpose of section 18 of the Exchange Act or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference into any

filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this Annual Report on
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in San Francisco, California, on the 15th day of March, 2022.

NEXTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ Sarah Friar
Name: Sarah Friar
Title: Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairperson of the Board of

Directors

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Sarah Friar and Michael Doyle, and each
of them, as his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact, proxies and agents, each with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name,
place  and  stead,  in  any  and  all  capacities,  to  sign  any  and  all  amendments  to  this  report  and  to  file  the  same,  with  any  exhibits  thereto  and  other  documents  in
connection  therewith,  with  the  Securities  and  Exchange  Commission,  granting  unto  such  attorneys-in-fact,  proxies  and  agents  full  power  and  authority  to  do  and
perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person,
hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact, proxies and agents, or their or his or her substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the
dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

/s/ Sarah Friar

Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairperson of
the Board of Directors

(Principal Executive Officer)

March 15, 2022

Sarah Friar

/s/ Michael Doyle
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) March 15, 2022
Michael Doyle

/s/ John Hope Bryant Director March 15, 2022
John Hope Bryant

/s/ J. William Gurley Director March 15, 2022
J. William Gurley
/s/ Leslie Kilgore Director March 15, 2022

Leslie Kilgore
/s/ Mary Meeker Director March 15, 2022

Mary Meeker
/s/ Jason Pressman Director March 15, 2022

Jason Pressman
/s/ David Sze Director March 15, 2022

David Sze
/s/ Nirav Tolia Director March 15, 2022

Nirav Tolia
/s/ Chris Varelas Director March 15, 2022

Chris Varelas

/s/ Andrea Wishom Director March 15, 2022
Andrea Wishom
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Exhibit 4.2
DESCRIPTION OF THE REGISTRANT’S CAPITAL STOCK REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT

OF 1934, AS AMENDED

General

The following description of the capital stock of Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. (the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and of certain provisions of our certificate of
incorporation (the “Certificate of Incorporation”) and bylaws (the “Bylaws”) does not purport to be complete and is subject to our Certificate of Incorporation and our
Bylaws, copies of which have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the provisions of applicable law.

As of December 31, 2021, we had two classes of securities registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”):
Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value per share and Class B common stock, $0.0001 par value per share. Our authorized common stock consists of 2,500,000,000
shares of Class A common stock, 500,000,000 shares of Class B common stock, and 50,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock, $0.0001 par value per share.
All shares of our common stock outstanding are fully paid and non-assessable.

Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock

Dividend Rights

Subject to preferences that may apply to any shares of convertible preferred stock outstanding at the time, the holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to
receive dividends out of funds legally available if our Board of Directors, in its discretion, determines to issue dividends and then only at the times and in the amounts
that the Board of Directors may determine.

Voting Rights

Each holder of shares of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Class A common stock held on all matters submitted to a vote of
stockholders and each holder of Class B common stock is entitled to 10 votes for each share of Class B common stock held on all matters submitted to a vote of
stockholders. Holders of shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock vote together as a single class on all matters (including the election of directors)
submitted to a vote of stockholders, unless, otherwise required by Delaware law or the Certificate of Incorporation. Delaware law could require either holders of Class
A common stock or Class B common stock to vote separately as a single class in the following circumstances:

• if the Company were to seek to amend the Certificate of Incorporation to increase or decrease the par value of a class of our common stock, then that class
would be required to vote separately to approve the proposed amendment; and

• if the Company were to seek to amend the Certificate of Incorporation in a manner that alters or changes the powers, preferences, or special rights of a class of
our common stock in a manner that affected its holders adversely, then that class would be required to vote separately to approve the proposed amendment.

The Company has not provided for cumulative voting for the election of directors in the Certificate of Incorporation. Accordingly, holders of a majority of the
shares of our common stock are able to elect all of the Company’s directors.

No Preemptive or Similar Rights

Our common stock is not entitled to preemptive rights, and is not subject to redemption or sinking fund provisions.

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions

Upon the Company’s liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, the assets legally available for distribution to the Company’s stockholders would be distributable
ratably among the holders of our common stock and any participating preferred stock outstanding at that time, subject to prior satisfaction of all outstanding debt and
liabilities and the preferential rights of and the payment of liquidation preferences, if any, on any outstanding shares of preferred stock.

Conversion



Each share of our Class B common stock is convertible into one share of our Class A common stock automatically, without further action by the Company
immediately prior to the close of business on the earlier of (i) ten (10) years from the date of the Closing (defined below) and (ii) the date specified by an affirmative
vote of the holders of Class B common stock representing not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the voting power of the outstanding shares of Class B common stock, voting
separately as a single class.

Lock-up Period

Legacy Nextdoor Lock-Up Agreements

Following the transactions contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated July 6, 2021, as amended on September 30, 2021 (the “Merger Agreement”)
by and among Khosla Ventures Acquisition Co. II (the “KVSB”), Lorelei Merger Sub Inc., a direct wholly owned subsidiary of KVSB (“Merger Sub”) and Nextdoor,
Inc. (“Legacy Nextdoor”) consummated on November 5, 2021 (the “Merger” and the transactions contemplated thereby the “Business Combination”), certain of the
former holders of Legacy Nextdoor common stock, Legacy Nextdoor Options, Legacy Nextdoor Restricted Stock or other equity awards outstanding immediately prior
to the effective time of the Business Combination have agreed not to sell, pledge, transfer or otherwise dispose of, or grant any option or purchase right with respect to,
any shares of our Class A common stock or Class B common stock issued to such holders pursuant to the Business Combination (“Lock-Up Shares”), or engage in any
short sale, hedging transaction or other derivative security transaction involving the Lock-Up Shares, for a lock-up period commencing on the closing date of the
Business Combination until 180 days following the closing of the Business Combination, subject to customary exceptions.

Sponsor Lock-Up Agreements

Khosla Ventures SPAC Sponsor II LLC (the “Sponsor”) and certain affiliated individuals entered into lock-up agreements (the “Sponsor Lock-Up Agreements”)
upon consummation of the Merger on November 5, 2021 (the “Closing”). The Sponsor Lock-Up Agreements contain certain restrictions on transfer with respect to
shares of common stock held by the Sponsor and certain affiliated individuals (the “Sponsor Holders”) immediately following the Closing of the Business Combination
(other than shares purchased in the public market or shares purchased in the PIPE investment) (the “Sponsor Holders Lock-Up Shares”). Such restrictions began at the
Closing and end on the date that is one year after the Closing of the Business Combination, subject to certain customary exceptions, including if, after Closing, we
complete a transaction that results in a change of control, the Sponsor Holders Lock-Up Shares are released from restriction immediately prior to such change of
control.

Preferred Stock

Our Board of Directors is authorized, subject to limitations prescribed by Delaware law, to issue up to 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series,
to establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in each series, and to fix the designation, powers, preferences, and rights of the shares of each series
and any of its qualifications, limitations or restrictions, in each case without further vote or action by our stockholders. Our Board of Directors can also increase or
decrease the number of shares of any series of preferred stock, but not below the number of shares of that series then outstanding, without any further vote or action by
our stockholders. The number of authorized shares of our preferred stock may be increased or decreased (but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding)
by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting stock, without a separate vote of the holders of the preferred stock, irrespective of the provisions of
Section 242(b)(2) of the DGCL, unless a separate vote of the holders of one or more series is required pursuant to the terms of any applicable certificate of designation.
Our Board of Directors may authorize the issuance of preferred stock with voting or conversion rights that could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the
holders of our common stock. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could,
among other things, have the effect of delaying, deferring, or preventing a change in the Company’s control and might adversely affect the market price of our Class A
common stock and the voting and other rights of the holders of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock. We do not currently plan to issue any shares of
preferred stock.

Anti-Takeover Provisions

The provisions of the DGCL, our Certificate of Incorporation, and our Bylaws could have the effect of delaying, deferring or discouraging another person from
acquiring control of the Company. These provisions, which are summarized below, are expected to discourage certain types of coercive takeover practices and
inadequate takeover bids and encourage persons seeking to acquire control of the Company to first negotiate with our Board of Directors. We believe that the benefits
of increased protection of our potential ability to negotiate with an unfriendly or unsolicited acquirer outweigh the disadvantages of discouraging a proposal to acquire
the Company because negotiation of these proposals could result in an improvement of their terms.



Delaware Law

The Company is subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL regulating corporate takeovers. In general, Section 203 prohibits a publicly held Delaware
corporation from engaging in a “business combination” with an “interested stockholder” for a three-year period following the time that this stockholder becomes an
interested stockholder, unless the business combination is approved in a prescribed manner. Under Section 203, a business combination between a corporation and an
interested stockholder is prohibited unless it satisfies one of the following conditions:

• before the stockholder became interested, our Board of Directors approved either the business combination or the transaction, which resulted in the
stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;

• upon consummation of the transaction, which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of
the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding for purposes of determining the voting stock outstanding,
shares owned by persons who are directors and also officers, and employee stock plans in some instances, but not the outstanding voting stock owned by the
interested stockholder; or

• at or after the time the stockholder became interested, the business combination was approved by our Board of Directors and authorized at an annual or special
meeting of the stockholders by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock, which is not owned by the interested stockholder.

Section 203 defines a business combination to include:
• any merger or consolidation involving the corporation and the interested stockholder;

• any sale, transfer, lease, pledge, or other disposition involving the interested stockholder of 10% or more of the assets of the corporation;

• subject to exceptions, any transaction that results in the issuance of transfer by the corporation of any stock of the corporation to the interested stockholder;

• subject to exceptions, any transaction involving the corporation that has the effect of increasing the proportionate share of the stock of any class or series of the
corporation beneficially owned by the interested stockholder; and

• the receipt by the interested stockholder of the benefit of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges, or other financial benefits provided by or through the
corporation.

In general, Section 203 defines an interested stockholder as any entity or person beneficially owning 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the
corporation and any entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by the entity or person.

Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws Provisions

The Certificate of Incorporation and the Bylaws include a number of provisions that may have the effect of deterring hostile takeovers, or delaying or preventing
changes in control of the Company’s management team or changes in our Board of Directors or the Company’s governance or policy, including the following:

• Dual Class Common Stock. As described above in the section entitled “- Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock - Voting Rights,” the Certificate
of Incorporation provides for a dual class common stock structure pursuant to which holders of Class B common stock have the ability to control the outcome
of matters requiring stockholder approval, even if they own significantly less than a majority of the shares of outstanding Class A common stock and Class B
common stock, including the election of directors and significant corporate transactions, such as a merger or other sale of the Company or its assets. The



Company’s investors, executives, and employees will have the ability to exercise significant influence over those matters.

• Board of Directors Vacancies. The Certificate of Incorporation and the Bylaws authorize generally only our Board of Directors to fill vacant directorships
resulting from any cause or created by the expansion of the Board of Directors. In addition, the number of directors constituting our Board of Directors may be
set only by resolution adopted by a majority vote of the entire Board of Directors. These provisions prevent a stockholder from increasing the size of the Board
of Directors and gaining control of our Board of Directors by filling the resulting vacancies with its own nominees.

• Classified Board. The Certificate of Incorporation and the Bylaws provide that the Board of Directors is classified into three classes of directors. The
existence of a classified board of directors could delay a successful tender offeror from obtaining majority control of the Board of Directors, and the prospect
of that delay might deter a potential offeror. For additional information, see the section entitled “Management - Executive Officers and Directors - Classified
Board of Directors.”

• Directors Removed Only for Cause. The Certificate of Incorporation provides that stockholders may remove directors only for cause and only by the
affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the voting power of the then-outstanding common stock.

• Supermajority Requirements for Amendments of the Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. The Certificate of Incorporation further provide that the
affirmative vote of holders of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the voting power of all of the then outstanding shares of capital stock will be required to amend
certain provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, including provisions relating to the classified board, the size of the Board of Directors, removal of
directors, special meetings, actions by written consent and designation of our preferred stock, provided that if two-thirds of the Board of Directors has
approved such amendment only the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting power of all of the then outstanding shares of capital stock shall be required to
amend the Certificate of Incorporation. The affirmative vote of holders of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the voting power of all of the then outstanding shares of
common stock will be required to amend or repeal the Bylaws, although the Bylaws may be amended by a simple majority vote of the Board of Directors.
Additionally, in the case of any proposed adoption, amendment, or repeal of any provisions of the Bylaws that is approved by the Board of Directors and
submitted to the stockholders for adoption, if two-thirds of the Board of Directors has approved such adoption, amendment, or repeal of any provisions of the
Bylaws, then only the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting power of all of the then outstanding shares of common stock shall be required to adopt,
amend, or repeal any provision of the Bylaws.

• Stockholder Action; Special Meetings of Stockholders. The Certificate of Incorporation provides that the Company’s stockholders may not take action by
written consent, but may only take action at annual or special meetings of the Company’s stockholders. As a result, holders of our common stock would not be
able to amend the Bylaws or remove directors without holding a meeting of the Company’s stockholders called in accordance with the Bylaws. The Certificate
of Incorporation and the Bylaws provide that special meetings of the Company’s stockholders may be called only by a majority of the Board of Directors, the
chairman of the Board of Directors or the Company’s chief executive officer, thus prohibiting a stockholder from calling a special meeting. These provisions
might delay the ability of the Company’s stockholders to force consideration of a proposal or for stockholders to take any action, including the removal of
directors.

• Advance Notice Requirements for Stockholder Proposals and Director Nominations. The Bylaws provide advance notice procedures for stockholders
seeking to bring business before the Company’s annual meeting of stockholders or to nominate candidates for election as directors at the Company’s annual
meeting of stockholders. The Bylaws also specify certain requirements regarding the form and content of a stockholder’s notice. These provisions may
preclude the Company’s stockholders from bringing matters before the Company’s annual meeting of stockholders or from making nominations for directors
at the Company annual meeting of stockholders. We expect that these provisions might also discourage or deter a



potential acquirer from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect the acquirer’s own slate of directors or otherwise attempting to obtain control of the
Company.

• No Cumulative Voting. The DGCL provides that stockholders are not entitled to the right to cumulate votes in the election of directors unless a corporation’s
certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. The Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws will not provide for cumulative voting.

• Issuance of Undesignated Preferred Stock. The Board of Directors has the authority, without further action by the stockholders, to issue up to 50,000,000
shares of undesignated preferred stock with rights and preferences, including voting rights, designated from time to time by the Board of Directors. The
existence of authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock enables the Board of Directors to render more difficult or to discourage an attempt to obtain
control of the Company by means of a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise. 

• Choice of Forum. In addition, the Certificate of Incorporation provides that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Court of Chancery of the State of
Delaware will be the exclusive forum for any derivative action or proceeding brought on the Company’s behalf; any action asserting a breach of fiduciary
duty; any action asserting a claim against the Company arising pursuant to the DGCL, the Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws; any action asserting a
claim against the Company that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine; or any to interpret, apply, enforce, or determine the validity of the Certificate of
Incorporation or Bylaws. The enforceability of similar choice of forum provisions in other companies’ certificates of incorporation has been challenged in
legal proceedings, and it is possible that a court could find these types of provisions to be inapplicable or unenforceable. The Certificate of Incorporation will
also provide that the federal district courts of the United States will, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the exclusive forum for resolving any complaint
asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act, or the Federal Forum Provision. While there can be no assurance that federal or state courts will
follow the holding of the Delaware Supreme Court which recently found that such provisions are facially valid under Delaware law or determine that the
Federal Forum Provision should be enforced in a particular case, application of the Federal Forum Provision means that suits brought by the Company’s
stockholders to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act must be brought in federal court and cannot be brought in state court. Section 27 of
the Exchange Act creates exclusive federal jurisdiction over all claims brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules and
regulations thereunder. In addition, the Federal Forum Provision applies, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to suits brought to enforce any duty or liability
created by the Exchange Act. Accordingly, actions by the Company’s stockholders to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules
and regulations thereunder must be brought in federal court. The Company’s stockholders will not be deemed to have waived the Company’s compliance with
the federal securities laws and the regulations promulgated thereunder. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring or holding any interest in any
of the Company’s securities shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the Company’s exclusive forum provisions, including the Federal Forum
Provision. These provisions may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum of their choosing for disputes with the Company or the
Company’s directors, officers, or other employees, which may discourage lawsuits against the Company and the Company’s directors, officers, and other
employees.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our Class A common stock and Class B common stock is Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company. The transfer agent’s
address is 1 State Street, 30th Floor, New York, New York 10004.

Exhibit 10.2



Exhibit 10.2

ELECTION, WAIVER AND
CONSENT

This ELECTION, WAIVER AND CONSENT (this “Waiver”),  is  dated as of October 1,  2021, by and among Khosla Ventures SPAC
Sponsor II LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Sponsor Holdco”), the Persons set forth on Schedule I to the Sponsor Agreement (as
defined  below)  (together  with  the  Sponsor  Holdco,  each,  a  “Sponsor”  and,  together,  the  “Sponsors”),  Khosla  Ventures  Acquisition  Co.  II,  a
Delaware corporation (“Acquiror”), and Nextdoor, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS,  reference  is  hereby  made  to  that  certain  Sponsor  Support  Agreement,  dated  July  6,  2021,  by  and  among  the  Sponsors,
Acquiror and the Company (the “Sponsor Agreement”);

WHEREAS, capitalized terms used herein but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings given in the Sponsor Agreement;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 1.5 and 1.10 of the Sponsor Agreement, immediately following the effectiveness of the Acquiror Post-
Merger Charter, the Sponsors shall exchange all of the Sponsor Exchange Shares for an aggregate of 7,347,249 shares of Acquiror Post-Merger
Class B Common Stock to be issued by Acquiror to Sponsors (the “Sponsor Exchange Share Conversion”);

WHEREAS,  pursuant  to  Section  3.4  of  the  Sponsor  Agreement,  the  Sponsor  Agreement  may  be  amended,  changed,  supplemented,
waived or otherwise modified or terminated upon the execution and delivery of a written instrument executed by Acquiror, the Sponsor Holdco
and the Company;

WHEREAS, pursuant  to Article  IV,  Section 1.1 of  the Acquiror  Post-Merger  Charter,  the shares of  Acquiror  Class  K Common Stock
issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall, automatically and without any action on the part of the respective holders
thereof, be reclassified into shares of Acquiror Post-Merger Class B Common Stock;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article V, Section 1 of the Acquiror Post-Merger Charter, each share of Acquiror Post-Merger Class B Common
Stock  shall  be  convertible  into  one  fully  paid  and  nonassessable  share  of  Acquirer  Post-Merger  Class  A  Common  Stock  at  the  option  of  the
holder thereof at any time upon written notice to Acquiror; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto, including the Sponsors, wish to irrevocably (a) waive the Sponsor Exchange Share Conversion and (b)
elect to convert any shares of Acquiror Post-Merger Class B Common Stock held by the Sponsors at the Effective Time into shares of Acquiror
Post-Merger Class A Common Stock.



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements contained herein and in
the  Sponsor  Agreement  and  for  other  good  and  valuable  consideration,  the  receipt  and  sufficiency  of  which  are  hereby  acknowledged,  and
intending to be legally bound, the parties agree as follows:

1. Waiver. The parties hereto hereby irrevocably waive the Sponsor Exchange Share Conversion such that the Sponsor Exchange
Shares shall not convert into Acquiror Post-Merger Class B Common Stock following the effectiveness of the Acquiror Post-Merger Charter and
will instead remain Acquirer Post-Merger Class A Common Stock.

2. Conversion. Each of the Sponsors hereby irrevocably, contingent upon and effective immediately following the Effective Time,
elects  to  convert  all  shares  of  Acquiror  Post-Merger  Class  B  Common  held  by  such  Sponsor  into  shares  of  Acquiror  Post-Merger  Class  A
Common Stock pursuant to Article V, Section 1 of the Acquiror Post-Merger Charter and hereby gives notice to Acquiror of such election.

3. Other Changes; Interpretation. Except as expressly provided herein, the provisions of the Sponsor Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.

4. Governing  Law.  This  Waiver,  and  all  claims  or  causes  of  action  based  upon,  arising  out  of,  or  related  to  this  Waiver  or  the
transactions  contemplated  hereby,  shall  be  governed  by,  and  construed  in  accordance  with,  the  laws  of  the  State  of  Delaware,  without  giving
effect to principles or rules of conflict of laws to the extent such principles or rules would require or permit the application of laws of another
jurisdiction.

5. Counterparts. This Waiver may be executed in separate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission or any other form of
electronic  delivery,  such  signature  shall  create  a  valid  and  binding  obligation  of  the  party  executing  (or  on  whose  behalf  such  signature  is
executed) with the same force and effect as if such signature page were an original thereof.

[Signature page follows.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Sponsors, Acquiror and the Company have each caused this Election, Waiver and Consent to be duly executed
as of the date first written above.

SPONSORS:

KHOSLA VENTURES SPAC
SPONSOR II LLC

By: /s/ Samir Kaul
Name: Samir Kaul

Title:
President and Chief Executive
Officer

/s/ Vinod Khosla
Name: Vinod Khosla

s/ Samir Kaul
Name: Samir Kaul

/s/ Peter Buckland
Name: Peter Buckland

/s/ Anita Sands
Name: Anita Sands

/s/ Enrico Gaglioti
Name: Enrico Gaglioti

/s/ Dmitri Shklovsky
Name: Dmitri Shklovsky

[Signature Page to Election, Waiver and Consent]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the Sponsors, Acquiror and the Company have each caused this Election, Waiver and Consent to be duly
executed as of the date first written above.

ACQUIROR:

KHOSLA VENTURES ACQUISITION CO. II

By: /s/ Peter Buckland
Name: Peter Buckland
Title: Chief Operating Officer, Chief

Financial Officer, Treasurer and
Secretary

[Signature Page to Election, Waiver and Consent]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the Sponsors, Acquiror and the Company have each caused this Election, Waiver and Consent to be duly
executed as of the date first written above.

COMPANY:

NEXTDOOR, INC.

By: /s/ Sarah Friar
Name: Sarah Friar
Title: Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-262102) pertaining to the Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive
Plan, the Nextdoor, Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive Plan, the Nextdoor, Inc. 2018 Equity Incentive Plan and the Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. 2021 Employee Stock Purchase
Plan of our report dated March 15, 2022, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K)
of Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2021.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Redwood City, California
March 15, 2022

[Signature Page to Election, Waiver and Consent]



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) UNDER THE EXCHANGE ACT,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Sarah Friar, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021 of Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the period presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over
financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2022

By: /s/ Sarah Friar
Sarah Friar
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairperson of the Board of Directors



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) UNDER THE EXCHANGE ACT,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael Doyle, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021 of Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the period presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over
financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2022

By: /s/ Michael Doyle

Michael Doyle
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I certify, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 15, 2022

By: /s/ Sarah Friar

Sarah Friar
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairperson of the Board of Directors



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Nextdoor Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I certify, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 15, 2022

By: /s/ Michael Doyle
Michael Doyle
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer


